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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may
be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GET Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that
are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TRRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of GET
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries referred to as
the “Group”), | would like to present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”) together with the Group’s
strategies and prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$88,979,000 for the Year
(2013: Loss of HK$183,176,000).

The Group’s consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
the Year amounted to approximately HK$52,737,000 (2013: Loss of
HK$207,410,000).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year
(2013: Nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the Year, we captured big opportunities to grow our portfolio in
Information Technology (“IT”) and financial-related services. In order to create
a better vision in the Group’s business and reinforce its corporate image, “GET
Holdings Limited” has been adopted as the new name of the Company.

In July 2014, the Group completed the acquisition of and held the entire
interest in e-Perfect IT Limited (“e-Perfect”). This allowed the Group to capture
a larger market of a different market segment, i.e. the provision of corporate
management solutions and [T contract services, thus extending the existing
software service line. Penetrating into the field of network construction, the
management has moved the Group one step forward to success of becoming
a comprehensive [T business platform.

Leveraging on solid foundation and competitive strengths of Apperience
Corporation (“Apperience”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Apperience Group”), the Group continues
to upgrade its existing products while developing new elements to keep up
with the latest IT trends. The Group enjoyed a steady growth through our
corporate expansion of its existing software business. The software business
alone accounted for approximately 61.5% of our total turnover for the Year.
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To further broaden our investment portfolio, in April 2014, the Group
completed the acquisition of GET Mdream Wealth Management Limited (“GET
Mdream”) (formerly known as Anvick Investment Advisory Limited). GET
Mdream is principally engaged in insurance and Mandatory Provident Fund
schemes (“MPF schemes”) brokerage business in Hong Kong. The Group
now holds 51% of the issued share capital of GET Mdream. We believed that
the acquisition of GET Mdream can diversify the Group’s business into the
insurance and MPF schemes brokerage and financial-related service sector.

Due to the keen competition amongst peers within the e-leaming market, the
operating result of the e-learning business was not satisfactory. In light of the
competitive market environment, the management is thinking seriously about
the prospect of this business segment.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$151,337,000 and net current
assets of approximately HK$76,383,000. Given such solid financial position,
the Group will strategically look for other potential business areas with positive
prospects to enhance our revenue sources and profitability, thereby creating
greater returns for the shareholders of the Company.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, we believe that the Group is well-positioned for the year
ahead based on our solid and flexible financial position, experienced
management and our quality products and services. At the same time, our
strategy of business diversification remains. The Group will continue to grasp
other business opportunities in financial intermediation and penetrate into
other potential business sectors to broaden the income sources, hence
generating greatest return for the shareholders of the Company who have
always been giving us supports.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks and gratitude to all our business partners and shareholders for their
continuing trust and support in the Group. | would also like to thank all staff
and members of the Board for their dedicated efforts and contributions to the
Group over the past year.

Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni
Chairman

24 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR R ST

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group had been making effort to further boost its
strategic role of business diversification through a number of acquisitions. In
order to create a better vision in the business and reinforce the Group’s
corporate image, “GET Holdings Limited” has been adopted as the new name
of the Company.

Software Business

Having completed the acquisition of 50.5% of the issued share capital of
Apperience (“Apperience Acquisition”) in March 2013 and with the plan to
diversify, the Group has established a strong corporate position in the software
industry and acquired new professional skills in the IT field. The Group is now
engaged in various aspects of the IT industry ranging from research and
development, progression to the final distribution of software for personal
computer performances, anti-virus software, mobile applications and toolbar
advertisements.

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$144,191,000 (2013:
HK$89,809,000) for the Year, solely contributed by the Software Business in
which the Apperience Group is principally engaged, representing an increase
of approximately 60.6% over last year and the segment profit totalled
approximately HK$80,938,000. During the Year, this segment maintained a
steady and healthy growing trend. To keep up with the ever-changing IT
environment, the Apperience Group closely monitors the IT trend and
continuously upgrades its products.

Money Lending Business

Citi Profit Finance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was granted a money lenders licence by the licensing court in
Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Group adopted the money lending policy and
procedure manual which provide guidelines on the handling and/or monitoring
of money lending procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of the Hong Kong).

The Money Lending Business made positive progress in its development and
became one of the sources for the Group’s profit for the Year. The segment
profit and its loan interest income for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$1,020,000 and HK$1,105,000 respectively. The outstanding principal
amount of loan receivables as at the date of this annual report (“this Report”)
was approximately HK$6,000,000. In addition, the Group has not recorded
any doubtful or bad debt in all its money lending activities during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To further expand its Money Lending Business, on 12 March 2015, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of
51% of the issued share capital of GEO Finance Limited at a consideration of
HK$255,000. GEO Finance Limited was granted a money lenders licence by
the licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Completion of the acquisition took
place immediately after the signing of the sale and purchase agreement. Such
transaction did not constitute a notifiable transaction for the Company under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Group planned to start a
subordinate property mortgage loan business in the future.

Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business

The Group completed an acquisition of the entire issued share capital of GET
Mdream at a consideration of approximately HK$1,033,000 on 2 April 2014.
GET Mdream is a registered member of the Professional Insurance Brokers
Association, and is principally engaged in carrying on long term (including
linked long term) insurance and general insurance lines of business. GET
Mdream is also engaged in financial planning, insurance and MPF schemes
brokerage business in Hong Kong. Details of the acquisition were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 28 March 2014 and 2 April 2014.

On 7 July 2014, GET Mdream entered into a subscription agreement with a
company wholly-owned by a director of a subsidiary of the Company as the
subscriber, pursuant to which the subscriber subscribed for 49% of the
enlarged share capital of GET Mdream. The subscription was completed
immediately after the signing of the subscription agreement. Such transaction
did not constitute a notifiable transaction for the Company under Chapter 19
of the GEM Listing Rules and was fully exempt from the requirements under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Group now holds 51% of the issued
share capital of GET Mdream.

On 2 February 2015, the Group entered into a memorandum of understanding
(“Trendmode MOU”) in regard to the proposed acquisition of the entire share
capital of Trendmode Holdings Limited (“Trendmode”). Trendmode is the
holding company of two companies, namely GET Wealth Management Limited
and GET Consulting Company Limited. GET Wealth Management Limited is a
member of The Hong Kong Confederation of Insurance Brokers and is
permitted to carry on businesses in general insurance and long term (including
linked long term) insurance. It is also registered as an MPF corporate
intermediary with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. GET
Consulting Company Limited is principally engaged in the provision of
consulting services (including business referral services) in Hong Kong. The
maximum amount of consideration for the proposed acquisition would be
HK$70 million. The Group paid HK$10 million as refundable deposit to the
vendor immediately after the signing of the Trendmode MOU. Looking ahead,
the Group is well equipped to move its pathway into the industry of financial
planning and insurance and MPF schemes brokerage.

As at the date of this Report, the Company has not yet signed any definitive
agreement in respect of the proposed acquisition of Trendmode. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 2 February 2015 for further details of
the Trendmode MOU.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR R ST

During the Year, the Group has been actively diversifying its products and
services to include investment-linked insurance and has successfully
developed our own new sales teams for the promotion of its services and
products. The revenue derived from this business segment and the segment
profit for the Year was approximately HK$76,507,000 and HK$12,113,000
respectively.

Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services
Business

For the better understanding the Group’s products and services and allowing
the shareholders to assess the Group’s risks and returns as well as making
more informed judgments about the Group as a whole, the Board identified
Corporate Management Solutions and |.T. Contract Services Business as one
of the principal activities of the Group.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with EPRO Systems
Limited for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in e-Perfect at a
consideration of HK$48 million on 10 June 2014 (“e-Perfect Acquisition”).
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the Company shall issue and
allot, credited as fully paid, 186,046,500 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at an issue price of approximately HK$0.258 per share to the nominee of
EPRO Systems Limited as settlement of the consideration for the e-Perfect
Acquisition.

Completion of the e-Perfect Acquisition took place on 31 July 2014. Details of
the e-Perfect Acquisition and the issue of new ordinary shares were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 10 June 2014 and 31 July 2014. The
e-Perfect Acquisition offers new business opportunities to the Group and the
Group started to provide corporate management solutions and IT contract
services to corporate clients in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”).

On 31 December 2014, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of the
issued share capital of Wafer Systems (Hong Kong) Limited (“Wafer HK”) at a
consideration of HK$18,000,000 (“Wafer HK Acquisition”). Wafer HK is
principally engaged in network system integration, including provision of
network infrastructure solutions and network professional services in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Details of the Wafer HK Acquisition were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 31 October 2014 and 31 December 2014
and the Company’s circular dated 11 December 2014.

The Group aims at becoming a comprehensive IT business platform.
Therefore, the e-Perfect Acquisition and Wafer HK Acquisition are in line with
the business development strategy of the Group, by which the Group can
expand its business into network construction and management. The
Directors believe that the e-Perfect Acquisition and the Wafer HK Acquisition
will provide better support to the Group’s Software Business development and
strengthen the Group’s position in the IT industry, which will in turn enhance
the financial performance of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the revenue of this business segment was approximately
HK$8,422,000 and the segment profit was approximately HK$1,791,000.

E-learning Business

During the Year, the operating results of the business of website development,
e-learning products and services were not satisfactory due to the high
competition amongst peers within the industry. In light of the competitive
market environment, the management is thinking seriously about the prospect
of this business segment. By keeping the shareholders’ best interest in mind,
the Group would ensure the profitability is at its utmost achievable. During the
Year, this business segment recorded a minor loss of approximately
HK$360,000.

Securities Investment Business

The total fair value of listed shares issued by Hong Kong listed companies and
unlisted investment fund held by the Group as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately HK$73,150,000. During the Year, the segment loss amounted
to approximately HK$20,966,000. The loss of this business segment was
attributable to the volatility of the stock market as well as the unrealized loss in
fair value of its available-for-sale investments.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

The turnover of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$234,293,000,
representing an increase of approximately 154.4% compared to the turnover
for 2013 of approximately HK$92,105,000. The turnover for the Year was
mainly contributed by the Software Business as to approximately
HK$144,191,000 and the Insurance and MPF schemes Brokerage Business
as to approximately HK$76,507,000.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased by approximately 95.1%
to approximately HK$144,664,000 from approximately HK$74,148,000 for
2013.

Profit for the Year

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$52,737,000 for the Year as compared to the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$207,410,000 for
2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$88,979,000 for the
Year, as compared to a net loss of approximately HK$183,176,000 for 2013.
The change from a net loss to a net profit position was mainly due to (i) the
operating profit of approximately HK$69,476,000 contributed by the
Apperience Group, which is principally engaged in the research and
development, distribution of software for personal computer performances,
anti-virus software, mobile applications and toolbar advertisement; (i) the gain
of approximately HK$57,323,000 arising on change in the fair value of
performance shares for settling a part of purchase consideration in relation to
the Apperience Acquisition, which was completed on 31 March 2013; and (i)
the absence of impairment loss on goodwill in relation to the Apperience
Acquisition for the Year while the impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$257,496,000 was incurred by the Group in 2013 despite that the net
profit was partially offset by the impairment loss on listed securities investment
of approximately HK$20,732,000 for 2014.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits amounted to approximately HK$151,337,000 (as at 31
December 2013: HK$71,030,000), which were principally denominated in
Renminbi, United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar (2013: United States
dollar and Hong Kong dollar).

The Group generally finances its operation using internally generated resources
and proceeds raised from the issue of new shares of the Company under
general mandate by way of placing on 17 October 2014.

Issuance of convertible notes in November 2012

On 14 November 2012, the Company issued convertible notes to Wise Action
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Education (Int’l)
Investments Limited (stock code: 1082), in a principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 as alternative financing instruments. In 2013, the convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 were converted and a total of
200,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to Wise Action Limited
at a conversion price of HK$0.10 per share. The net proceeds from the
convertible notes of approximately HK$19,500,000 were planned to be used (i)
as to approximately HK$5,000,000 for financing the business of website
development, e-learning products and services; and (i) as to approximately
HK$14,500,000 for future investments in e-commerce and/or other IT related
business as and when opportunities arise. On 23 April 2014, the investment in
online shopping business of HK$14,000,000 was financed by part of the net
proceeds. As at 31 December 2014, the net proceeds used for e-learning
products and services were approximately HK$1,790,000, and the net
proceeds from the convertible notes of approximately HK$3,710,000 remained
unutilised. Details of the convertible notes were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 September 2012, 14 November 2012 and 19
March 2013 and notes 32(a) and 35(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Issue of Tranche | Performance Shares in June 2014

Reference is made to the Company’s circular dated 23 February 2013 in
relation to the Apperience Acquisition and the announcements of the
Company dated 19 May 2014, 20 May 2014 and 21 May 2014 in relation to
the issue of the Tranche | Performance Shares to the Vendors which include
Access Magic, Ace Source, Well Peace, Wealthy Hope, IDG-Accel, IDG-Accel
Investors and THL which is a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings Limited (all
defined in the Company’s circular dated 23 February 2013). On 6 June 2014,
the Company allotted and issued the 715,522,718 Tranche | Performance
Shares, credited as fully paid, to the Vendors to settle part of the consideration
for the Apperience Acquisition. Details of the performance shares are set out
in notes 33 and 35(e) to the consolidated financial statement.

Conversion of convertible notes in September 2014

On 31 March 2013, upon completion of the Apperience Acquisition, the
Company issued convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$392,132,500 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.108 per conversion
share (subject to adjustment) to the vendors of the Apperience Acquisition. A
summary of the principal terms of the convertible notes is set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 5 December 2012 and the Company’s
circular dated 23 February 2013.

On 6 October 2014, the Company issued a total of 38,532,464 new ordinary
shares to the converting noteholders pursuant to the exercise of conversion
right attaching to the convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$16,646,024.625 at the conversion price (after adjustment by the capital
reorganisation which became effective on 18 July 2014) of HK$0.432 per
share.

Details of the convertible notes and the conversion were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 23 February 2013, the Company’s announcements
dated 5 December 2012, 12 March 2013, 1 April 2013, 2 April 2013, 26
August 2013, 2 September 2013, 25 November 2013, 10 December 2013,
23 December 2013 and 30 September 2014 and notes 32 and 35(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Placing of new shares under general mandate in October 2014

On 6 October 2014, the Company and SBI China Capital Financial Services
Limited as placing agent (“Placing Agent”) entered into the placing agreement
(“Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the Placing Agent would procure not
less than six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be third
parties independent of the Group and not connected nor acting in concert
with any of the connected persons of the Group or any of their respective
associates, on a best effort basis, to subscribe for up to 319,260,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Placing Shares”) at a price of
HK$0.121 (“Placing Price”) per Placing Share (“Placing”).
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The Placing Price represented: (i) a discount of approximately 17.12% to the
closing price of HK$0.146 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
date of the Placing Agreement; and (ii) a discount of approximately 12.06% to
the average closing price of HK$0.1376 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive trading days of the shares immediately prior
to the date of the Placing Agreement.

The Directors considered that the Placing could strengthen the financial
position of the Group and provide working capital to the Group to meet any
future development and obligations, whereas it also represented good
opportunities to broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital base of the
Company. Completion of the Placing took place on 17 October 2014. An
aggregate of 319,260,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued pursuant
to the general mandate refreshed by the shareholders of the Company at a
special general meeting held on 11 September 2014. The aggregate nominal
value of the Placing Shares was HK$3,192,600.

The net proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$37.2 million (after
deduction of commission and other expenses of the Placing), and the net
issue price was approximately HK$0.117 per Placing Share. The net proceeds
from the Placing are expected to be used as general working capital of the
Group and for financing potential investment of the Group in the future.

As at 31 December 2014, the net proceeds of approximately HK$19.2 million
were used as general working capital of the Group and approximately HK$18
million were used for the payment of the consideration of acquisition of 100%
of the issued share capital of Wafer HK on 31 December 2014. Details of the
Placing were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 6 October 2014
and 17 October 2014 and note 35(g) to the consolidated financial statements.

Loan from a lender in May 2014

On 29 May 2014, the Group borrowed a loan of HK$11 million from a lender,
an independent third party, at a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and a
credit period of six months starting from 29 May 2014. The loan was secured
by a corporate guarantee granted by the Company. The fair value of the
guarantee as at the date of inception is not material and is not recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the Year because there
was no default repayment history and the ability of repayment is not in doubt.
In November 2014, the Group settled the loan of HK$11 million and its interest
expense of approximately HK$386,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Issue of 6% per annum notes in February 2015

On 5 February 2015, the Company and GEO Securities Limited as placing
agent entered into a placing agreement (“Note Placing Agreement”), pursuant
to which the placing agent agreed to procure the placee(s) who and whose
respective ultimate beneficial owner(s) shall be third parties independent of,
and not connected with the Company, its connected persons and their
respective associates (each within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules), on
a best endeavour basis, to subscribe for the 6% per annum notes (“Notes”) to
be issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$50,000,000 maturing on the second anniversary of the issue date of the
Notes at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes
(“Note Placing”).

The placing period for the Note Placing shall last for a period commencing on
the day immediately following the date of the Note Placing Agreement and up
to (and including) the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month after the
date of the Note Placing Agreement.

The Directors considered that the Note Placing represented an opportunity to
obtain funding, which is intended to be used to finance any potential
investment opportunities of the Group that may arise from time to time and for
the general working capital of the Group.

As at the date of this Report, completion of the Note Placing has not yet taken
place. Details of the Note Placing were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 5 February 2015 and note 44(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital Reorganisation in July 2014

During the Year, the Company has completed the capital reorganisation
(2014 Capital Reorganisation”) as described in the circular of the Company
dated 24 June 2014. The 2014 Capital Reorganisation involved the following:

1. Share Consolidation

Pursuant to the share consolidation, every four issued and unissued
then existing shares of the Company (“2014 Existing Shares”) of
HK$0.10 each have been consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.40 each (“2014 Consolidated Shares”) and the total number of
2014 Consolidated Shares in the issued share capital of the Company
immediately following the share consolidation has been rounded down
to a whole number by cancelling any fraction in the issued share capital
of the Company arising from the share consolidation.
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2. Capital Reduction and Share Subdivision

(@) The issued share capital of the Company has been reduced through
a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of
HK$0.39 on each of the issued 2014 Consolidated Shares such that
the nominal value of each issued 2014 Consolidated Share has been
reduced from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01; (b) immediately following the capital
reduction, each of the authorised but unissued 2014 Consolidated
Shares of HK$0.40 each has been sub-divided into 40 new shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company; and (c) the credits arising in the books
of the Company from (i) the cancellation of any fraction in the issued
share capital of the Company arising from the share consolidation; and
(i) the reduction of the paid-up capital of the Company of approximately
HK$550,011,000 has been credited to the contributed surplus account
of the Company within the meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

The 2014 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company by a special resolution at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 17 July 2014 and became effective on 18 July 2014.
Details of the 2014 Capital Reorganisation were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 3 June 2014 and 17 July 2014,
the circular of the Company dated 24 June 2014 and notes 35(b)(i) and
35(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital reorganisation and change in board lot size in March 2015

In March 2015, the Company has completed the capital reorganisation (“2015
Capital Reorganisation”) as described in the circular of the Company dated 26
February 2015. The 2015 Capital Reorganisation involved the following:

i) every 10 issued and unissued then existing shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company have been consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.10 each of the Company (‘2015 Consolidated Shares”) and
where applicable, the total number of 2015 Consolidated Shares in the
issued share capital of the Company immediately following the share
consolidation has been rounded down to a whole number by cancelling
any fraction in the issued share capital of the Company which may arise
from the share consolidation;

(ii) the issued share capital of the Company has been reduced through a
cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each of the issued 2015 Consolidated Shares such that
the nominal value of each issued 2015 Consolidated Share has been
reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01;

(i) immediately following the capital reduction, each of the authorised but
unissued 2015 Consolidated Shares of HK$0.10 each has been sub-
divided into 10 new shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“New
Shares”);
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(iv)  the credits arising in the books of the Company from (a) the cancellation
of any fraction in the issued share capital of the Company which may
arise from the share consolidation; and (b) the capital reduction of
approximately HK$17,587,124 has been credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda; and

(V) upon the 2015 Capital Reorganisation becoming effective, the board lot
size for trading of the New Shares has been changed from 20,000 to
5,000.

The 2015 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company as a special resolution at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 23 March 2015 and became effective on 24 March
2015. As at the date of this Report, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$1,954,124.87 divided into 195,412,487 New Shares
of HK$0.01 each. Details of the 2015 Capital Reorganisation and
change of board lot size were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 2 February 2015 and 23 March 2015, the
Company’s circular dated 26 February 2015 and note 44(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Proposed rights issue

On 24 February 2015, the Board proposed the implementation of the rights
issue on the basis of three rights shares (“Rights Shares”) for every one New
Share held on the record date (tentatively scheduled for 8 May 2015) at the
subscription price of HK$0.35 per Rights Share to raise approximately
HK$205.2 million before deduction of expenses by issuing 586,237,461
Rights Shares to the qualifying shareholders of the Company. The estimated
net proceeds of the Rights Issue will be approximately HK$196.7 million
(assuming no further issue or repurchase of shares or New Shares of the
Company on or before the record date). The Company intends to apply (i)
approximately HK$20 million of the net proceeds for funding the incorporation
of a company in Hong Kong which is to be wholly-owned by the Group to
carry on Type 1 regulated activity (dealing in securities) under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”), details
of which are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 February
2015; (i) approximately HK$50 million of the net proceeds for funding the
money lending business; (i) approximately HK$80 million of the net proceeds
for future potential acquisitions or investments which are related to insurance
and MPF schemes brokerage business; (iv) approximately HK$36 million of
the net proceeds for future potential acquisition of properties; and (v)
approximately HK$10.7 million of the net proceeds for working capital of the
Group.

The proposed rights issue of the Company is subject to the independent
shareholders’ approval in a special general meeting of the Company proposed
to be held on 27 April 2015. Details of the proposed rights issue are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 24 February 2015 and 20 March 2015
and note 44(d) to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$19,541,248.77, divided into 1,954,124,877 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$942,389,000 (as at 31 December 2013: HK$750,754,000), whereas the
total liabilities were approximately HK$174,513,000 (as at 31 December 2013:
HK$161,500,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total liabilities
over total assets, was 18.5% as at 31 December 2014 (as at 31 December
2013: 21.5%).

Final dividend
The Directors do not recommend to pay final dividend for the Year (2013: Nil).
Charges on the Group’s Assets

The Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately US$80,000 and
HK$1,004,000 (in aggregate, approximately HK$1,626,000 (2013:
HK$621,000)) represented deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities to the extent of HK$1,500,000 (2013: HK$500,000) granted to the
Group. The deposits are in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars with a
term of 6 months and 1 year respectively and at fixed interest rate of 0.05%
per annum and 0.7% per annum respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had pledged bank deposit of
HK$805,000 as guaranteed fund at bank for the Visa/MasterCard merchant
account of the online shopping business. The deposit is in Hong Kong dollars
at a fixed interest rate of 0.2% per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had undrawn banking facilities of
approximately HK$855,000 (2013: HK$265,000). Details of the pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, listed securities held by the Group with a total
carrying amount of approximately HK$42,929,000 (2013: HK$53,778,000)
has been charged in favour of a brokerage firm as collateral for the Group’s
liabilities in respect of its margin trading account. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group has not used the credit limit. Details of this charge are disclosed in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZF—WF+=-A=+—8 ' ARENEEHTRESE
19,541,248.77 BT + 9 £ 1,954,124,877 [ B E{E0.01 78
TCHYEBAR -

EESEHER

RZZE—OWF+_A=Z+—HB AEENEEREDNA
942,389,000 T(R—_ZE—-—=Z=%+ A =+—H:
750,754,000/ 7T) + A EAFERIA4174,518,0008 T (R
ZE—=F+ZA=+—H :161,500,00087T) - K==
—mHE+ZA=+—H AEENEEAELX(AEEHE
EHRIANEESE) B185% (R_E—=F+=-A=+—8:
21.5%) °

RERE
EETEBRUAFRIKNRPBRE (ZF—=F: ) -
REBEERR

AEE R B K IFIRTTF 349 80,0003 7T K. 1,004,000 7T (&
H#491,626,0008 7T (ZZ—=4F : 621,000;87T)) 5K\ T
BITEBAEEERSE1,500008 (=T —=F:
500,000 7T ) R1T A E BRI TF K - BBFRD BIAET
RATTHE - DRABRNEAR—F - o BIRE T F %
0.05BR0.7EE °

RZZE—MFE+-A=+—8B FAEENCEBRITER
805,000 7% 7T JY1E /48 =& ¥ 3£ 7 1) Visa/MasterCard 1 K &
FRRTRES - EBRIJSUBITHHE @ RETEFFIR0.2
EER -

RZE—NF+ZA=+—0  AEEEREERITHELD
855,000/8 70 (ZZT — =4 : 265,000/ 7T) - K IFRITIF
FUARB e RBEEEYNFEREGEVEREMNEI0HE

=

RZZE—MF+-A=+—B FEEMFEELENA
42,929,000 7T ( = F — =4 : 53,778,000/ 7T ) #) L 1 &
FEEM T —RLRT  EREARECESRFIREE
WERG  R-T—WE+—A=1+—0  KEBELESHH
EEREE o IEIPRFHIE R A M SRR M 5 26 BEER -

16

GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign exchange exposure

During the Year, the business activities of the Group were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Following the completion of
the Apperience Acquisition in 2013, United States dollars became the main
currency transacted by the Group. Since Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to
the United States dollars within a defined range, the Group is not exposed to
any significant foreign exchange risk against the United States dollars and has
not entered into any foreign exchange contract as hedging measures. The
Directors did not consider that the Group was significantly exposed to any
foreign currency exchange risk.

Notwithstanding the above, the Group manages its foreign currency risk
against other currencies by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and may use hedging derivative, such as foreign currency
forward contract, to manage its foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Financial risk

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets and performance shares which
may be issued in connection with the Apperience Acquisition are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed
to equity security price risk due to the fluctuation of price of available-for-sale
financial assets and the changes in the Company’s share prices to the extent
that the Company’s shares underlie the fair value of performance shares. The
Directors regularly review the exposure to the equity security price risk on the
available-for-sale financial assets. Other financial risks are disclosed in the note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2014, if the share prices of the available-for-sale financial
assets and the Company’s own shares had increased/decreased by 10%, the
other comprehensive income and profit (2013: loss) after tax for the Year
would have been approximately HK$7,315,000 higher/lower (2013:
HK$5,378,000 lower/higher) and approximately HK$1,197,000 lower/higher
(2013: HK$8,732,000 higher/lower) respectively, arising as a result of the fair
value gain/loss of the available-for-sale financial assets and fair value loss/gain
of the performance shares.

Significant investments and disposals
Investment in online shopping business

On 8 April 2014, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with Mr.
Mok Kwan Yat and Mr. Cheng Wai Cheung, Herman and Lujolujo Asia Limited
(“Lujolujo”), pursuant to which, the Group subscribed for 7,700 new ordinary
shares in the share capital of Lujolujo (“Lujolujo Shares”) at the subscription
price of HK$14,000,000 (“Lujolujo Subscription”).
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Lujolujo is principally engaged in online retail and advertising business under
the name of “Funshare.com”. The website provides an online shopping
platform, through which, Lujolujo promotes and markets the goods and
services of certain third party suppliers or providers for a fixed commission.

The Directors considered that the Lujolujo Subscription would bring a
horizontal expansion to the Group’s sales channels and customer base and
expected the Group to benefit from accessing to the users of the online
purchase platform of Lujolujo by promoting the Group’s products to potential
customers, as well as the synergistic effect created with the existing customer
base of the Apperience Group.

Completion of the Lujolujo Subscription took place on 23 April 2014, upon
which Lujolujo has become a 77%-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Details of investment in online shopping business were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 April 2014 and 23 April 2014 and note
39(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Acquisition of 100% equity interest of e-Perfect

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 100%
equity interest of e-Perfect on 10 June 2014. The e-Perfect Acquisition was
completed on 31 July 2014. Please refer to the section headed “Business
Review — Corporate Management Solutions and IT Contract Services
Business” of this Report and note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements for further details.

Disposal of 51% equity interest of Dragon Oriental Investment Limited

On 12 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party for the disposal of 51% of the issued share capital
of Dragon Oriental Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company prior to the disposal, at a cash consideration of HK$21,700,000.
The principal asset of Dragon Oriental Investment Limited was a property
which was valued at approximately HK$42,000,000 as at 6 June 2014 by an
independent professional property valuer. On 30 September 2014, completion
of such disposal took place and Dragon Oriental Investment Limited ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Group. Details of such disposal were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 12 June 2014 and 30 September 2014
and note 39(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment in GET Mdream (Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business)

The Group entered into a memorandum of understanding to acquire the entire
issued share capital of GET Mdream. The acquisition was completed on 2
April 2014. The Group now holds 51% of the issued share capital of GET
Mdream. Please refer to the section headed “Business Review — Insurance
and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business” of this Report and note 39(a) to the
consolidated financial statements for details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Acquisition of Wafer HK

On 31 October 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
in relation to the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Wafer HK.
The Wafer HK Acquisition was completed on 31 December 2014. Please refer
to the section headed “Business Review — Corporate Management Solutions
and IT Contract Services Business” of this Report and note 39(a) to the
consolidated financial statements for further details.

Apart from those disclosed in the sections headed “Significant investments
and disposals” and “Business Review” in this Report and the section headed
“Events after the reporting period” in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other material acquisition or disposal during the
Year.

Ageing of trade receivables and payables

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables and payables as at 31
December 2014 is set out in notes 28(a) and 31(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 111 employees (as at
31 December 2013: 11 employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
remuneration policy is reviewed periodically and determined by reference to
market terms, company performance, individual qualifications and
performance, and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the
respective jurisdiction where the employees are employed.

On 24 December 2007, the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary general
meeting. The Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant option
to either Directors or employees of the Group in order to recognise and
motivate their contribution, to provide incentives and to help the Group in
retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional quality employees so
as to provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long term
business objectives of the Group. No options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year. Please refer to the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors in this Report and note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements for further details of Share Option
Scheme.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (as at 31 December 2013: Nil).
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the capital commitments contributed but not
provided for development costs for intangible assets was approximately
HK$21,715,000 (2013: HK$28,223,000).

Please refer to note 40 to the consolidated financial statements for details.

OUTLOOK

Living in this generation with skillful knowledge and modernized technology,
the internet has turned into a necessity in our everyday lives, it is expected that
customers’ pursuit for the enhancement in IT performance and anti-virus
software will continue to grow.

Subsequent to the completion of the Apperience Acquisition in 2013, the
Group is able to diversify its business into the IT field of personal computers,
anti-virus software and mobile applications, bringing in new momentum for the
Group’s development. In light of the financial performance of the Apperience
Group, the Group is optimistic in its business prospect and expects that
revenue from the Apperience Group will become one of the principal sources
of income of the Group in the future.

The Group intends to expand its business by developing its insurance and
MPF schemes brokerage business and money lending business. Reference is
made to the Company’s announcement dated 2 February 2015 in relation to
(1) proposed acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Trendmode; and
(2) the proposed incorporation of a subsidiary (“Subsidiary”) to carry out type 1
regulated activity under the SFO. The proposed acquisition of Trendmode
represents an opportunity for the Group to expand the scale of its business in
the insurance and MPF schemes brokerage services market. The Group also
considers that setting up the Subsidiary will broaden the Group’s revenue
base by diversifying into the securities trading business and enable the Group
to offer a comprehensive range of financial-related services to its customers in
addition to the provision of insurance and MPF schemes brokerage services.

The Group will continue to enhance its money lending business in providing
secured and/or unsecured loans to customers comprising individuals and
corporations. The money lending industry remains highly competitive amid a
continuing challenging environment in Hong Kong. However, as the Group
considers that there is continuing demand for landed property in Hong Kong,
it intends to focus on providing mortgage refinancing services and expects to
benefit from such business.

Looking ahead, while keeping a close eye on the operation of the existing
businesses mentioned above, the Group will continue to enhance the quality
of its current products and services, diversify its business and look for new
potential investment opportunities to bring greater returns to its shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board would like to present this Corporate Governance Report for the
Year.

The Company is committed to maintaining corporate governance of high
standard and quality procedures. The Company has put in place governance
practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake of
maximizing returns to shareholders. The Directors acknowledge in the
Corporate Governance Report their responsibility for preparing the accounts.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has applied and on best effort
basis complied with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) except for Code
Provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1. The following sections set out the principles in the
CG Code as they have been applied by the Company, including any deviations
therefrom, for the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises five members, two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman of the Board) and Mr. Xue Qiushi
(Chief Executive Officer) and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lam Kit Sun, Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens and Ms. Xiao Yiming.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company.

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business and for the
exercise of independent decisions. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors which is more than half of the Board. They are
professionals in different areas and provide independent opinions based on
their expertise.

There is no relationship among members of the Board and the biographies of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Proposed regular Board meeting dates for a year are informed to each
Director at the beginning of the year. Formal notice of at least 14 days will be
given in respect of a regular meeting. For special Board meeting, reasonable
notice will be given. Directors participated, either in person or through other
electronic means of communication in the Board meetings.

The Directors meet regularly at least 4 times a year and participate in person
or through other means of communication. All notices of Board meetings were
given to all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of
major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. Directors can also seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each Board meeting are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
request by any Director.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of the
legal action against the Directors.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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Attendance of Directors at Meetings

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Year, 48 Board meetings had been held for reviewing business
performance, considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company and other business matters. The attendance record of each
Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the Year is set out in the table below:

TEERRE

ESHEERLHE

RAFER - £BTBREETFSEURT AR REB X
B UEBRMERARBERE RBRRAMETER -
TRENSEEREAFENHFEFTSREESLRESSE
AR RABBIRA G CE :

Remuneration Audit  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Note Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
F0) B R®E

(o5 EZgeE 2ZEg88 2 ZE9g8¥ 2 Z£Ege3 BRRAE
Number of meetings held BERE 48 3 6 4 5
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRELE 1 31/31 N/ATiE R N/ATE N/A7RiE B 4/4
Mr. Xue Qiushi BWELE 46/48 N/ATEAR N/AT i N/ATER 0/5
Mr. Chi Chi Hung Kenneth FEMRE 2 14/14 N/AT R N/AT @R N/ATNER 11
Independent Non-executive Directors By k#H{TEE
Mr. Lam Kit Sun MR 42/48 3/3 6/6 4/4 2/5
Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens el 3 44/47 11 6/6 2/2 0/5
Ms. Xiao Yiming H—et 4 40/46 11 6/6 2/2 1/5
Ms. Chan Hoi Ling Bl =L+ 5 5/5 2/2 N/AZRiE R 2/2 N/ATiE R
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter KBECEE 6 2/2 2/2 N/AZNjiE 2/2 N/AZNjiE f
Notes: B EE
. Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni was appointed as an executive Director and the 1. BREXEN-ZE—NENANABZTANTESHRES

Chairman of the Board on 9 June 2014. EEXF o

D. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth retired as an executive Director and Chairman of the 2. FEREECRERNTESRESTEER BT —HFRN

Board with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 4
June 2014.

Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens was appointed as independent non-executive Director on
2 January 2014 and was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and
a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 10
February 2014.

Ms. Xiao Yiming was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 17
January 2014 and was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 29
January 2014.

Ms. Chan Hoi Ling resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee on 10 February 2014.
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DEEZLL SR
1IERB /BN S
6. Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the

chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee on 29 January 2014.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held two meetings with the
independent non-executive Director(s) without the presence of executive
Directors during the Year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Kuang
Hao Kun Giovanni and Mr. Xue Qiushi respectively. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations generally.

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Since the former Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chi Chi Hung Kenneth,
retired on 4 June 2014, Mr. Xue Qiushi, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, has temporarily taken up the role as Chairman of the Board for a
transitional period with a view to identifying a suitable candidate. Subsequently
on 9 June 2014, the Company appointed Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni, as an
Executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, and the Company has duly
complied with the Code Provision A.2.1 since 9 June 2014.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year, the Board complied at all times with the requirement of the
GEM Listing Rules that at least three independent non-executive Directors sit
in the Board (more than half of the Board members) and at least one of them
has appropriate professional accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules. As at the date of this Report, the Company in its best knowledge
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment of new Directors.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. According to the
Company’s Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment, and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after appointment. Other relevant Bye-
law states that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general meeting. A
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors should retire by
rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. The former Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter and Ms. Chan Hoi Ling, were not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at each meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company which was in effect before the Change of
Domicile (as defined in the section headed “Change of Domicile”) becoming
effective on 9 January 2014 (Bermuda time). The Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good corporate governance
practices of the Company in this aspect. Subsequently, all existing
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lam Kit Sun, Ms. Xiao Yiming and
Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens, are appointed for a service period of two years,
starting from the date of his/her appointment and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
adopted pursuant to the Change of Domicile. The Company has duly complied
with the Code Provision A.4.1 since 10 February 2014 following the resignation
of former independent non-executive Director Ms. Chan Hoi Ling.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Kuang Hao
Kun Giovanni, Mr. Xue Qiushi and Mr. Lam Kit Sun shall retire pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws as stated in the foregoing paragraph. All the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Board and the
Nomination Committee recommended their re-appointment. The Company’s
circular, to be sent to the shareholders of the Company, contains detailed
information of the above Directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.
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Continuous professional development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Besides, Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the current and former
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a Director of a listed company in compliance with the
CG Code on continuous professional development during the Year.

Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws,
Rules or Regulations

ESHEEXRR

EXTHREBEARAREENAEEIRET  URBBAR
AXBEPRBERNEE -

BENEZAEEEREZERANSREIES - %E&F‘%ﬁ%ﬂ*
ABIES|  MRZEERADAEEREE  L2EAE
%$E@<%‘J;¥¢&tﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ>&$ﬁEﬁxﬁE%EEIETE’UEE&%’E
% o

BESN -
SHMB LG BREEECNERINEMFERTHE
FEELER - ARRBRESLHABEMRNBER - K\
ABERTRAEEZLEREMOBHEEY  TEHERES
HERREIIRIE - BREAARRHAE -

EXE2EEANFESXER  BREERERRK

REBARNAFENLE  BERNEEENAFERETUT
BEHRLITRAREEAS  BERBRANE - ETER
FESXERNEEERTA -

Accounting/
Financial/Management or
Other Professional Skills

¥E%/EREA - RAISBEA a5t 9K EER
WEHER HiE ¥R
Attended Attended
Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/
Directors Materials Briefings Materials Briefings
HEWHE HEWHE
2= FEER [CE = FEER GRS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Note 1) BPERIB A (FHRET) v v v Vv
Mr. Xue Qiushi BMELELE v = V =
Mr. Chi Chi Hung Kenneth (Note 2) FEMRAE (HF2) vV v Vv Vv
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFBTES
Mr. Lam Kit Sun MREEHTSE Vv Vv Vv Vv
Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens (Note 1) % B (FTEET) V v v -
Ms. Xiao Yiming (Note 1) B —Ig 4+ (FfEE1) v v V =
Ms. Chan Hoi Ling (Note 3) ﬁ%,ﬂmﬁt (Bf3E3) v v v v
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Note 3) RAC L (D) Vv ) v -
Notes: Lik3
1. Ms. Xiao Yiming, Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens and Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni were 1. H—lSxt  ELEBEERBRELESFIR-_FT—NF—
appointed on 17 January 2014, 2 January 2014 and 9 June 2014 respectively. A+tB -2 NF—A-AR-T—NWFANBEZ
Fo
2. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth retired with effect from the conclusion of the 2. EHEAEDRK BT —HFNAMNBERITNERARR
Company’s annual general meeting held on 4 June 2014. %ﬁ&k‘;ﬁitixﬁz

3. Ms. Chan Hoi Ling and Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter resigned on 10 February 2014 and
29 January 2014 respectively.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lau Siu Cheong. The Company Secretary
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board so that
Board policy and procedures are followed. He has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The following statements, which set out the responsibility of Directors in
relation to the financial statements, should be read in conjunction with, but
distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 60 to 61
which acknowledges the reporting responsibility of the Group’s auditor.

Annual report and accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the annual
report and financial statements of the Company for the Year to ensure that
these financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance with
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Accounting policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Group
applies appropriate accounting policies that are consistently adopted and
makes judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting
records which disclose the financial position of the Group upon which financial
statements of the Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding assets
The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to

safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities within the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of the services provided by the Company’s
auditor, RSM Nelson Wheeler is analysed as follows:

REETI

BERARBZEBMPIREE(F
FISBNE DT

58 ) & 5HAD E RSP IR GRS

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Services rendered: REMRT -
Audit services %8RS 1,300 750
Non-audit services IR ERT 1,113 1,138
2,413 1,888

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders and the Group’s
assets and, with the support of the Audit Committee, for reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management.
External consultant was engaged to assist the Board to perform high-level
review of the internal control systems for its business operations and
processes. Such review covered the financial, compliance and operational
controls as well as risk management mechanisms and assessment was made
by discussions with the management of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES/FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Copies of minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to report
back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kit Sun (Chairman), Ms. Xiao Yiming and Mr. Yip
Chi Fai Stevens.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure of, and
determining the specific remuneration packages of, all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration (i.e. the model
described in the Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code is adopted).

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has performed the following
major tasks:

o reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company; and

. determined the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the member of the current senior management of the Group by band for the
Year is set out below:
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Ms. Xiao
Yiming. Mr. Lam Kit Sun possesses the appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

() To monitor the control procedures and the disclosures on the reporting
of the Company’s financial statements, and to review and discuss with
external auditor any significant financial reporting standards and
guidelines applied to the financial statements.

(b)  To consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to
be, reflected in financial reports and accounts, and give due
consideration to matters raised by the Company’s compliance officer or
external auditor.

(c) To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the
work performed by them, their fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of auditor.

(d)  To review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems.

(e) To review Company’s arrangements to enable employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, report on the
Company’s internal control and risk management review and processes and
the re-appointment of external auditor and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties. The Audit Committee also met
the external auditor twice without the presence of the executive Directors.
Besides, there is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditor.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive

Directors, namely Ms. Xiao Yiming (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Yip
Chi Fai Stevens.

BREES
EREECHZRBUINTERER  DRIRESELEE

(X))  MEFTEERE — Bt - MESTTERB(RIE
R ETRADIREEE S5t MM B EIRREMNE

BREEENIZREREUTEE

iz

ERANRYBHRRERNESTEFLRESE I
20 N B OMIBAZ BT &) 5 B 7 SRR SR ) (T B2 KB
BwEER RIS -

=

b)  EBERFBREMEKEPARREARROENEXR
I TSHEE  TREZBEAHARAANERIE
SRHMNBIZERAN IR A R IA

© 2FINEREEVETHIE  HBERAREBRGR &
ATEIMNEZHEH R - USRS EE B R
BRRESSRMEE -

d) BAARRFNMBEE  ANEERRERRERSE -

@ RIAARFEAEREEUVEPRARBNBER - K
ERELiRsl E fb 7 AT B B AE BV R IE B 1T R IR IR A
ke

RAFER  BREZBECEHMBEEREE - PHER
NBHIRRF - WA RRAEEE K AR E E e R
BIINERHEAMELRE AR EREE R TEETARE
FITH R - BERZ BT B ENTESEFENBER TEH
EZEEMBITMREE - Ity  EFERBEREE WA
BIEINEREMFESR AL -

REEES

REZBEH =R IFNTESMAENX
(X&) MEEREERERBAAE -

DRIBE KL L

30

GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and recommending any changes to the Board;
identifying qualified and suitable individuals to become Board members and
selecting and making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy adopted by
the Company on 30 August 2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The
measurable objectives set for implementing the policy are that selection of
candidates for appointment as a Director will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill, knowledge and length of
services. The ultimate decision will be based on merits and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
considers an appropriate balance of diversity perspective of the Board is
maintained.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge of the
candidate and the amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities, as well as the objective of the
Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Company. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process when
necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has performed the following major
tasks:

o made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Kuang
Hao Kun Giovanni, Ms. Xiao Yiming and Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens as
Directors and changes in the composition in the Board Committees;

o reviewed the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives and
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure the appropriateness in determining
the optimum composition of the Board; and

. assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition is set out in the following chart:  FTE# I ESSETAK DT ¢

No. of Directors
EEAY

6_

0
General Designation Ethnicity Nationality Ages Group Attendance Length of
—K £ £33 Bl%E FiR rate at Board Service
meetings Board
in 2014 REES
—T-E FH
Exged
HE=
Corporate Governance Functions B EERBAE

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code  #EE& B HETTEEXEDIAEREBE - EE2C W
Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance SRR R PEEEHRER TR  EELSREEA B M
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of  MIFEHERE AR A ETEEZLEERTNRERLE
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on  #7 » E<FCBIEER FHREDAIBER  UEARTETRES
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the — JASPRIRN A EEARMEELBBENEBR -

GEM Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has relied on Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as
the required standard of dealings (the “Required Standard of Dealing”) in
respect to any dealings in the Company’s securities by the Company’s
Directors and relevant employees. Specific enquiries have been made to all
Directors and they all confirmed they had complied with the Required
Standard of Dealings during the Year. No incident of non-compliance of the
Required Standard of Dealings by the relevant employees was noted by the
Company during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’ meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. According to the GEM Listing
Rules, all resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by
poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after each shareholders’ meeting.

Set out below are the new procedures for members to make proposals at
general meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as Directors
after the Change of Domicile becoming effective.

Procedures for members to make proposals at general meeting
other than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

1. The Company holds an annual general meeting every year, and may
hold a general meeting known as a special general meeting whenever
necessary.

2 Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all members having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (i) not less than 100 members, can submit a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at the annual general
meeting; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at a particular general meeting.

S The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal office at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
of the Company, not less than six weeks before the annual general
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and
not less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition.
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4. If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board (i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the member(s) concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/or
circulating the statement submitted by the member(s) concerned in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
members. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the member(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the member(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.

The following are the new procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director after the completion of Change of Domicile.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

If a member, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s), wishes to propose
a person (other than the member himself/herself) for election as a Director at
that meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal
office at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all members of that proposal, the written
notice must state the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, his/her biographical details as required by rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, and be signed by the member concerned and that person
indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

The period for lodgment of such a written notice will commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the notice is
received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to that general meeting, the
Company will need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in order to
(i) assess the suitability of the proposed candidate; and (i) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the proposal
to the members at least fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10)
business days prior to the general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available on the Company’s website.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal office at Room
1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal office. For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the Company’s principal office and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for communication with its
shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. Such policy will be reviewed by the Company
regularly to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing
regulatory and other requirements.
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The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining on on-
going dialogue with its shareholders as follows:

0] corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports, notices of meetings, listing documents and circulars
are issued in printed form and are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkex.com.hk and the Company’s website at
www.geth.com.hk in a timely and consistent manner as required by the
GEM Listing Rules;

(ii) corporate information and the memorandum of continuance and Bye-
laws of the Company are made available on the Company’s website;

(i)  periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company;

(iv)  annual general meeting and extraordinary general meetings provide a
forum for the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Company’s share registrar serves the shareholders in respect of
share registration, dividend payment, change of shareholders’
particulars and related matters.

CHANGE OF DOMICILE

On 19 December 2013, the change of domicile of the Company from Cayman
Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration in the Cayman Islands and
continuation as an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda (“Change
of Domicile”) and to adopt memorandum of continuance and Bye-laws in
connection with the Change of Domicile was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The
Change of Domicile and the adoption of the memorandum of continuance and
Bye-laws of the Company became effective on 9 January 2014 (Bermuda
time). The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company ceased
to be effective upon the Change of Domicile became effective on 9 January
2014 (Bermuda time). The details of the adoption of Company’s memorandum
of continuance and Bye-laws are disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
26 November 2013 and the Company’s announcements dated 12 November
2013, 19 December 2013 and 10 January 2014. An updated version of the
Company’s memorandum of continuance and Bye-laws is available on both
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (“Mr. Kuang”), aged 49, was appointed as
an executive Director, compliance officer and the chairman of the Company
since June 2014. He obtained a Bachelor Degree of Economics from LA Trob
University in Australia and is a member of the CPA Australia. He was
appointed as a director of corporate development of the Company since
October 2012 and is also the directors of some of the subsidiaries within the
Group including but not limited to Jade Fore Group Limited which holds
50.5% of the issued share capital of Apperience Corporation, Lucky Famous
Limited and Citi Profit Holdings Limited. Mr. Kuang has over 20 years of
experience in investor relations and equity capital markets. In accordance with
the letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Mr. Kuang,
Mr. Kuang would serve as an executive Director for an initial term of three
years commencing on 9 June 2014 and is subject to retirement from office
and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”), aged 30, has been appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company since July 2013. Mr.
Xue is a co-founder and a director of Apperience Corporation (a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and has served as its director and
president since March 2011. Prior to the founding of Apperience Corporation
and its subsidiaries in 2011, Mr. Xue served as the president of FX#R 2% 2,
AR AT (Chengdu AOBI Information Technology Co., Ltd.) from
November 2008 to March 2011, where he was responsible for its business
operations and research and development. Mr. Xue received his bachelor’s
degree in computer science and technology from the University of Electronic
Science and Technology of China (£ -F % A22) in July 2007. In accordance
with the letter of appointment made between Mr. Xue and the Company, Mr.
Xue has been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 5 July
2013 to 4 July 2016 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kit Sun (“Mr. Lam”), aged 37, joined the Company since October
2018. Mr. Lam graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in Accounting.
Mr. Lam has over 10 years’ experience in the field of financial reporting,
financial management and audit experience in China and Hong Kong. Mr. Lam
is a fellow and practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. From August 2008 to July 2011, Mr. Lam was
appointed as a non-executive director of Ruifeng Petroleum Chemical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8096, formerly known as Thinsoft (Holdings)
Inc), a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam was an executive director of Kiu Hung Energy Holdings Limited (“Kiu
Hung”) (stock code: 381), a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from October 2009 to July 2013 and he was
redesignated as a non-executive director of Kiu Hung on 1 August 2013.
Currently, Mr. Lam is an executive director, company secretary and chief
financial officer of Universe International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1046),
a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of DX.com Holdings
Limited (“DX.com”) (formerly known as EPRO Limited) (stock code: 8086) from
August 2013 to January 2015, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam was also the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Finsoft Corporation (stock code: 8018) from September 2013 to
January 2015, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. As at the date of this Report, the Company held 248,976,000
shares of DX.com, representing approximately 4.89% of the total issued share
capital of DX.com. In accordance with the letter of appointment entered into
between the Company and Mr. Lam, Mr. Lam would serve as an independent
non-executive Director for a term of two years commencing from 2 October
2013 to 1 October 2015 and is subject to retirement from office and re-
election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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Ms. Xiao Yiming (“Ms. Xiao”), aged 34, joined the Company since January
2014. Ms. Xiao graduated from the Harbin Institute of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in Management. Ms. Xiao has
over 10 years’ experience in the field of public relations. Ms. Xiao was a senior
manager of investor relations of a hotel chain in China. She was a consultant
of corporate communications and investor relations of a subsidiary (“PR
Company”) of a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange and whose subsidiaries are principally engaged in, among others,
the provision of advertising and public relations services. Ms. Xiao is currently
the chief representative of the Beijing Representative Office of the PR
Company and is responsible for offering consulting services in corporate
communications and investor relations to companies listed in Hong Kong as
well as to clients in initial public offering projects. The PR Company has been
providing consulting services in corporate communications and investor
relations to the Group since 2012. Nevertheless, Ms. Xiao is not a director,
partner or principal of the PR Company and Ms. Xiao is not or has not been
involved in providing such consulting services to the Group. In accordance
with the letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Ms.
Xiao, Ms. Xiao would serve as an independent non-executive Director for a
term of two years commencing on 17 January 2014 and is subject to
retirement from office and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens (“Mr. Yip”), aged 45, joined the Company since
January 2014. He obtained the degree of Master of Business Administration
from The Bernard M. Baruch College of The City University of New York in
1995 and a degree of Bachelor of Science with highest honours from The
College of Staten Island of The City University of New York in 1992. Mr. Yip is
proficient in investments in I.T. and software related industries and has
extensive experience in corporate finance, specialising in capital strategy
planning. In 2007, Mr. Yip founded an investment company which is principally
engaged in the investments in both listed and non-listed companies in the
Asia-Pacific region. Mr. Yip is also the director and a shareholder of a private
company principally engaged in trading of electronic components and
products. Mr. Yip has been a committee member of the 6th Committee of
Meizhou City of Guangdong Province of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since his appointment in January 2012 and is the
vice chairman of the 2nd Session of Board of Wanchai and Central & Western
District Industries and Commerce Association. Mr. Yip is also a director of
Phoenix Charitable Foundation Limited and the adviser to the North District,
New Territories East Region of the Auxiliary Medical Service, Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government of the PRC. In accordance with the
letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Mr. Yip, Mr. Yip
would serve as an independent non-executive Director for a term of two years
commencing on 2 January 2014 and is subject to retirement from office and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Siu Cheong, aged 41, was appointed as (i) the Company Secretary;
(i) the Authorised Representative and (iii) Financial Controller of the Company
since 1 August 2013. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
degree from the Curtin University of Technology in 1999 and is a member of
the CPA Australia. He has been the finance manager of the Company since
January 2010 and is principally responsible for, among others, the overall
financial management, financial planning and budgetary control of the Group
and carrying out company secretarial functions of the Group. Mr. Lau is also
the company secretary of some of the subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau
has over 15 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their report (“Report”) together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 30 July 2001 and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability on 9 January 2014 (Bermuda time).
Its shares have been listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since 31
December 2001, and the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong is at Room 17083, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while the Group is principally
engaged in (1) research and development and distribution of personal
computer performance software, anti-virus software, mobile phone
applications and toolbar advertisement, (2) provision of website development
services, e-learning products and services, (3) investment in securities, (4)
money lending business, (5) provision of insurance and MPF schemes
brokerage services and (6) provision of corporate management solutions and
IT contract services during the Year. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 62 to 195 of this Report.

The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final dividend for the Year
(81 December 2013: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of operations
of the Group for the Year is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 68 of this Report and in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the reserves available for distribution to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$558,140,000 (2013: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws, or

the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR AND OTHER
BORROWING

Except for the director’s fee payable, there are no amount due to a Director
and loans from a Director as at 31 December 2014.

The details of other borrowings during the Year are set out in the section
headed “Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure” of this Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property plant and equipment of the Group and

the Company during the Year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s total turnover for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

Turnover
= the largest customer: 22%
— five largest customers in aggregate: 38%

The percentages of Group’s purchases for the Year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:
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Purchases

— the largest supplier: 30%

= five largest suppliers in aggregate: 69%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Group’s events after the reporting period are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
196 of this Report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Reference is made to note 42 “Material Related Party Transactions” of Notes
to the consolidated financial statements (“Note 42”) and the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Interests in Contracts” in this Report. The transactions set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests in Contracts” and the related party
transactions of Verde Apparel Limited and Verde Garment Manufacturing
Limited for the Year disclosed in Note 42 were also classified as the continuing
connected transactions of the Group under the GEM Listing Rules. The
transactions between Lujolujo and each of Verde Apparel Limited and Verde
Garment Manufacturing Limited still constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules after Mr.
Mok Kwan Yat, who is a substantial shareholder of Lujolujo resigned from the
position of a director of Lujolujo on 8 August 2014, and the subscription of
shares of GET Mdream by Prosperous Glory Asia Limited, a company wholly-
owned by a director of a subsidiary of the Company, as disclosed in Note 42
also constituted a connected transaction of the Group under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. All of the above transactions did not constitute any
notifiable transactions under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules and were
fully exempt from the requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, nor their respective close associates had any interest in
a business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the Year.

DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Report
are:

BEER

RAEFER  HEEFLAREZTAZETHEALMEME
REEEBERLURZBRRATEBRBFER (REEX
TERRON) s BB (A He AR

=

REFERBERAREAH  EEEHNT

Appointed on Resigned/Retired on

RUT BHEEE R BEBHME B
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman) BRiR A (/) 9 June 2014
ZE—NFRANA
Mr. Xue Qiushi (Chief Executive Officer) BT E ok (TTBAESE) 5 July 2013
—E—=FtAAA
Mr. Chi Chi Hung Kenneth FEELAE 8 July 2010 4 June 2014
—E-EFLANR —E—NFSRAMA
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFEHITES
Ms. Chan Hoi Ling PREVEZ L 30 July 2010 10 February 2014
—E-ZEFtLA=1+A —ET-MFE=-A+H
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RECKE 30 July 2010 29 January 2014
I = =] —Z-WFE—-A=+NH
Mr. Lam Kit Sun MG A& 2 October 2013
—ZT—=%+AZH
Ms. Xiao Yiming H—Igx+ 17 January 2014
—E-MNFE—-A++H
Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens B A 2 January 2014

—T—-mMF—H=H

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. As such, the executive Director, Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni, will
retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 84 of the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (8), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-
election. Mr. Xue Qiushi and Mr. Lam Kit Sun will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 37 to 40 of this Report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. Remuneration packages of the Directors are
determined by the Board, upon recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, with reference to their respective background, experience, duties
and responsibilities with the Group and the prevailing market conditions.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of independence were
received from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules and all existing independent non-
executive Directors are considered to be independent by the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS AND DIRECTORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the GEM Listing Rules.

The emoluments of the executive Directors and Independent non-executive
Directors are determined by the Board and to be authorised by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting with reference to
their respective background, experience, duties and responsibilities with the
Group and the prevailing market conditions.

Apperience has entered into a service agreement with Mr. Xue Qiushi for his
appointment as the deputy president of Apperience for a term of 3 years
commencing from 5 July 2013. The service contract may be terminated by not
less than 3 months notice in writing served by either party expiring at the end
of the Initial Term or at any time thereafter.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

A copyright licence agreement (“Copyright Licence Agreement”) was entered
into between Apperience as licensee and Chengdu AOBI Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (“PRC Company”) (a company owned as to 35% by Mr.
Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”), an executive Director), as licensor on 18 February 2013
pursuant to which the PRC Company granted to Apperience an exclusive
licence to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” registered in the name
of the PRC Company in the PRC at nil consideration for a period from the date
of the Copyright Licence Agreement to (i) the date on which the relevant
copyright is transferred from the PRC Company and registered in the name of
Apperience in the PRC; and (i) the date on which the copyright of “Advanced
SystemCare” has been registered in the name of Apperience in the United
States (whichever is the earlier). On 1 July 2014, the Copyright Licence
Agreement was terminated.

A new copyright licence agreement (“New Copyright Licence Agreement”) was
entered into among Both Talent International Limited (“Both Talent”), a
subsidiary of Apperience, as licensee, the PRC Company, as licensor, and
Apperience as of 1 July 2014 pursuant to which the PRC Company granted to
Both Talent an exclusive licence to use the copyright of “Advanced
SystemCare” registered in the name of the PRC Company in the PRC for a
period from the date of the New Copyright Licence Agreement to the later of (i)
the completion of registration of the assignment of the copyright to Both
Talent in China; and (ii) the completion of registration of the copyright of
“Advanced SystemCare” in the name of Both Talent in the United States as
part of the Group’s internal reorganisation. Such transactions did not
constitute any notifiable transaction under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing
Rules and were fully exempt from the requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Save for the New Copyright Licence Agreement, in which Mr. Xue (an
executive Director) is interested through his shareholding in the PRC
Company, none of the Directors is or was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance or arrangement subsisting
during or at the end of the Year which is significant in relation to the business
of the Group. No Director had any direct or indirect interests in any assets
which have been acquired or disposed of by or leased to, or are proposed to
be acquired or disposed of by or leased to, any member of the Group at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year save for the Copyright Licence
Agreement and the New Copyright Licence Agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the then ordinary shares of the
Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
Chapter 571 under the laws of Hong Kong) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules,
were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares
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Approximate

Number of percentage
Shares of the total
and underlying issued share capital
Name of Director Capacity in which the Shares are held Shares held of the Company
(Note 1)
FrREIR A3 R HAEQR 2P BT
EEnA BERBZED HEROEE RABHOE D
(M3E1)
Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”) Interest in a controlled corporation and 254,817,389 13.03%
interests deemed under sections (Note 2)
317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO (Mtst2)

ERE ([RELED R EE R MR IR F R AT E GRAIE 317(1)(@) &
318 IR A A KR

Notes: Liks3

i The total number of the 1,954,124,877 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2014

have been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

2. Ace Source International Limited (“Ace Source”) (being one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company whose interests are set out in the section headed
“Substantial shareholders and other persons who are required to disclose their
interests” below) is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue. As such, Mr. Xue is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares/underlying Shares held by Ace Source
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Based on the Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice
— Interests in Shares of Listed Corporation filed by Mr. Xue dated 10 November
2014, among these 254,817,389 Shares/underlying Shares, 184,204,969 of
which were underlying Shares with an exercise period from 31 March 2013 to 31
March 2017 and can be exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.432 per Share.

1. BOBPHER-_TE—NE+-_A=1+—BHBEETRMHA
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2. Ace Source International Limited ([ Ace Source] * BZARRFE
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the associated
corporation of the Company

RADEREEERD RAAERONER

Approximate
percentage of
the associated
corporation’s

Name of the Capacity in which Number of issued share
Name of Director  associated corporation the shares are held shares capital
ERBEEE 1T
EEnR HBEEEE BERGHNE D BRHEE RABHBE D
Mr. Xue Apperience Corporation (“Apperience”) Interest in a controlled 3,882,391 18.79%

corporation (Note) ordinary shares

% E Ak

BESE A Apperience Corporation ([Apperience ) SYREEERS (faE)

Note: Ace Source is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue. As such, Mr. Xue is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Ace Source in Apperience (being
an associated corporation of the Company) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save for the zero coupon convertible notes issued by the Company in
accordance with the acquisition agreement dated 15 November 2012 (as
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 11 December 2012) in
relation to the acquisition of 50.5% of the issued share capital of Apperience
and the performance shares which may be issued by the Company in
accordance with the terms and conditions of such acquisition agreement in
which Mr. Xue is interested (through his holding of shares in Ace Source,
being one of the vendors of Apperience), at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors and chief executive, their respective spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 December 2007, the existing Share Option Scheme was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting. Such
scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to either the Directors or
employees of the Group and to help the Group in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional quality employees and to provide them
with a direct economic interest in attaining the long term business objective of
the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period commencing
from its adoption date and expiring at the close of business on the tenth
anniversary thereof, after such period no further options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in
respect of any options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet
exercised.
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Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for shares granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme (the “Option”), the eligible participant shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. The Option will be
offered for acceptance for a period of 7 days from the date on which the offer
is made. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant or grantee (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12 month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1 % of the shares in use at the date of grant.

The exercise price for shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be
less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
trading day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; (iii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the ten trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iv) the nominal value of the
share on the date of grant.

On 19 May 2011, the Company has granted 6,200,000* share options to a
consultant of the Company under the Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price of HK$0.116* per Share.
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R RERTOFHRTE : RVBRORELEBNE
-

—T——FARATNA AARRBERESEIRTEE
FAR0. 11678 T M AR Al — & B 1% H16,200,00017 B A 4E -

a %

Details of the movements in the share options granted under the Share Option  1RIBIERET 2R LB ER A EE NS BB T ¢
Scheme during the Year are as follow:
Number of share options
BREZA
Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted exercised Lapsed as at
price 1 January during during during 31 December
per Share 2014 the Year the Year the Year 2014
B-g-me Hog-me
—-B—H rEE +=-A=+-H
BRITHE i RATHE KEERE o6 KEEXN i RATHE
Date of grant Exercise period HK$ '000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
REBH T BT T T T T TH
19 May 2011 20 May 2011 to 19 May 2014 0.116" 6,200 - - 6,200 -
(Note)
—E—FRA+NA —Z——FRA=Z+AZE
“Z-mERATAR
(FitzE)
b After the adjustment for share consolidation dated 18 July 2011. * BEHBR=-ZT——F+ATN\BOROEHAE -

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant to the
commencement of the exercise period.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are also set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this Report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme under the existing 10% limit is 12,314,052
shares, representing approximately 6.3% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

i BRERBHEREANERTERMGEARL -

BRERT BIFHE M E N AR A M IS IR MEEST ©

RAREBR  RIBENE10% LR - BREAEE T #
BITHRM B EAH12,314,0528% * HERARRIEETR
AK496.3% °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS

WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of SFO were

as follows:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

FERREEMATHREESZNAL

RIB-—MFE+-A=+—H BRERFIARATHAE
Sh AT AT SRR P - R R E R
BRARBES REPEBEOIEXVEIBE2 X35 MEA LR Kk
ZHEBER AR BREE S LB EPIF 336 RAFE

BB LMAOERIOARLT

RO RBERONERE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the total issued
Shares share capital
and underlying of the Company
Name Capacity Shares held (Note 15) Notes
HAEQXR 2
PR IR A5 2EITRE
R iHE BHES L
HE LR 55 RZEE (PE15) B3
DX.com Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 186,046,500 9.52%
DX.com#ZR B R A A EnEBA
Wise Action Limited (“Wise Action”) Beneficial owner 102,401,978 5.24% (1)
BRERAR(TEE]) EmliB A
Rosy Lane Investments Limited (“Rosy Lane”) Interest of a controlled corporation 102,401,978 5.24% (1)
Rosy Lane Investments Limited ([Rosy Lane|) =424 B # 25
Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Interest of a controlled corporation 102,401,978 5.24% (1)
Limited (“‘HK EDU INTL”")
EEHE (BB REEEAR QA R EE kR
(s 1=03))
Access Magic Limited (“Access Magic”) Beneficial owner and interests 260,130,873 13.31% 2)
deemed under sections 317(1)(a)
and 318 of the SFO
Access Magic Limited ([ Access Magic |) BEnlEA ARIREES KRS KD
8317(1)(a) & 318 &R
HEENER
Dong Yuguo (“Mr. Dong”) Interest of a controlled corporation 260,130,873 13.31% @), 3)

and interests deemed under sections
317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO

ERR(ELEED A E R RIRRE S KRS
5£317(1)(a) & 318 I HAR EHE B M2
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the total issued
Shares share capital
and underlying of the Company
Name Capacity Shares held (Note 15) Notes
HARDT 2
FrisRD 2RITRAE
S&iE] BABEDHL
HE BB 55 BB E (MizE15) B3
Ace Source International Limited Beneficial owner and interests 254,817,389 13.03% 4)
(“Ace Source”) deemed under sections 317(1)(a)
and 318 of the SFO
Ace Source International Limited BEnEa ARIBEES RS KD
(l'Ace Source) 317(1)(a) & 318 IR VEHER OB
Wealthy Hope Limited (“Wealthy Hope”) Beneficial owner and interests 260,130,873 13.31% )
deemed under sections 317(1)(a)
and 318 of the SFO
Wealthy Hope Limited ([ Wealthy Hope ]) E=nE ARBEES KIS G
E5317(1)(a) & 318 AR VEE A BV
Chen Liang (“Mr. Chen”) Interest of a controlled corporation 260,130,873 13.31% (5), (6)
and interests deemed under sections
317(1)(@) and 318 of the SFO
Broe ([BR&EE]) PR R MR E S L E &
317(1)(a) & 318 IR VEHER OB
Well Peace Global Limited (“Well Peace”) Beneficial owner and interests 260,130,873 13.31% (7)
deemed under sections 317(1)(a)
and 318 of the SFO
Well Peace Global Limited ([Well Peace |) BEnlEa ARIREES KA KD
£5317(1)(a) & 318 &R VEE A BV 2
Lian Ming (“Mr. Lian”) Interest of a controlled corporation 260,130,873 13.31% (7), (8)
and interests deemed under sections
317(1)(@) and 318 of the SFO
gR(lEEED PR s MR E S B &S
317(1)(a) & 318 IR VEHER M
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il L.P. Beneficial owner and interests 260,130,873 13.31% 9)
(“IDG-Accel”) deemed under sections 317(1)(a)
and 318 of the SFO
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il L.P. BEnlEa ARREES RS KD
([DG-Accel]) £5317(1)(a) & 318 &R VEE B BV
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the total issued
Shares share capital
and underlying of the Company
Name Capacity Shares held (Note 15) Notes
LR N e
PR IR A5 ERITRAE
S&iE] BABEDHL
HE a8 g5 R EE (FEE15) P T
IDG-Accel China Investors Il L.P. Beneficial owner and interests 260,130,873 13.31% (10)
(“IDG-Accel Investors”) deemed under sections 317(1)(a)
and 318 of the SFO
IDG-Accel China Investors Il L.P. BEnEa ARIBREES REBAEED
(MDG-Accel Investors |) 317(1)(a) & 318 IR VEVER O ME 2
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il Associates Interest of a controlled corporation 260,130,873 13.31% 9), (10),
L.P. (“IDG-Accel Il Associates”) (17)
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il Associates 1A B #E 25
L.P. ([IDG-Accel Il Associates |)
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Il Interest of a controlled corporation 260,130,873 13.31% 9), (10),
Associates Ltd. (“IDG-Accel GP II”) (11)
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP II XY EE S
Associates Ltd. ([ IDG-Accel GP Il ])
Zhou Quan (“Mr. Zhou™) Interest of a controlled corporation 260,130,873 13.31%  (9), (10),
(17)
Az RELE] R EE
Ho Chi Sing (“Mr. Ho™) Interest of a controlled corporation 260,130,873 13.31%  (9), (10),
(11)
Ho Chi Sing ([Ho 5t 4 1) EEE R
THL A1 Limited (“THL") Beneficial owner and interests deemed 252,537,388 12.92% (12)
under sections 317(1)(a) and 318
of the SFO
THL A1 Limited ([ THLJ) B e AR IERE 5 R A& 50
317(1)(a) & 318 IR VEVER O ME S
Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”) Interest of a controlled corporation 252,637,388 12.92% (12)
FERIERR B R AR ([ R EE S
MIH TC Holdings Limited (“MIH TC Holdings”) Interest of a controlled corporation 252,537,388 12.92%  (12), (13)
MIH TC Holdings Limited ([ MIH TC Holdings]) 5212857 @4 2
MIH (Mauritius) Limited (“MIH Mauritius”) Interest of a controlled corporation 252,537,388 12.92% (12), (13),
MIH (Mauritius) Limited ([ MIH Mauritius ] ) SPREE R (14)
MIH Ming He Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 252,537,388 12.92% (12), (13),
(“MIH Ming He”) (14)
MIH Ming He Holdings Limited RiEE R
(MIH Ming He)
MIH Holdings Proprietary Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 252,537,388 12.92% (12), (13),
(“MIH Proprietary”) (14)
MIH Holdings (Proprietary) Limited XA E S
(['MIH Proprietary )
Naspers Limited (“Naspers”) Interest of a controlled corporation 252,537,388 12.92% (12), (13),
Naspers Limited ([ Naspers ) YR A B S (14)
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Wise Action is wholly owned by Rosy Lane. Rosy Lane is wholly owned by HK
EDU INTL. Each of HK EDU INTL and Rosy Lane was deemed to be interested in
all the 102,401,978 Shares held by Wise Action pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Access Magic was interested in 36,349,166 Shares/underlying Shares in the
capacity as the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested in 223,781,707
Shares/underlying Shares in accordance with sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the
SFO. Among these 260,130,873 Shares/underlying Shares, 184,204,969 of which
were underlying Shares.

Access Magic is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Dong. As such, Mr. Dong is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares/underlying Shares held by Access
Magic pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ace Source was interested in 51,496,340 Shares/underlying Shares in the
capacity as the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested in 203,321,049
Shares/underlying Shares in accordance with sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the
SFO. Among these 254,817,389 Shares/underlying Shares, 184,204,969 of which
were underlying Shares. Ace Source is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue.
As such, Mr. Xue is deemed to be interested in all the Shares/underlying Shares
held by Ace Source. Mr. Xue is a director of Ace Source.

Wealthy Hope was interested in 9,086,831 Shares/underlying Shares in the
capacity as the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested in 251,044,042
Shares/underlying Shares in accordance with sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the
SFO. Among these 260,130,873 Shares/underlying Shares, 184,204,969 of which
were underlying Shares.

Wealthy Hope is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen. As such, Mr. Chen is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares/underlying Shares held by Wealthy
Hope pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Well Peace was interested in 9,086,831 Shares/underlying Shares in the capacity
as the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested in 251,044,042 Shares/
underlying Shares in accordance with sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO.
Among these 260,130,873 Shares/underlying Shares, 184,204,969 of which were
underlying Shares.

Well Peace is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lian. As such, Mr. Lian is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares/underlying Shares held by Well Peace
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

IDG-Accel was interested in 128,212,804 Shares/underlying Shares as the
beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested in 131,918,069 Shares/
underlying Shares in accordance with sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO.
Among these 260,130,873 Shares/underlying Shares, 184,204,969 of which were
underlying Shares.

IDG-Accel Investors was interested in 10,485,913 Shares/underlying Shares as
the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested in 249,644,960 Shares/
underlying Shares in accordance with sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO.
Among these 260,130,873 Shares/underlying Shares, 184,204,969 of which were
underlying Shares.

ft s

EREWRE

S Rosy Lane 2 &% A  Rosy Lane I BEAHE BB 2 E
#A - RIEBEFHRBEEASEXVE - FEKRE R & Rosy
Lane & B R MER B B FT#F 2 #5102,401,978 RIR D F #E A
s e

Bl

Access Magic JA B 25 A A & 9 7 36,349,166 I A 15, 16 #E
B EAER  WREEHFRBEENEI17(1)@ k318
1448 1E 1 45 223,781,707 B A% 15,/ HREE IR D 25 - RZE
260,130,873 i A% 15, 1B AR 15 7 - 184,204,969 A% 4 48 A A%

o

Access MagicHE R A2 EEmiA - Bt - RIEFEHFLH
EIEBIEXVED - B S £ AR 1ER Access Magic FT#3 & #8 A%
19,/ HHRER D R A -

Ace Source A B 25 A A & 51 51,496,340 IR A% 15, A8 #A A%
A EL  WREESFRAEEGIZEI17(1)@) K318
AR 1E ¥ A 203,321,049 B 19 MR D i 25 - N &
254,817,389 [ ik 15, AERBAAR 1 FF - 184,204,969 % A 1HEE A%
3 o Ace Source HEESLEZ B EREA ° Rt - BEA AR
1B Ace Source FTH 2 ZBAX 1D/ HRRAMR D PG HERS - EE sk
4 5 Ace Source I & = -

Wealthy Hope A & % # B A & 5 129,086,831 B i& 15 #8 B
B HEAER  WREEHFRBEENEI17(1)@ k318
1R (B 5 251,044,042 IR B% 15,/ R EA IR D 25 - RZE
260,130,873 i A% 15, 1B AR 1D A - 184,204,969 A% 448 A A%

o

Wealthy Hope RFR e - 2 E s i H - Bt - RIBEEHF LY
BEROIFEXVER - BR5E A 4R Y57 Wealthy Hope FT 15 2 88 i
19/ BRI th A s o

Well Peace A E 25 B A & 579,086,831 &A% 15,/ HH A 15
RHA R - WIRIEEH R EE GG 317(1)(@) & 318 {5
BAEHE B251,044,0428 B 10 HEHBERR D IR - R SE
260,130,873 A A 1, HE BB 15 H + 184,204,969 % /43 18 BE AR

5o

Well Peace HE R4 2 BB HEH - At - BRIEZHRHE
16451 55 XV &+ 38 4 45 AR VE A Well Peace i 2 888X 1048
R RiEA R

IDG-Accel AE =B A & 51 128,212,804 B i 17 #8178 A%
DHREA R WIRIEESREAEIEHIE317(1)@) k3181
AR fEHE 131,918,069 B 19 HHRAIR D 2k - N& %
260,130,873 A Ax 15, 1B RARR 1D 7 + 184,204,969 A% 4 18 B AR

%o

IDG-Accel Investors LA & = # A A & 5 1210,485,913 A% A%
19,/ R D A R - WIREBES R EEEHIE317(1)@)
K 318 164545 {E A 249,644,960 B ik 15,/ 1R RARE (D 42 o A
%% 260,130,873 i i 15/ FE AR (D R + 184,204,969 A 7318
BARRS ©

B

[&BIRAR/ F3R 2014

53



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

11.

12.

13.

14,

®.

IDG-Accel GP Il owns the entire equity interest in each of IDG-Accel Il Associates
and IDG-Accel Investors. IDG-Accel GP Il is 50% owned by Mr. Ho and 50%
owned by Mr. Zhou. As such, each of Mr. Ho, Mr. Zhou and IDG-Accel GP Il was
deemed to be interested in all the Shares/underlying Shares held by IDG-Accel Il
Associates and IDG-Accel Investors.

IDG-Accel is wholly-owned by IDG-Accel Il Associates. As such, IDG-Accel Il
Associates was deemed to be interested in all the Shares/underlying Shares held
by IDG-Accel pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Based on the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Tencent on 30
October 2014, THL is wholly owned by Tencent and as such, Tencent is deemed
to be interested in all 252,537,388 Shares/underlying Shares held by its controlled
corporation THL pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. THL was interested in 7,819,500
Shares/underlying Shares in the capacity of beneficial owner and 244,717,888
Shares/underlying Shares in other capacities. Among these 252,537,388 Shares/
underlying Shares, 184,204,968 of which were underlying Shares.

Based on the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by MIH TC Holdings
on 4 November 2014, THL is wholly owned by Tencent and Tencent is 33.64%
owned by MIH TC Holdings. As such, MIH TC Holdings is deemed to be
interested in all the 252,537,388 Shares/underling Shares held by its controlled
corporations THL and Tencent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Based on the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Naspers on 4
November 2014, THL is wholly owned by Tencent, Tencent is 33.64% owned by
MIH TC Holdings, which is in turn 90% owned by MIH Mauritius. MIH Mauritius is
wholly owned by MIH Ming He, which is in turn wholly owned by MIH Proprietary.
MIH Proprietary is wholly owned by Naspers. Based on the above relationship,
each of MIH Mauritius, MIH Ming He, MIH Proprietary and Naspers is deemed to
be interested in all the 252,537,388 Shares/underlying Shares held by their
controlled corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The total number of the 1,954,124,877 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2014
have been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any other person
who, as at 31 December 2014, had or was deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

B EXEESN -

IDG-Accel GP 11 5 5I|# A IDG-Accel Il Associates } IDG-Accel
Investors & BP A% # © IDG-Accel GP Il B Ho %4 & AL £ 5 5
BB 50%#m o Hit - Ho st & « A5t & K IDG-Accel GP 11
B 1% 18 1 72 IDG-Accel Il Associates F IDG-Accel Investors Fit
FE ARG, BRI GD PR A R o

IDG-Accel f IDG-Accel Il Associates 2 & A ° Hit » RIEE
#H M HEFEEHIZEXVED - IDG-Accel Il Associates #48 1EH IDG-
Accel FT# 2 EpA% 1,8 RERR (D P A #Eas ©

RIEBMR S —NF+ A= TRREENLETERFBMN -
THLEREAZEHE - Bt - RIEBFHFRBEERGIEXVE
[ 53 AR 1 A B 2 A B THL AT 4% 2 #6252,537,388 % %
D/ BEBRGFREEEEZ - THUAEEZEBA TSR
7,819,500 iR B 15/ HEMR D R BB - YAEHMBEHR
244,717,888MX 1 /BB R A E R R&Z F
252,537,388 [ ik 17, A8 RAAL 1 HF - 184,204,968 ik A 46 REE A%

o

RIEMIH TC Holdings A = ZE—M&F+— ANBIREMN T EE
EZEREAM THEKMEZERAR  MEABAMHTC
Holdings # 4 33.64% 4235 ° EIlt + IRIEFEFH K HE EHIEXV
&0 * MIH TC Holdings # 1R {ER H 52 1A B THL R FTH 2
#8252,537,388 & Ak, HERARR (D R A 25 o

BiENaspers R ZZE—F+— ANBRENTCEFTERE
WA THLEEEAMZE% A - B BMH TC Holdings # &
33.64% #E % il MIH TC Holdings 1 MIH Mauritius %% 5 90%
# 3% ° MIH Mauritius 8 MIH Ming He 24 % * MIH Ming He
Fi MIH Proprietary 2 & # 4 ° MIH Proprietary i Naspers 2 &
WA AR LR REFHFRBEEAEXVE  MH
Mauritius * MIH Ming He ~ MIH Proprietary 52 Naspers & B #
AR H S A E P i 2 38 252,537,388 B B 17, 18 BE A% 15
hEA RS

RZE-—WEFF+_A=ZT—HHEZRTROHEHK
1,954,124,877 RIR 17 B AIEAH EBAB DL ©

RZF-—WF+ZA=+—H  BEEMH

A BEEMALTRRD ARG T - EEREEFELR
TEREA EAIARBEE S LB EPIEXVEE 2 K35 FEA
XA R B 22 P R S B A AN A BRI R 55 I I B 14911 55 336
GPrTF B B MAVER SR A
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
Year save for the deviations as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 21 to 36.

APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 2 January 2014.

Ms. Xiao Yiming was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 17 January 2014.

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter resigned as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 29 January 2014 in order to devote more time to his business.

Ms. Chan Hoi Ling resigned as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 10 February 2014 in order to devote more time to her business.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung Kenneth retired as an executive Director and Chairman of
the Board with effect from 4 June 2014 and did not offer himself for re-election
due to his personal commitment which required more of his time.

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni was appointed as an executive Director and
Chairman of the Board with effect from 9 June 2014.

CHANGE OF DOMICILE

On 19 December 2013, the change of domicile of the Company from the
Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration in the Cayman Islands
and continuation as an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda
(“Change of Domicile”) and the adoption of memorandum of continuance and
bye-laws in connection with the Change of Domicile was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company. The Change of Domicile and the adoption of the memorandum of
continuance and bye-laws of the Company became effective on 9 January
2014 (Bermuda time). The memorandum and articles of association of the
Company ceased to be effective upon the Change of Domicile became
effective on 9 January 2014 (Bermuda time). The details of the adoption of
Company’s memorandum of continuance and bye-laws were disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 26 November 2013 and the Company’s
announcements dated 12 November 2013, 19 December 2013 and 10
January 2014. The latest version of the Company’s memorandum of
continuance and bye-laws is available on both the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

EREWRE

EEERTA

BERAR  REEXERREFE 21 230 EMEBEREBE L -
RABRAFE —BETRIER ETRRMSE+ RHFIH0SF
ANEST -

ESZERERME

EEBAEDREZTABY N TES BT —NF—A
ZHBER -

B ISRt EEEZERBILIFRTES
THERRER -

FECELEHEBLFATERE BT —HNF—A
“TABBEN - AR EZRREEAS E

RIEXTEREBIIIRNTESE BT HF_A+H
RAER - URHE SR RRIERS EH o

EEBREEERENTESRESEIRE BT —HUEX
AMBRER  BTEEREE  URRESREREAS
T

BEBELCEZERPTESRFRESFTZIR AT N
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Ef

RZZ—=F+=ZA+hB  KXRARERKNRQF RS
RE L - BRRHERSESH M REE FEE0
LERGARRNFE  BAARBMASHEEMEaRE
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B AERTE o AR ETFEALE R A 740 A ) 58T b A B B
AT R A A R AL 6]
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 15 October 2014, the change of English name of the Company from
“M Dream Inworld Limited” to “GET Holdings Limited” and the adoption of “%5
SIERAERR A7) as the new Chinese name of the Company to replace “Bf &
JE N RAER AR for identification purpose only (“Change of Company
Name”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company.

Subsequent to the passing of a special resolution in relation to the Change of
Company Name by the shareholders at the special general meeting held on
15 October 2014, the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda on 23 October 2014
certifying that the Company has changed its English name to “GET Holdings
Limited” with effect from 21 October 2014, being the date of registration as
set out in the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. The new Chinese name “ & S12i¢ G R
A A]” has also been adopted as the new Chinese name of the Company to
replace “Bt 2 )& BB R A7 for identification purpose only.

The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong
Kong Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on
14 November 2014 certifying that the new English name of the Company has
been registered in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

LITIGATION

On 19 June 2014, the Company announced that Apperience and BlueSprig,
Inc. (collectively, the “Defendants”), both being indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, were named as defendants in a litigation
(“Litigation”) filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California (“US Court”). The Litigation was pleaded as a class action by an
individual as plaintiff (“Plaintiff”) on his own behalf and purportedly on behalf of
other purchasers of Advanced SystemCare PRO product (“ASC”) against the
Defendants in respect of ASC, one of the principal products marketed by
Apperience to combat malware and improve computer performance.

In the Litigation, the Plaintiff alleged, among other things, that ASC did not
deliver the marketing promises as advertised and that the free trial version of
ASC induced consumers to purchase the full version of ASC by providing
misleading diagnostic scans. The Plaintiff alleged that he and the class were
entitled to damages of at least US$5,000,000 as well as relevant legal fees.

ERRATERE

RZZE—MFE+A+AB  AARIMHEXEEH [M Dream
Inworld Limited | 3 244 [ GET Holdings Limited | + 37 524} [ %9
SERARAT] BRAQTRFH XL - LEREHRZR
Rge [M2EHIERERAF] ([EXRAREE]D  BER
RATRRERBIAGEARRRRELAE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

On 25 July 2014, Legal counsel retained by the Defendants in the United
States (“US Legal Counsel”) filed a motion to dismiss the Plaintiff’s claims in
their entirety on the grounds that the Plaintiff’s claims failed to state claims
cognizable under the US law. The Group understands that to seek damages
on behalf of a class of purchasers, a plaintiff is required to convince the US
Court that class proceedings are appropriate under the circumstances. US
Legal Counsel believes that certification of the Litigation as a class action
would have been inappropriate because, among other things, individualized
issues would predominate over common issues of law or fact.

On 31 October 2014 (Pacific Time Zone), the US Court granted Defendants’
motion to dismiss and dismissed all of the Plaintiff’s claims asserted against
Defendants on the ground that the Plaintiff had failed to the claims upon which
relief could be granted. The US Court concluded that the Plaintiff had failed to
allege the problems on his own computer that the software had failed to cure
or how Defendants’ alleged marketing statements were false. The US Court
also found that the Plaintiff had failed to provide a notice of breach to the
Defendants within a reasonable time after discovering the breach as required
by the California Commercial Code. The US Court gave Plaintiff permission to
move to amend his complaint on or before 14 November 2014 (Pacific Time
Zone).

The Plaintiff, however, did not move to amend his complaint on or before 14
November 2014 as required and the deadline for the Plaintiff to file such
motion has expired.

The US Court entered final judgment against the Plaintiff and in favour of
Defendants on 17 November 2014 (Pacific Time Zone). Because the Plaintiff
failed to appeal the judgment within the statutory time frame, the final
judgment is now non-appealable and any claims asserted by the Plaintiff
individually in the litigation, or that could have been asserted, are now
extinguished. Because plaintiff did not obtain certification to proceed on behalf
of a class, the final judgment pertains solely to Plaintiff’s individual claims.

The Company will make further announcement(s) to inform its shareholders
and potential investors of any material development of the litigation as and
when appropriate.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes in operation for the Year
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets and performance shares which
may be issued in connection with the Apperience Acquisition are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed
to equity security price risk due to the fluctuation of share price of available-
for-sale financial assets and the changes in the Company’s share prices to the
extent that the Company’s share underline the fair value of performance
shares. The Directors regularly review the exposure to the equity security price
risk on the available-for-sale financial assets. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group is exposed to this risk through the contingent consideration
shares arising from the Apperience Acquisition as disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, if the share prices of the available-for-sale financial
assets and the Company’s own shares had increased/decreased by 10%, the
other comprehensive income and loss after tax for the Year would have been
HK$7,315,000 (2013: HK$5,378,000) lower/higher and HK$1,323,000 (2013:
HK$8,732,000) higher/lower respectively, arising as a result of the fair value
gain/loss of the available-for-sale financial assets and performance shares.
Details of other Group’s financial risk and analysis are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

KEY OPERATION RISKS

Operation risk in Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business

We have expanded our business to include the provision of insurance and
MPF schemes brokerage services and our subsidiary, GET Mdream is a
registered member of the Professional Insurance Brokers Association (“PIBA”)
to carry out long term (including linked long term) insurance and general
insurance lines of business. This new business may expose us to additional
risks, for example, we rely on the consultants to carry out the sale function of
this new business. Although the Group has provided suitable training to the
consultants and adopted suitable guideline and policy, it is still possible that
the consultants, who are registered with PIBA as technical representatives and
engaged by the Group, may involve in mis-selling in the process of negotiating
and selling of contracts of insurance and, in some cases, MPF schemes. We
may also expose to compliance risk as insurance brokerage is a highly
regulated industry in Hong Kong. The Group will need to incur additional costs
to ensure compliance with the relevant rules and regulations. Non-compliance
with such rules and regulations may result in significant penalty or other
potential liabilities to the Group. The Directors and GET Mdream will closely
monitor the operation of GET Mdream in the future.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Operation risk in Wafer HK

The operation of Wafer HK depends on a limited number of key suppliers for
supply of products. Any disruption to the business or operation of those
suppliers, or to their ability to supply and deliver the products with
merchantable quality and on time, could significantly affect the Group’s ability
to fulfill customers’ demand on a timely basis. As a result, the Group’s
relationships with the customers, sales and results of operations may be
adversely affected. As at the date of this Report, the Directors were not aware
of any material adverse change in the relationship between key suppliers and
Wafer HK.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference.
The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee currently comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kit Sun, Ms. Xiao Yiming and Mr. Yip Chi Fai
Stevens (the chairman of the Audit Committee). The Audit Committee met on
a quarterly basis during the Year. The Company'’s financial statements for the
Year have been reviewed and discussed by the Audit Committee before any
disclosure and release of information.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR

On 31 October 2013, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, who acted as auditor of
the Company, resigned and RSM Nelson Wheeler was appointed as the new
auditor of the Company. The details of the change of auditor are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 October 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

RSM Nelson Wheeler has been appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill
the vacancy left by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited on 31 October 2013.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Nelson
Wheeler, who will retire and be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-
appoint auditor and to fix their remuneration.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni

Chairman

24 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

@) RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

GET HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS M DREAM INWORLD LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GET Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 62 to 195, which comprise the consolidated and
Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

. =N
A EmR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

2014 2013
—F—MmE —
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FET FHET
Turnover ) 7 234,293 92,105
Cost of sales FHE KA (89,629) (17,957)
Gross profit EF 144,664 74,148
Other revenue EAUg A 8 2,700 1,353
Other gains and losses, net H bl sk M E1E - FEE 9 23,951 (205,051)
Selling and administrative expenses HERITHAX (62,160) (32,226)
Profit/(loss) from operations BRI (BA) 109,155 (161,776)
Finance costs BhE A A 11 (1,209) (14,602)
Share of profit of an associate FE(E — BB AR AT 33 -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBLALER(BE) 12 107,979 (176,378)
Income tax Frig#i 13 (19,000) (6,798)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERT(FE) 88,979 (183,176)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: UTALEEREERR(HE) :

Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE 2 =N 17 52,737 (207,410)
Non-controlling interests TR 36,242 24,234
88,979 (183,176)
(Restated)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF(FE) 18 (E=3)
Basic HAK HK35.44 cents (HKB380.72 cents)
35.44 74l (380.727%41l1)
Diluted e HK32.05 cents N/A
32.05 7l TiE A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reBmMEMEERER

AE-F-ME+-A=+—AILFE
(LAETTHIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FERT FAxT
Profit/(loss) for the year NEERF () 88,979 (183,176)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEUWES : 19
Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A E#HHIEEEza0ER -
Exchange differences on translation of financial ~ #T&E &SN B A R B FS IR E A
statements of overseas subsidiaries PEH Z%8 (31) (78)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial AEHEEREEATEA K
assets 26 5,611 -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AfHEeREEATEBEER
financial assets 26 (20,732) (26,253)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss on  gtAJ &S R EERIEEE
impairment loss on available-for-sale RESEHDEARE
financial assets 26 20,732 26,253
5,480 (78)
Other comprehensive income for the year, #&FEHMEmEUE @ HIBRBIIE
net of tax 5,480 (78)
Total comprehensive income for the year HEE2EURZEELE 94,459 (183,254)
Attributable to: BT AL FE :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ ¥ =N 58,225 (207,475)
Non-controlling interests FEFEARRE & 36,234 24,221
94,459 (183,254)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

sre MR

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZE—WF+=A=+—H

(AETTIIR)

2014 2013
—F—MmE —
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FET FAxT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB K 20 3,008 1,017
Investment property "B 21 = 42,000
Intangible assets B EE 22 74,853 56,980
Goodwiill EES 23 525,878 500,166
Investment in an associate R E QA RNIEE 25 21,196 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 26 73,150 53,778
698,085 653,941
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 27 14,772 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEKFIR 28 78,195 25,783
Pledged bank deposits BEHEPRITER 30 2,431 621
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESEEY 30 148,906 70,409
244,304 96,813
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 31 99,065 4,932
Performance shares RIS 33 14,331 52,037
Current tax liabilities EHRIEAE 54,525 35,034
167,921 92,003
Net current assets REBEERE 76,383 4,810
Total assets less current liabilities EELERARBEE 774,468 658,751
Non-current liabilities FEREBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEAE 34(a) 6,592 4,222
Convertible notes AR ERE 32(b) - 12,744
Performance shares RIERMD 33 - 52,531
6,592 69,497
NET ASSETS BEFE 767,876 589,254
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZE—WF+=A=+—H
(A TTEIR)

2014 2013
—F—MmE —
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
gz FTHET FHET
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital A& A 35 19,541 492,562
Reserves R 36 706,811 61,194
Equity attributable to owners of the Company — ANAF#A AfE(F#EZS 726,352 558,756
Non-controlling interests AR RS 41,524 35,498
TOTAL EQUITY MR 767,876 589,254
Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015 KEFeN _T—RAF=A_+MUAE
Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni Xue Qiushi
BENE
Director
EF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IAR

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZE—WF+=A=+—H

(AETTIIR)

2014 2013
—F—MmE —
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FET FAxT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 20 548 574
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A ARIIRE 24 = -
548 DS
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B8 A RIRIE 24 673,183 640,120
Prepayments and deposits FENFRIEBERERS 28 331 208
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESEEY 30 19,026 24,389
692,540 664,717
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and other payables e B A RE M ERFKRIA 31 1,802 2,294
Amount due to a subsidiary JE—RIM B A RFRIE 24 2,428 -
Performance shares RIS 33 14,331 52,037
18,561 54,331
Net current assets REBEEFE 673,979 610,386
Total assets less current liabilities EELERARBEE 674,527 610,961
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Convertible notes TR ZEE 32(b) - 12,744
Performance shares RIBRMD 83 - 52,531
- 65,275
NET ASSETS BEFE 674,527 545,686
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RIS R

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
gz FHET FHET
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital A& A 35 19,541 492,562
Reserves R 36 654,986 53,124
TOTAL EQUITY MR 674,527 545,686
Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015 KEREEN _T—RAF=-A-t+mB#A
Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni Xue Qiushi
B=E BENE
Director Director
3 EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I\‘/ A 1;4'_/\/\“2\:“\@]%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREARE
Share Convertible Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed option note equity Exchange revaluation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus resene resene resene resene losses Total interests equity
TEERE i
ey b ] Réze  RRERR RERE EXgs it BithE g FERER EL ]

HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$00
TR TR TR TR TEL TR TERL TERL ThRL TEL TEL

At1 January 2013 H-%-z§-R-8 124889 206,661 6426 30 6,605 § - (206,816) 138,080 - 138,080
(Loss)proftfo the year TEE(S } /i - - - - - - - (410 (410 623 (183,176
Other comprehensive income ﬁm% - - - - - (65) - - (65) 13 78
Total comprefiensive income for the year KER2ENGLE - - - - - (2] - (o410 (2o7478) UM (183254)

Issue of convertile notes on 31 March 2013 )i =
notes 3210)and 39(p) RATEREE

(i 30 R 9p) - - - - 32520 - - - 32520 - 30509
Arisng from acuision f subsidares HENRATEE
(note 390) (&30 - = = = - S S - - %640 2840
Shares issued on conversion of convertle notes FATAREEREORG
(notes 32, 35(¢)and 33(d) (3. 35()&35( ) 37673 28274 - - (318,086 - - - 297861 - 297861
Diicends paid o non-controling nerests BRI M& EHRE
(10te24) = = = = = = = = = (15,169 (15,169
Transfer to contiouted surplus (note 36(ol) - 408,253) 408253 - - - - - - - -
Changes nequity forthe year KERRAED 37673 (150979) 408253 - 7204 - - - 623,151 1nan 634428
At 31 December 2013 and at 1 January 2014 RoE-zE+Zf=1-B
R-%-RE-E-8 192,562 16,682 414679 30 13809 60 - (1428 563,756 349 569,254
Proftfor theyear KERER = - - - - - - 5781 578 B2 8979
Other comprehensive income Eh2EdE - - - - - ] 5511 - 5408 ] 5480
Total comprehensive income for the year TEERAkGEE - - - - - 23 5511 ZARI 58,225 36284 94459
Arising rom acquistion of a subsidary WiE-EMBARNEE
(ot 39) W - - - - - - - - - 1729 1729
Deemed disposal of partal nterest
ina subsidiary note 39(e) - - - - - - - 1026 10% 976 2002
Performance shares issued on 6 June 2014
(note 35(e) 552 (38639 - - - - - - 291 - 2914
Share opion lapsed fnote 37) - - - (310 - - - 310 - - -
Share consolidation and capta reducton on t
18.July 2014 e 350 HRAAK RSN
(Rizk3som) 30011) - 550011 - - - - - - - -
Shres issued for acquistion of subsidares SHERERR
(notes 35 and 39) i 1660 75% - - - - - - %3% - 236
Placing of shares (note 35(g) 319 34276 - - - - - - 37469 - 37,469
Sheres issued on conversion of convertle notes
(notes 32(c) and 35(d) B ESQ(D]&Sﬁ{d), 35 291 - - (13809 - - - 13567 - 13567
Dividends peic o non-contoling nterests BIRAFERERNRE
(note 24) (i) - = = 3 - S & B - (2913 (22913
Changes i equi forte year rEREREE [73.021) 50,164 550011 310) (13809) - - 1336 114371 (30.208) 84,163
At31 December 2014 HZ%-REt=AZt-R 10541 96846 964690 = = (2] 551 (360,59 156352 5% 167,876
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RAEIRE

HE_Z—NF+_A=1+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

mMER

2014 2013
—=2—NF —E-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FHTT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHEESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AR, (EE) 107,979 (176,378)
Adjustments for: "
Bank interest income RITHFBUA (7) (278)
Amortisation b3 13,221 8,783
Depreciation e 661 467
Fair value gain on investment property WEYENFEEKS (1,300) (32)
Finance costs BVE R A 1,209 14,602
Fair value gain on performance shares RERG A FEERE (57,323) (72,618)
Share of profit of an associate JE Al — P B i 2 B & R (33) -
LLoss/(gain) on disposals of subsidiaries HERBATINER, (W) 326 (6,895)
Commission clawback provision 18 < [l 03 B 5 4,500 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AtHEERmEERERSE
financial assets 20,732 26,253
Impairment loss on goodwill EERESRE 8,211 257,496
Impairment loss on intangible assets B R AR 4,875 831
Impairment loss on property, Y - BB REREREEE
plant and equipment 176 -
Operating profit before working capital changes %2i& & & & &) i )48 =@ 7 103,227 52,231
Increase in inventories FEEM (15) -
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 I H i FEUGR I 3 hn (20,335) (7,336)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 N E b FEAS OB b0, CRt2)
payables 24,662 (16,084)
Decrease in amount due to a director R —RERRIERD = (401)
Cash generated from operations CEEBMELRS 107,539 28,410
Income tax refunded/(paid) RE(BA)FEH 873 (228)
Net cash generated from operating activities RS EEEARSF5 108,412 28,182
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

2014 2013
—=2—NF —E-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHTT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHEESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash outflow from acquisition of assets ERWE-ENBRARTIKREESE
through acquisition of a subsidiary MRS R R 39(c) - (41,748)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries  UYtEEHI B A TR SR AEEE 39(a)
and (b)
39(a) % (b) 1,670 42,124
Bank interest received RITFBEUA 7 278
Expenditure on development projects BREERZH (22,063) (18,066)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BT IR B A0 (1,006) (621)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARRBSRAEE
— Dragon Oriental Investment Limited — Dragon Oriental Investment
Limited 39(d)() 21,547 -
— Five Stars Development Limited — Five Stars Development Limited
and its subsidiary REMEAT 39(d)(ii) - 12,858
— Refine Skill Limited and its subsidiaries — Refine Skill Limited &2 EL I AR 39(d)(ii) = 6,013
Proceeds from deemed disposal of partial WEABHE—RHBAR
interest in a subsidiary BRSNS HOR 39(e) 2,002 =
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEHRIESMEE (34,593) (80,031)
Purchase of property, BEWE  WERE&H
plant and equipment (1,604) (786)
Net cash used in investing activities RERHRAESFE (34,040) (79,979)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeaRleRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z—NF+_A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FTHET Fi#T
CASH FLOWS FROM METHEESRE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BEAFLE (386) (58)
Interest on convertible notes paid SRR EE P BN = (143)
Proceeds from placing of shares Be &A% 19 B AT 1S 3R IE 37,469 =
Loan raised FEER 11,000 -
Repayment of loans BIBER (11,000) (3,108)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests B IR IR AR AR RS A0 AR B (32,913) (15,163)
Net cash generated from/(used in) g RS mELS, (FrR)

financing activities BEFE 4,170 (18,472)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BeRBESSEYWEM CRD)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BHE 78,542 (70,269)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNSTE R BB 2 (45) (59)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—BHNESRRSEEY

1 JANUARY 70,409 140,737
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Rt+-ZA=+—HHRER

31 DECEMBER BEEEY 148,906 70,409
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH BERREEEBYIN

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B MR1THER 30 148,906 70,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GENERAL INFORMATION

GET Holdings Limited (formerly known as M Dream Inworld Limited) (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 30 July 2001 and continued in
Bermuda on 9 January 2014. The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at
Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(*GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 24.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000) unless otherwise stated. Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 January 2014. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(*HKAS”); and Interpretations.

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2014:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents
which qualify to be an investment entity as defined in the
amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are required to measure
their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These
amendments do not have an impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be an
investment entity.

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

—RER

BHERERAR (RIEESE NERERAF) (TR
AR RZEE—FLA=ZTHERESHESEMK
MAERERBRAE YRZE—MF—ANBER
REFHE o AR B M= E A7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° &6+
DEEMIATR BT ETITEBIORERKNEITE
1703 % ©

RARROREBMERZA AR AR (THZAT])
BIER(TRIER]D LT - ARBIMEBEBFARE
R HWE AR (ERARE S IAEEDH
FEZBEHNIWT24

BIEREH  BRIGAMBRRATEL(TET)
MERTIH - BIL(EBT) ARRBEMINEEE R
REBEHHREE -

BT REETERBMBHREENRSR
E

RAEER AEBORAFERESEGHTAE
(BB EHMAE)BHHET RIS TSR BE
SRB| ((BEAHBREEN])  RPLARAREE
BAEM  BER-T—mE—A—BRRNEIERE
o EBIGHEER EEBHBRSLA (F5
BmaRAl))  BEREPER (B R
ES

(a) R REETEBUHREER

AEEEH-T—mE— A — B BANMRE
R IR A TR -

FBB KRR E 105 - BB BEREE
RIE 129 REEBEFHERIE 27 HAIIEET - £
BEE

ZEETHRNAEIETERMBRELNE
10RRAENREEEBNBRTNGEEARE
ko RABRARATEERERTHERS
HITB AR c ARARRLNFAIREEREY
T HRFETHLEGERMBRRLBE
e -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

Amendment to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

This amendment clarifies that the right of set-off must not be
contingent on a future event. It must also be legally enforceable
for all counterparties in the normal course of business, as well as
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment
also considers settlement mechanisms. The amendment did not
have a significant effect on the Group financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

The amendments reduce the circumstances in which the
recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is
required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required, and
introduce an explicit requirement to disclose the discount rate
used in determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable
amount based on fair value less costs of disposal is determined
using a present value technique. The amendments do not have
an impact on these consolidated financial statements as the
recoverable amounts of assets or cash-generating units have
been determined on the basis of their value in use.

HK (IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to pay a
levy imposed by a government should be recognised. The
amendments do not have an impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the Group is not currently subjected to
significant levies.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

RAFAT REETERBMBHREENRSR
E (%)

@

FER#R] R AMERT & B I BB EER ()

EBEE R ERRMIEET A HEE
KRR E

IIRIERT BB R TS BUR AR R E -
TMBAEIER B BT REROEMS Ej]
BEIWESHOBERTIEMERSEFK
EBAT o WWRIERTE Z RAEEKS] o IIRERT
HAKENPBHRRLBEATE

BB BRI EI6 RN REH2HE
ERYEIEEE

ZERROARBEEESREEN BTN
B ENER - EERENRERFHARER
MEE AR E S8 (ER A FEERBERE)
- R EE AN EERE (R E) B R R 5| A
BUWRE - R EEFRSEL BTN AIEE
SRREGEREBEET  REMZETHILS
REMBHRRLBTE

BB (ERAEBRERBEZRE)E2159 #
B

ZRBERXNBABENE AR THERRFRE
3l - ARAEERFHRAUNEARE - Z
BRI B U FEEMBRRERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN == =]
Re SRR M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. BFMFITIRKLETEBUERELENRR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND iE (#&)
REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued) () FERAFITRLBITEBMBEREZED(E)
Amendments to HKFRS 2 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB IR ERE 2 S ET (B BB R
2010-2012 Cycle) HRA - FE—TFE R T E AR EEN

#)
This amendment clarifies the definitions of “vesting condition” IBETEE BB G I R TSGR N ES -
and “market condition” and adds definitions for “performance WA TRBIEMS] R [RBIEH] HOEE B
condition” and “service condition”. The amendment is applicable BT A RAIEEEEARNKRLERRAT
prospectively to share-based payment transactions for which the —EEA—BRZBUARDAERSZH - A
grant date is on or after 1 July 2014 and had no effect on the WARE RN EEGRE G RRIBUTE o

Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB IR ERE IS ET (BB
2010-2012 Cycle) HRA - E—TFE R T E AR EEN
#)

This amendment, applicable prospectively to business BT ARATE R EEANKERRA =T
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July —FEEA—BRZEHEBEH  HELM
2014, requires any contingent consideration that is classified as SEREEXEBERIERN) WSIAREER
an asset or a liability (i.e. non-equity) to be measured at fair value REREBRRAFEEFE  MAFEESE
at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in BRINERANER - BRIETHRNERGE M
profit or loss. It had no effect on the Group’s consolidated BRI AL o

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 13 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB IR R E 135S ET (BB B

2010-2012 Cycle) FRA - E—TFE R T E AR EEN
#)

This amendment to the standard’s basis for conclusions only UL EANEET M AR IR IR AR B D P IR JERE IR

clarifies that the ability to measure certain short-term receivables BERGEETRBAEEHRENROBEE

and payables on an undiscounted basis is retained.

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) CEMERKRERNFITIREETER
effective B RS 2 A
The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that REBEVEEREAEREMESRR - —H
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year F—A—BRBENTREE £ RES
beginning on 1 January 2014. The directors anticipate that the A BBV IEIRELER - ERTEAI T REEET
new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s BB BREEA BN ERSERNEELEE Y
consolidated financial statements when they become effective. TmE P RMA - AEBF EFE (WER) FTE
The Group is in the process of assessing, where applicable, the HE P AR SR HA R AR S 3T 2] RRASHE 3T B A B 75 5
potential effect of all new and revised HKFRSs that will be ERANBERE  BREEBERENIR
effective in future periods but is not yet in a position to state KIEFT R REERETHEREEER
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material SRR IERERTE

impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

List of New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions*
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle*
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014

Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Company’s first financial year commencing
on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance
on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact is
unlikely to be significant.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value). Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

RAFAT REETERBMBHREENRSR
E (%)

(c) FEBQERA

RIBEFHE B D ENEH (F622F ) £ 35815 + #%
BHIFEIOBEMIER KRB OBTCHRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve relating to that
subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN

wIN[E 7

ypE esdiiE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwil

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the consideration
transferred is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of
the consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(@

Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated exchange reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not
remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

Statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(i)~ Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction

dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

(e)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
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Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of lease HELH BAREROREH
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lease and their estimated useful lives, ARFHUREER%E -
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Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the lease term, if shorter MENEEE SEFHEH(MER)
Office equipment 3-5 years WAER 3E5F
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years BRREE 3E5%
Computer hardware and software 3-5 years BB RS 355
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

U]

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable
to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value based on valuation by an external independent professional
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised as intangible assets if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note 3(s)).
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Customer relationship and computer software with finite useful
lives are stated at cost, being the fair value at the date of
completion of the business combination, less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Development costs on e-learning products 3 years
— Development costs on personal computer 2-9 years
performance software, anti-virus software
and mobile applications (“Computer and
Mobile Phone Software”)
— Customer relationship 10 years
— Computer software 6 years

The residual values, useful lives and amortisation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Operating Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AE-F-ME+-A=+—BILFE
(LAETTHIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEFEEK(E)

() Inventories i &®E
Inventories represent finished goods which are stated at the FERRKA RIS FERNE T HOEREEA
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using BRABIAK SR o FOARIRSTIE ST BT E o [
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated BFETIR— R EBBREP NG SERMGE
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated TLIRARREITIHE AR St ARGTH -
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

() Contracts for services i) BREEHN

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts from variation
orders, claims and incentive payments arising from professional
I.T. contract services. Contract costs incurred comprise
equipment and material costs, subcontracting costs, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of work completed to date to the estimated total work
of the relevant contract. Where the outcome of a contract cannot
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated
as an amount due to contract customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESTEEKE)

V)

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are
initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either investments classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. These investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
in profit or loss.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as trade and other
receivables, or financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
in other comprehensive income, until the investments are
disposed of or there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve are reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. Dividend and interest calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

(m)

Investments (continued)
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, are measured at cost less impairment
losses.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. An impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the
impairment is the difference between the receivables’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the impairment is recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEESTBER(E)

(n) Cash and cash equivalents n) BRERBEESEEY
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash HEEMEERME B RBRESEEMIERT
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand RFBEEAS  BHRARRITREMIBHEENE
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short- HATE FUA K AT BE RS H i A B MEREEIR & A Ak
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into XEEZHEABRTANEHSERBIRE - A
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of RERKEEVENAEEREEETELHH
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand RITBEINMFAABRERRSEEBY 5 ©
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

(o) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (0) =®MEERERAIA

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at

ERABREATARAITZAENZHNAR
AR EBHERESENATSREBREAT
AWERNE - RATARRRINGAE AE
BAEEEERHRERNEL o TXERIIFHEF
TeBMABEREATARANE KK

() BN

ERNTRAFEENGRAEEZ HK
AR HRRAERNREIZBHEK

amortised cost using the effective interest method. EHE o
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the EBROERTBEE  RIRERZE

Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
that consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity of the Group, is included in equity as convertible
note equity reserve. The liability component is carried as a
liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based on
their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The
portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

If the note is converted, the convertible note equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the convertible
note equity reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Performance shares

Performance shares are classified as a financial liability as
it is resulted from a contract under contingent
consideration arrangement. The amount will be initially
measured at fair value. The subsequent fair value change
will then be measured at fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESTEEKE)

(o) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) (o) 2HMEBRBAIAE)
(v)  Equity instruments ) HKRAITA
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded RARBEITHRATAZEWATSKIE
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. R EBE BT ANAR o
(P) Revenue recognition P) WARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

WARE WS ERAREN A FEERTE - M8
B g 7 A AN SR 1B A R 75 B MR A R B AR (4
)RR SR ER - BIIRASRIBRER

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in U
profit or loss as follows:
() Service income () FRIEHA

—  Revenue from website development is recognised — AR ARR RS R
when the services are rendered. o

—  Revenue from software application, e-learning - EHERFR -ETETFER
platform and maintenance services is recognised on #eE RIS B A TE BRTS & 4V BRFE
a straight-line basis over the term of the service REBEER
contract.

—  Revenue from corporate management solution - DEEBMATRBRBEEHARE
service contracts and professional |I.T. service FEMBHERBE A LB WA TR
contracts is recognised on the percentage of STADLLFEER  HB2EL
completion method, measured by reference to the SBETK IELIEREE AT 4
proportion of work completed to date to the TEEMLLHIFTE - MENER
estimated total work of the relevant contract. Where BOEAISERTE - BIRAEGRAT
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured EE A RIS ATUR B HRESR ©
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

(i) Sale income (i) PHEHA

Revenue from the sale of application software, sale of
goods hardware and software is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold.

HERAEM - HEEM  REMEMT
YR ATE B o P AR O B KR B e e
BREETRRR  EAEEEATHR
BRTEESENERMARERNER
% MBS E M BRI A RIE
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Loan interest income

Interest income on loans are recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When a loan
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash receipts for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

Toolbar and advertisement

Toolbar revenue is derived principally from online toolbar
private label arrangements with toolbar service providers.
The Group allows the toolbar service providers to launch
their toolbar installation application associated with the
installation of the Group’s software. One part of the toolbar
revenue is received from the service providers based on
number of qualified installation. Another part of toolbar
revenue is from search-based income. When the users
use the search engine incorporated in the toolbar to
search for goods and services, and they purchase the
goods and services from the advertisements listed in the
search result, the toolbar service provider will share part of
the revenue it receives with the Group.

Income from advertisement is derived principally from
online advertising arrangements. The Group enters into
advertising arrangements with advertisers to allow them to
put advertisements on particular areas of the Group’s
electronic platforms, or embedded hyperlinks to
advertisements in the Group’s electronic platform. For the
hyperlinks embedded in the Group’s websites, the
advertisers pay the Group based on number of clicks on
the hyperlinks.

The Group recognises revenue when the revenue can be
measured reliably and the collectability is reasonably
assured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(@)

Revenue recognition (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Commission income

= Commission income from provision of an online
shopping platform is recognised when the services
are rendered.

= Commission income from insurance and mandatory
provident fund schemes brokerage services is
recognised on an accrual basis based on the
commission of the respective insurance policies and
mandatory provident fund schemes.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits

()

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair
value of the services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value is
measured at the date the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_T—
(LA TTER)

ME+-—A=+—RILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEESTBER(E)
(u) Related parties (continued) (u) PBEEER (&)
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following B) (HEMEEGEUATGRE  ARAEAE
conditions applies: ESEE=] )
i) The entity and the Company are members of the (i) ZERBEARTBR —EEK
same group (which means that each parent, 8 BIEENEAF - WEBAF
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the K2 B Z BB 2 7 B ABRAEE o
others).
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (ii) ZERAZ —ERNBEATK
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a EENE HIZ—EEAKER
member of a group of which the other entity is a AIMEEE TR E ARNBE R
member). AR B -
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEERYARR-—F=FH&%
party. -
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) *Fa‘ﬂﬁﬁa?f‘: HE=FEBHE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. ﬁ% MZz»—BRRZE=
L) NG
(v The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v ERAMAEESE(IEAEE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BEERANES N & R E B
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a BRAETE - MAKERSFEA
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to BAETEl - IREEBAVE F IR
the Group. K= 5 @ -
(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (v EREANEMIEATEGSH®
person identified in (A). ] o
(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence (vi)  A)EFIEATHERBEEAY
over the entity or is a member of the key ENARERAERIAFTER
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent EBABZ— -
of the entity).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets, except goodwill, investment
properties, investment in an associate, available-for-sale financial
assets, inventories and receivables of which the impairment
policies are set out in notes 3(b), 3(f), 3(c), 3()ii), 3(i), and 3(m)
respectively, to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESTEEKE)

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities (w) BERIREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use (“VIU") of the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill
at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$525,878,000 after an impairment loss of approximately
HK$8,211,000 was recognised during 2014. Details of the
impairment loss calculation are set out in note 23.

(b) Recoverability of intangible assets

During the current year, the management has evaluated the
impairment of intangible assets by way of higher of value in use
calculation by reference to the discounted cash flows derived
from financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group or fair value less cost to disposal with reference to the
latest market transactions (“FVLCTS”). If the higher of the VIU or
FVLCTS is less than the corresponding carrying amounts, an
impairment loss may be required.

(i) Development costs on Mobile Phone Software

During the year, the Group reconsidered the recoverability
of its internally-generated intangible asset arising from the
Group’s Computer and Mobile Phone Software
development, which is included in its consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2014 at
approximately HK$61,618,000. The project continues to
progress in a very satisfactory manner, and customer
reaction has reconfirmed the Group’s previous estimates
of anticipated revenues from the project. However,
increased competitor activity has caused the Group to
reconsider its assumptions regarding future market shares
and anticipated margins on these products. Detailed
sensitivity analysis has been carried out and the Group is
confident that the carrying amount of the asset will be
recovered in full, even if returns are reduced. This situation
will be closely monitored, and adjustments made in future
periods, if future market activity indicates that such
adjustments are appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(@

Recoverability of intangible assets (continued)
(ii) Customer relationship and computer software

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for customer relationship and computer
software at the end of the financial reporting period. An
impairment exists when the carrying values of the assets
exceed their recoverable amounts, which is the higher of
FVLCTS and their VIU. In determining the fair values, the
valuer has utilized a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their
judgments and are satisfied that the method of valuation
and inputs used are reflective of the current market
condition.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets reflect
management’s estimation on the Group’s intention to derive
future economic benefits from the intangible assets. The
management performs annual reviews of whether the
assumptions made of useful lives continue to be valid. When
useful lives of intangible assets are different from those previously
estimated, the amortisation charges for future periods will be
adjusted accordingly.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The useful lives and residual values are estimated at
the time the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in market demand or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives and residual
values continue to be valid. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$3,008,000 (2013:
HK$1,017,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e)

U]

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group had available-for-sale investments which were stated
at their fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period, on an individual basis. Any gains
or losses are recognised as a separate component of equity until
the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously reported in equity is included in profit or loss.
Management has to assess whether objective evidence of
significant impairment exists and consider whether it is
appropriate to charge the cumulative loss to profit or loss. In
making its judgement, the Group considers (i) the future prospect
of the underlying investments; and (ii) the underlying financial
position of the investments.

During the year, approximately HK$20,732,000 (2013:
HK$26,253,000) of impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets was charged.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques and considering information from a variety of sources,
including the latest financial information from the fund manager.
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material effect on the
fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
an available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology as well
as operational and financing cash flow.
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4. BERHAGREZZMEFT(E)

(continued)

() Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets fH FAHEELREENLTEE (FE)
(Continued)
If declines in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets below WA HHESMEEN D FEEREERKAE
cost were considered significant or prolonged, additional WRAERSRE - BT AELEINRE -
impairment may be required.
The carrying amount of available-for-sale financial asset at the RENTERMEEIEX 20,732,000 8 T (=%
end of the reporting period was approximately HK$73,150,000 — =% :26,253,0008 )% - AJEHESH
(2013: HK$53,778,000) after an impairment loss of approximately EERREHARMREE AL 73,150,000 7%
HK$20,732,000 (2013: HK$26,253,000) was recognised during TT(ZZE—=4 : 53,778,000 7C) °
the year.

(9) Trade and other receivables (90 EZRkHEMEWRKIE
The aged debt profile of trade and other receivables is reviewed RNEETE R E 5 R EMBUGRIENIRE -
on a regular basis to ensure that the debtor balances are TR EWBAR A RR AT TURE] - 3 AT A B TE B (E
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if the B A MR R ER IR 1T E) - AT - A H
agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However, from time AJRE TN EEEHAR o & EIER RS SRR AT
to time, the Group may experience delays in collection. Where e iFsE - BIRAEEERERFERK
recoverability of debtor balances is called into doubt, specific W B S R H A FE R IR A SR BRES D AT LA K
provisions for impairment losses are made based on credit status HisHa sk st BB EBEL S ERE - 5Tk
of the customers, the aged analysis of the trade and other WRIB R REX H R BRI TURE - HEEE AR
receivable balances and their write-off history. Certain receivables ARIE /BRI & N SE A BE I E 0 -
may be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently become WEELBHENE S REMEKGRIER TKE
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of the related MEFTSRE - AR B EEE -
receivable to the statement of profit or loss. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for which provision
are not made could affect the results of operations.

(h) Income taxes (h) Fis#
The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. REBERFRZERVEERPTEN - REE
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide FIRE WA HBEREELERGR - R
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and HEEKBED  BARERXHRAEHHINE
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain EREBIE - REERBREIINIELS I
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised HE REEESERRAG - MUEESEE
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether MRETRIEA NS L& - AIAHE
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these BEET A BIRENMEE R IERERE
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, (FE o
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year, approximately HK$19,000,000 (2013: FR - REFHEEREFFTE - 419,000,000 7
HK$6,798,000) of income tax was charged to profit or loss TT(ZZF— =4 : 6,798,000/ T) W EHE
based on the estimated profit from operations. T AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

U]

0

Estimation of commission clawback

The Group reviews the carrying amount of commission clawback
at the end of the reporting period and estimates the expected
cash outflows related to commission clawback. The estimation
requires the Group to make estimates of the expected future
occurrence of commission clawback by the product issuers and
the expenditure required to settle the obligations. Details of the
commission clawback are set out in note 31(c) to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2014 commission clawback provision
amounted to HK$4,500,000 (2013: HKS$Nil).

Revenue and profit recognition

The Group estimates the percentage of completion of the
contracts for services by reference to the proportion that the
stage of work performed to date to the estimated total costs for
the contracts. When the final cost incurred by the Group is
different from the amounts that were initially budgeted, such
differences will impact the revenue and profit or loss recognised
in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$8,422,000 (2013: HK$Nil) of
revenue from the contracts for services was recognised.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities
and United States dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The effects of a strengthened or weakened Hong Kong dollars
against US$ on the profit after tax is not significant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets and performance
shares are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price
risk due to the fluctuation of share price of available-for-sale
financial assets and the changes in the Company’s own shares
prices to the extent that the Company’s own shares underlie the
fair value of performance shares. At the end of reporting period,
the Group is exposed to this risk through the contingent
consideration shares arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 39(b). The directors review the exposure to
the equity security price risk on the available-for-sale financial
assets regularly.

At 31 December 2014, if the share prices of the available-for-sale
financial assets and the Company’s own shares increase/
decrease by 10%, the other comprehensive income and profit
(2013: loss) after tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$7,315,000 higher/lower (2013: HK$5,378,000 lower/higher)
and approximately HK$1,197,000 lower/higher (2013:
HK$8,732,000 higher/lower) respectively, arising as a result of
the fair value gain/loss of the available-for-sale financial assets
and fair value loss/gain of the performance shares.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had concentration of equity
security price risk on one of its listed securities investments in
Hong Kong and one unlisted investment fund which accounted
for 64% of its available-for-sale financial assets as at 31
December 2014 and of equity security price risk on their shares
of the Group.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had concentration of equity
security price risk on its listed security investments as all of its
available-for-sale financial assets represented one listed company
in Hong Kong which was engaged in provision of professional
information technology contract and maintenance services,
e-learning business and provision of online sales platform, and of
equity security price risk on its share of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has concentration of credit risk
as three largest trade receivables represent approximately 56%
of total trade receivables as at 31 December 2014 which are the
largest trade receivables each of the Group’s Money Lending
Business, Software Business and Insurance and MPF Schemes
Brokerage Business.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had concentration of credit
risk as approximately 60% of total trade receivables as at 31
December 2013 was due from the Group’s largest digital
commerce solution provider which acted as service provider
collecting settlement on behalf of the Group for sale of computer
and mobile phone software to ultimate customers.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers and service providers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s and service provider’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer and service
providers as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer and service provider operate. The directors
are of the opinion that no provision for uncollectible receivables is
required in the consolidated financial statements. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral or guarantee from customers
and service providers except the loan receivables under Money
Lending Business.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

5. MBEREE(E)

()

FERR

AEENEERBREIRRBE S REMEKR
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B o
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=1 AR MERTT

RZZ-—NF+-A=+—0 AEEFHEE
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BREXBRAEKERENEN - EERA £
B BT R A B R B AT UK 2 R OB R AR
e —RME  AREYEAEPS MREHE
EWERER R ER  EEREBRTRYEE
RSP o

REEERAREER SR EMBUGIR - 2HEA
RITFFARBRE RS FEMEPBRREK
HFTFIBREE

BRASERE S MEMERRANAZNE
EEBEE — B REE RN I8 -

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014

107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

The Groups policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

5. MEBERRERE )
d) RBESER

REERKRTEREAERE RERARDREH
B UEREFEHRSRHBRNEARES

REAEESREENANORMRARSRAE
EA DTN

2014
—E-mF
More than  More than

Within  1yearbut 2years but
1yearor  lessthan  less than After Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5years Total amount

15R%  BB1F  BB2%
REREE (BIR2F  BINGF 5% h REE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET FET TET TET FET
Trade payables B HERER 37,502 - - - 37,502 37,502
Deposits received Blize 38,121 - - - 38,121 38,121
Accrued expenses and other payables EREBRREMEMNZIE 21,393 - - - 21,393 21,393
Total trade and other payables Lo REMEMNELS 97,016 = = = 97,016 97,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) MK REEE (F)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d REBESERR(E)
2013
—E-=F

Morethan ~ More than

Within-~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than After Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years five years Total amount

1A HBiB1E BiB2F
REXEE EORE EIRSE 551 Feh REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T T T
Trade payables B SRR 370 - - - 370 370
Deposits received BElRe 150 - - - 150 150
Accrued expenses and other payables FEBRREMENTE 4,412 = s = 4,412 4,412
Total trade and other payables EH N EMENTUALESE 4,932 - - 4,932 4,932
Convertible notes RRER = = 16,646 = 16,646 12,744
4932 - 16,646 - 21,578 17,676

() Interest rate risk (e) FIRE

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s significant RZE-—NFRZZF—=F+"A=+—8H "

interest-bearing assets are bank deposits and loan receivables.

The Group’s interest income is dependent on changes in market
interest rates and will not have significant adverse impact on the
Group’s financial position.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and loan receivables are at
fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair values interest
rate risk.

ARENEANEEERRITERREKE
oo

REENFSWABRF TS EEEHE
WHAREENF RS |ERTHMZE -

REENEERRITERRBREFIREEF
BB BORRATEENERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AE-F-ME+-A=+—BILFE
(LAETTHIR)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. H¥EKBERE (&)
()  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December H HT-A=t+—HMEsIAER
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Financial assets SRMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHPESREE 73,150 53,778
Loans and receivables (including cash BERRERZIE(BE
and cash equivalents) BENBSEEY) 224,065 94,312
Financial liabilities EA =N
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or ~ R ¥ HEREIETE BB BIEZE
loss designated upon initial recognition NAFEAEIENSmAE 14,331 104,568
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHK AT ENERAE 97,016 17,676
(9) Fair value (99 2AFEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEBGEMBRARATEREERSHE
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of ERRAEEESBNATEBERS -
financial position approximate their respective fair values.
6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. AYFEMEE=E
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to A EEEMS2EE ARG E8BEEFR ST
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants HEEEBRRAERE BRI AHER - TXHE
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value FRATEESHRFENATER  BIETEATE
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three BERHETEEABRER LY R=ER7 :
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:
Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for E—RBAEE : AEEARFEABGFHERE
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can EXBENERMSERECRE
access at the measurement date. AEE) o
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level FoRMARE : EEAMENEAEXEBEITHE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either BABE - MEFE—RFABEEN
directly or indirectly. WRIE -
Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. FEoRM AR . BAEXBBENTAHREGASE -
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of AEENBRAEREES &L B S HE RN
any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in E = EARBIEA REHIFR o
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

DPEEEE)

(@)

R+-ZA=+—HBMATFEESHEE

December:
Fair value measurements using: Total
AT EEFEMAER st
DESCRIPTION Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
F#15 E—& BZR B=H —T-WF
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
TExT FHERT FTERT TET
Recurring fair value measurements: REHEAFEENE:
Financial assets SHMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE
Listed securities in Hong Kong EBLEHES 62,144 - - 62,144
Unlisted investment fund FELEMIREES - - 11,006 11,006
Total @Et 62,144 - 11,006 73,150
Recurring fair value measurements: REMRAFEETE:
Financial liabilities cHas
Performance shares RERMD - = 14,331 14,331
Total st - - 14,331 14,331

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014

111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

6. ADFEMEEGE

(@ WTZA=Z=+—HBWAFEESHKE:

December: (continued) (#8)
Fair value measurements using: Total
NEEESAEFMARR it
DESCRIPTION Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2013
Ed £ EH = —T—=F
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FHET FHT FHT FHT
Recurring fair value measurements: REEQNFEETE:
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE
Listed securities in Hong Kong FE LTES 53,778 - - 53,778
Investment property REWE
Commercial Units — Hong Kong PEEL — BE - 42,000 - 42,000
Total et 53,778 42,000 - 95,778
Recurring fair value measurements: REMAFEEE:
Financial liabilities SEas
Performance shares RIBAED - - 104,568 104,568
Total et = S 104,568 104,568

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the

year.

RAEER - F—

ZR=Ms M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 6.

(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

DPEEEE)

BE-_T-—MF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(AETTIIR)

(b) REBE=RZEATEEFENEE (8

value based on level 3: &) #hR -
2014 2014
—T—-{F —ZT—-F
Unlisted
investment Performance
fund shares
I LEHREES RER 5
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET FET
At 1 January 2014 R-_E—NF—A—H - (104,568)
Purchases e 11,000 =
Settlements KA - 32,914
Total gains recognised N T5IE B R W25
— in profit or loss — B=EW = 57,323
— in other comprehensive income — Htt 2wk 6 -
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—mE+=-A=+—H 11,006 (14,331)
2013 2013
—E-=fF —T-=F
Unlisted
investment Performance
fund shares
FETREES FKIRIRHD
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
At 1 January 2013 WZZE—=F—A—H S
Issues BT = (177,186)
Total gains recognised in profit or loss © NREFERN Y EEE® = 72,618
At 31 December 2013 R-ZF—=F+=-A=+—8 = (104,568)
# Included in other gains or losses ® FEAE sk g 1R
The total gains recognised in other comprehensive income are REA 2 E R R W BN B R E A

presented in fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets

EEBEKRTPAREES

in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive I

income.

BAEATFEERS

The total gains recognised in profit or loss including those for RERERN R BERENREARAFE
assets/(liabilities) held at end of reporting period are presented in B/ (A TREZKRPHMKEREES
other gains and losses in the statement of profit or loss. 5l o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
N

B H5 R R BT

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-T—/Y
(A TTER)

FH-A=t+—HILFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 6. AFEMEFEE
() Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () EWEAFER-_Z—NEF+=-A=+-
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value HFFAGERR fEERTRAFEERE
measurements at 31 December 2014: sTEFT A A SIS
The Group’s management is responsible for the fair value AEBEEBRARYEREETHTEER
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial BEMNATFEEFE(BEE=ZRLTFEE
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. 2) BERESFEL AR AT EBTE -
The management reviews the fair value measurements at least
once a year.
For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally RE=MAFEEFEMS AEE—RZE
engage external valuation experts with the recognised BERHEER B A BHELBROINERE
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the BEHERX-
valuations.
Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements E=RATEBEMBFETATEREAZEE
are mainly: E8E
—  risk free rate (estimated based on zero coupon rate) — ERBFEGRETEZXRMGER)
—  vyield spread (estimated based on certain comparable —  WEEREREE TR REREE)
bonds)
—  expected volatility (estimated based on historical volatility) —  TEHDRIE (RIERE LORIEMEE)
—  dividend yield (estimated based on no dividends will be -  BREXMBEBETABRTEIRMAR M
paid in the near future) &)
—  present value of expected future share price (estimated — BEHREBRENREREZRS XM
based on dividend yield is zero) 5
Level 2 fair value measurements ERAFEETE
Fair value
Description Valuation technique Inputs ATEE
2014 2013
#15 fEE R BAE 2 =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Investment property Direct comparison method  Price per square foot - 42,000
Commercial Units — Hong Kong HENEX FEHRER
REME
EEEN — BF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 6. AQFREMEFEE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () EWEAFER-_Z—NEF+=-A=+-
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value HFFRMERR  HEERTRERATFEER
measurements at 31 December 2014: (continued) STEFTAWARE - (8)

Level 3 fair value measurements E=RAFEETE
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase Fair value
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs Carrying amount 2014
BABESE M AYEE
#E RER BARE gE HATEENYE REE —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TR
Performance Present value Present value of HK$0.089 Increase
shares method the future share price 0.08977T 1M
=ERH BEZ ARREHRE
Profit forecast 2015: From  Increase but limited
s MTA US$8,600,000t0 by the maximum
US$9,300,000  numiber of
ZZ—HF:  performance shares
8,600,000k LE HEIMEARBEMRS
9,300,000%71T HZ=EHAAR 14,331 14,331
Unlisted investment  Net asset value Net asset value per share HK$10,006  Increase 11,006 11,006
fund
FLTRAES BEFE BREEHE 10,006 7T &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 6. AFEMEFEE
() Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () EWEAFER-_Z—NEF+=-A=+-
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value HFFRMERR  HEERTRERATFEER
measurements at 31 December 2014: (continued) STEFTAWARE - (8)
Level 3 fair value measurements (continued) E=RAFEEFEZE(HE)

Effect on fair

Valuation value for increase Carrying amount Fair value
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs EREE 2013
BAZESEM AYEE
#5 AR WARE #E HATEENYE —B-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Performance Present value Present value of HK$0.072 Increase
shares method the future share price 0072 %0
=ERH BE% ARREHERE
Profit forecast 2014: From  Increase but limited
i TR A 1S$9,600,000 to by the maximum

US$10,300,000;  number of
2015: From  performance shares
US$12,000,000 to $EAMELAERR MG
US$14,600000 &EHE AR

ZE-EE:
9,600,000 % TE
10,300,000 7T
ZE-HE:
12,000,000%TZE
14,600,000 T 104,568 104,568
Liability component  Binomial Model Risk free rate 0.364%-1.464% N/A
of convertible =gt it BRI TR
notes
AHBRREE
BN
Yield spread 18.29% N/A
W ZEE A
Expected volatility 89.92% N/A
BRI TER
Dividend yield 0% N/A 12,744 9,440
frE% TEf

116 GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
TURNOVER 7. EEHE
Turnover represents the sales value of goods and services supplied to CEBEMNRPHERERMBRENHEEEE - ~EEH
customers. An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as REEREEBHITNOT -
follows:
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET

Provision of website development, e-learning
products and services

Sales of computer and mobile phone software
and toolbar advertisement

Loan interest income

Provision of insurance and mandatory provident
fund schemes brokerage services

Provision of corporate management solution and
|.T. contract services

Commission income from provision

RHAHE  EF2TER

K PR = 2,178
HEBMERRBEFRMEUR

TAMES 144,191 89,809
ERAMBMA 1,105 118
RRERE KRB RS F S

142 R TS 76,507 -
RHUCETEBRT BREEMRE

aRRG 8,422 -

REHEBLBYFamSAEBA

of an online shopping platform 2,947 -
Revenue from online shopping business B ERMEBBA 621 -
Provision of website development for RETFEHEEBIREAUAE
e-commerce business 500 -
234,293 92,105
OTHER REVENUE 8. HualgA
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Fi#T
Bank interest income RITHEUA 7 278
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value FEiBIER AT EETRR
through profit or loss SREENQTFEER 9 180
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value HEFBEIUANFEEIIERD
through profit or loss SREENRE = 67
Income from provision of business centre services 1247576 7 0 BRIS AT 2 U A = 160
I.T. maintenance services income BARHR AR WA 1,939
Rental income s N 675 610
Others HAth 70 58
2,700 1,353
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. HRBERERE FHE
2014 2013
—E—MF —T-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Foreign exchange losses, net ME 5185 R (114) 67)
(Loss)/gain on disposals of subsidiaries (note 39(d)) HEE A FIA (Ei8), s

(PH &£ 39(c)) (326) 6.895

Impairment loss on property, W% - BEREEBEREEE
plant and equipment (note 20) (Kzx20) (176) -

Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR ESmEERBEES
financial assets (note 26) (FF5E26) (20,732) (26,253)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 23) B R EE 8 (M7 23) (8,211) (257,496)
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note 22) |y EEREEE (E22) (4,875) (831)
Recovery from impairment loss on trade receivables #6125 F& Ui Bk 2R E & 18 - 37
Fair value gain on performance shares (note 33) RIERH AT E B (HE33) 57,323 72,618
Fair value gain on investment property (note 21) BEMERNFEEYE (FFE21) 1,300 32
Net sundry (expense)/income 8 (FX) WA FHE (238) 14
23,951 (205,051)

10. SEGMENT REPORTING 10. A HHE

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines and geographical locations. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has five (2013: five) reportable segments during the year.

—= Research, development and distribution of computer and mobile
phone software and toolbar advertisement (“Software Business”)

- Securities investment (“Securities Investment Business”)

— Money lending (“Money Lending Business”)

— Provision of insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes
brokerage services (“Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business”)

— Provision of corporate management solutions and I.T. contract

services (“Corporate Management Solutions and |.T. Contract
Services Business”)

AEBRBFIEREER - AEBERNRLRREAE
"Wk - RAFE  AEEFRAE(ZFT—=F: 5
) REDH - JNHBAXNESDEERMFEERERAE
A EEZRSRITRERAEARREEOT
HEB—E -

- WMEROHEEMEAPDEFUHARTAME

H(8|HEBD

-  EFRE(EZREEHK)D

-  BERIEEXHKD

- REERBREESMELESEF KR (TRR

RgEest 8IS E% D)

- RUEGCEEEBRIRREMAMRANRS
(TEEEEBRTERERAMRANRE
%)
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Group’s other operating segments, include (i) website development,
e-learning products and services (“E-learning Business”); and (ii)
provision of online shopping business (“Online Shopping Business”),
which do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds for determining as
reportable segments. The information of these other operating
segments is included in the “Others” column.

During the year, the directors of the Company reviewed the business
segments of the Group and considered the revenue, results, assets and
liabilities in relation to the E-learning Business are less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue, total results, total assets and liabilities for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014. The directors of the
Company considered that re-classifying E-learning Business to other
segment would result in a more appropriate manner to reflect the core
business of the Group. As a result, E-learning Business previously was
designated as a single reporting segment in prior years has been
combined into other segment. Revenue, results, assets and liabilities
presented in the segment reporting for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been reclassified to conform with the current year’ s new
presentation.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— Segment profit/(loss) represented profit earned by/(loss
from) each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, finance costs and income tax
expense.

— Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of other corporate
assets.

S Segment liabilities include all current and non-current
liabilities with the exception of accrued central
administration cost, performance shares and convertible
notes.

Inter-segment revenue is priced with reference to prices charged

to external customers for similar orders.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

10.

WRE IS ER R MR
HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE
(AP TTEIR)

7P E ()

REBEMEEDWEENBUFAE EFEBESR
R (TEFREER]D  ROREN LBWEDR
(TJ:%%%%%D CREERESBREHEBLE

'Ha’%ﬁiftﬁ—ﬁxzi UL H A & 5 FEE KT
ATEM] —

AEER  ARRAERZERAAEEEBLHR - A
BHEFEBEBHRA - 2E EERAGMGASE
BRE—_T-=FR_F-OFt-_A=1+—HLF
ERBEA - RERE BAERBRBEREIN10%
ARREERABETFTREXBENDREEMH
FEARRARERLER - At - RBEFERA
BE-RENHNEFREEXBOHARMLIR - BE
CE-ZHFT A= T RUEFERDBHRERIIN
WA - %% BERBECEHHE - WEEAFE
R ART B

() PHFxE -EEREE

REEDBERRERDED BZHNER

- FT23| 580 F, /(B8 HELES
FRRITHCA ~ BB AN R FT a»a"RFfﬁS‘Z
TE2SED BWABBER,(HES
18) -

= “*Bé}g aiéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ/ﬁﬁ ﬂ%ﬁ?

- AHAEREMERBRIERDERE
ETNBIEEE R RITBURAR « RIBRHD
RATR R E I

7 B A TI 2 Z AR LART E S R P YR

EEIREE
BED MO SFTBEREM MR RENE

Eﬂ'EﬂZﬁﬁ*ﬁH 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR mARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE=
(L‘A;%Tuﬁl ™)

—NE+-A=+—HILEE

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 10. o IHmE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@) IWBEE EEREBEGE
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets REDBHAEBREDEEE  BEREARE
and liabilities by reportable segment is as follows: DT
Insurance Corporate
and MPF Management
Securities Money Schemes Solutions and
Software Investment Lending Brokerage 1.T. Contract
Business Business Business Business  Services Business Others Consolidated
SEEER@ARE
‘ ‘ BREEEE  REANELN
K REREER EERK HHEERK fitis 34 A 5&
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
S§-mE  SE-mE RE S§-ME DR SE-mE DR-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn Tn TEn TEn T#n TEn
Turnover gxE
Revenue from extermal customers A ﬁgﬁl& 144,191 - 1,105 76,507 8422 4,068 234,293
Inter-segment revenue LRl ON - - - - 147 - 147
Reportable segment revenue 144,191 - 1,105 76,507 8,569 4,068 234,440
Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment revenue (147)
Revenue 234,293
Results
Segment results 80,038 (20,966) 1,020 12,118 1,791 (11,457) 63,439
Reconciliation:
Interest income 7
Unallocated income
— Rental Income 675
— Fair value gain on investment property 1,300
— Fair value gain on performance shares 57,323
— Other income 2%
Unallocated expenses
— Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (326)
— Corporate expenses (13,281)
— Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (U]
Profit from operations 109,155
Finance costs (1,209)
Share of profit of an associate 33
Profit before taxation A 107,979
Income tax i (19,000)
Proft for the year TEEER 88,979
Assets g
Segment assets PHEE 637,403 82,893 21818 40,710 108,401 9,046 900,271
Reconciliation: 85
Unallocated assets
— Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 876
— Investment in an associate - - - - - - 21,19
— Trade and other recelvables - - - - - - 602
— Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - 19,444
Total assets 942,389
Liabilities
Segment liabiities 57475 101 226 36,665 59,330 4418 158,215
Reconciliation:
Unallocated liabiities
— Trade and other payables - - - - - - 1,967
— Performance shares - - - - - - 14,331
Total liabilties 174,513
Other segment information:
Addtions to property, plant and equipment - - - 917) (130) (657) (1,604)
Amortisation of intangible assets (12,564) - - - (657) - (13,221)
Depreciation - (60) - (142) (141) (318) (661)
Development cost capitalised (22,063) - - - - - (22,063)
Impairment loss on available-for-salg financial assets - (20,732 - - - - (20,732)
Impaiment loss on goodwil - - - - (8211) (8211)
Impaiment loss o intangibl assets EAENEE (4,875) - = = = = (4,875)
Legal and professional fees EEREEER (2,864) ) (20) (64) 23) (5,220) (8,262)
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 10. A HHE (E)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () PH*E -EEREEE)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets MEDHERNEEREDBEE - BERBRE
and liabilities by reportable segment is as follows: (continued) DT - (&)
Insurance Corporate
and MPF Management
Securities Money Schemes Solutions and
Software Investment Lending Brokerage I.T. Contract
Business Business Business Business ~ Services Businesi Others Consolidated
‘ PERERERTR
. o N RBEEEE  RARHEAN
BHEB  BFRELR EEEH 2 % %% Lo Ga
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
5= -%-= 5= -F-= 5= —3-cE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThL T L T AR
Turnover g28
Revenue from external customers HREFHA 89,809 - 118 - - 2,178 92,105
Results E
Segment results PHEE (201,719 (26,137) 4 - - 2,353) (230,165)
Reconciliation: HE:
Interest income FISHA 278
Unallocated income FARMA
— Rental income - AEHA 563
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - HENBARNKE 6,89
— Recovery from impairment loss on g5 FWEM
trade receivables ' 37
— Fair value gain on performance shares HATEERR 72,618
— Fair value gain on investment property xé%% TEEYNE 2
— Other income - HME 60
Unallocated expenses Ak
— Foreign exchenge loss - DEE” I (20
— Corporate expenses - REEX (12,074
Loss from operafions mEER (161,776)
Finance costs BERK (14,602)
Loss before taxation BRAER (176,378)
Income tax FrEH (6,798)
Loss for the year rEEBE (183,176)
Assets 13
Segment assets PHEE 621,111 57,880 4,040 - - 228 683,259
Reconciliation: HE:
Unallocated assets AOREE
— Property, plant and equipment o m% BEREE = L - - - _ 575
— Investment property - RENE - - - - - - 42,000
— Trade and other receivables - - - - - - 263
— Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - 24,667
Total assets 750,754
Liabilities a&
Segment liabilties AHEE 41,469 57 59 - - 14 41599
Reconciliation: HE:
Unallocated liabilties AARERE
— Trade and other payables -8 %&ﬁﬁ%‘ﬁ?& ] 2,544
— Current taxation - HEEE 4
— Performance shares - &ERH 104,569
— Convertile notes - TRREE 12,744
Total iabilties RfEAR 161,500
Other segment information: B RER
Additions to property, plant and equipment AENS - (530) - - - (256) (786)
Addttion to investment property = = = = = (41,968) (41,968)
Amortisation of intangible assets (8,294) - - - - (489) (8,783)
Depreciation i - (67) - - - (407) (474)
Development cost capitalised RRRABAL (17,113) - - - - (960) (18,073)
Impaitment loss on avalable-for-sale MHHESHEAR
financial assets AEER = (26,253) - - - - (26,259)
Impairment loss on goodwill (257,49) - - - - - (257,49)
Impairment loss on intangiole assets BN EEREEE (831) - - - - (831)
Legal and professional fees EEREEER (1,564) (12 (12) 9 - (3,032) (4,620)

BHERARRR / £ 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= IAN
NN

VSRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 10. A HHE (E)
Geographical information (b) HEEHR
The following table sets out information about the geographical TREVNEBOAEERBINATEHBAR
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) (\AEBHWE - BERZE REWE &
the Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment property, FEE M8 R HEBREARMNKEE RAT#
intangible assets, goodwill, investment in an associate and tEeRmEE(FEIRDEEDNMEE
available-for-sale financial assets (“specified non-current assets”). B BEMMENERBBEREREIRNE
The geographical location of customers is based on the location MU EETE - BEFRDEENMBLER
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The BEEEERMENE (WBWE - BE K&
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is #H REVERAEHESRHEE) RESA
based on the physical location of the assets, in the case of ¥BONE(NBEREE  BERR
property, plant and equipment, investment property and ERREIMRE)ERE -
available-for-sale financial assets, and the location of the
operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets, goodwill and investment in an associate.
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
IRABEFBA BEHFRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T-=% ZE-—@mF —E-—=%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET TFE T FHET
United States of America E35T 71,258 47,277 - -
Germany e 5,302 3,488 - -
United Kingdom T 9,969 5,752 - -
Hong Kong &HE 91,104 2,296 698,084 653,941
Australia SEM 5,769 3,547 - =
Canada nEx 5,431 3,436 - -
Russia R 7& A 5,318 3,225 - -
Japan AR 5,124 2,813 - -
Others (including Mainland China) — Eth (35 B A Hb) 35,018 20,271 1 -
234,293 92,105 698,085 653,941
Information about major customers (c) BEFEEFMER

(c)

Revenue from one customer of the Group’s Insurance and MPF
Schemes Brokages Business segment represents approximately
HK$52,634,000 (2013: HK$NIl) of the Group’s total revenue.

REAEERB RGBS BICLESDI—
ZE PR A AR S B 48U %) 52,634,000
BL(ZE—=F: T98) »
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

BE-_T-—MF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(AETTIIR)

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @ERK
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest on bank loans: RITERFE -

— wholly repayable within 5 years — ARAFNBEEE = 58
Interest on other loan Hib BT S 386 -
Effective interest on convertible notes AR EROERT S 823 14,544

1,209 14,602
12. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 12. BRBADER(EE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation has been arrived at after charging: BRBLATEF,(BE) BN
2014 2013
—E2—mEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(@)  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): (a) BINAN(BIEEEHS) :
Salaries, wages and other benefits He TEREMEF 10,913 9,038
Retirement scheme contributions BARET IR 333 257
11,246 9,295
(o)  Others items: (o) HEA :
Amortisation of intangible assets ER A EEH 13,221 8,783
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR EemEEREEE"
financial assets* 20,732 26,253
Impairment loss on goodwill* EERESR 8,211 257,496
Impairment loss on intangible assets* ERAEREEE" 4,875 831
Impairment loss on property, Y% - BERERERESE
plant and equipment* 176 S
Depreciation E 661 467
Commission clawback provision & B mEE 4,500 -
Auditor’s remuneration Gl 1,300 750
Operating lease charges: KEREBMA
minimum lease payments SIEBEEREE
— hire of office premises — AERAEME 1,643 547
Direct operating expenses of investment EARSWANKREDE
property that generate rental income WEELERT = 3
# Included in other gains and losses # AT AE g K B 1R
BESERARAT / F5R 2014 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTIIR)

13. INCOME TAX 13. Fi8%
(@  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (8 ERBIERRMFTERIE
represents:
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Current tax 2T
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEATER
Provision for the year NEFEE 18,570 10,039
Under/(over)-provision in respect BREFERETR,(BEEE)
of prior year 229 (10)
— Withholding tax in Japan — BARBEINR 124 58
18,923 10,087
Deferred tax (note 34(a)) JEIEFE I8 (B 5 34(a)) 77 (3,289)
19,000 6,798
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% BBFST RS Do AN F E B R 5 ST B A
(2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. BHEA16.5% (ZT—=F : 16.5%) 515 °
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate BN B ARMBIEREANEBEENESR
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries in which EERNBRAED - RERXEHIRBERITER
the Group operates based on existing legislation, interpretation HRLRETE -
and practices in respect thereof.
Withholding tax in Japan, regarding the external sales for which ML B AR B FEITINAIHE PP R B AT
customers are located in Japan, is charged at the appropriate MR IRRB B AR TEANREAE -
current rates of taxation ruling in Japan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

13. INCOME TAX (continued) 13. Fr8%i (&)
(o)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) (o) IRERABERELNBBERSEGHER, (5
at applicable tax rates: B) R
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB RTHEF,(E518) 107,979 (176,378)
Notional tax expense/(credit) on profit/(loss) &% % 16.5% 5T & )
before taxation, calculated at the BRELATE R (B518) 1)
rate of 16.5% ZEBERL(EL) 17,816 (29,102)
Tax effect of different taxation rates in other  H i Rl AR TR RO K 2
tax jurisdictions (1)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses R MR MR E 9,146 49,790
Tax effect of temporary differences RERGREZBORBTE
not recognised (327) (2,589)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERIBBRANTRIETE (9,680) (12,762)
Tax effect of share of profit of an associate  fE{h —fEEi& AR B RN ETE ) =
Tax effect of unused tax losses REPARERRBEENT BT E
not recognised 1,698 1,413
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAEFEEETR(HBEEE)
prior year 229 (10)
Withholding tax in Japan BARTENH 124 58
Income tax expense 8B 19,000 6,798

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

wIN

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_T—
(LA TTER)

ME+-—A=+—RILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 14. EEFHMH
The remuneration of each director was as follows: EHEOT -
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2014
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2B BiNGTE  —Z-DF
EEZHe REVAR miEiEAL e @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TET THET THET THET
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (note (X)) 2= &2 5t 4 (B 3% (ix) 240 - - 2 242
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (note (x)) 6 52 48 5 4 (Bt 5 (x)) - 529 - 10 539
Mr. Xue Qiushi (note (ii) BERKE S04 (PFHAE (i) - 360 - 16 376
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Ms. Chan Hoi Ling (note (vii) PR &)\ 28 22 = (B & (viii)) 11 - - - 11
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (note (vii) RAAC A& (B3 (i) 8 = - - 8
Mr. Lam Kit Sun (note (i) REERT 55 A (BT RE (i) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Yip Chi Fai, Stevens (note (v)) EEEaE (MiEw) 100 - - - 100
Ms. Xiao Yiming (note (vi)) B — 18 2z £ (B =% (vi) 96 - - - 96
555 889 - 28 1,472
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2013
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Ea =i e E —T-=F
Rk REMM = BIETEAL R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FHET THET FHET THET
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (note (ix)) ~ Z=54 56 4 (M E (ix)) 2,090 - - 9 2,099
Mr. Ng Kay Kwok (note (i) SRS A (MREG) = - - - -
Mr. Xue Qiushi (note (ii)) EEFAE S A (BREG) 83 23 - 110
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Billy B Ray Tam (note (iv)) FEELFIE A (BEE (v) 91 - - - 91
Ms. Chan Hoi Ling (note (vii)) PR &)\ 28 &2 = (B & (viii)) 100 - - = 100
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (note (vi)) FAAC & (M 5E (i) 100 = = - 100
Mr. Lam Kit Sun (note (ii)) AREERT I8 A (BT 3 (i) 25 - - - 25
Mr. Yip Chi Fai, Stevens (note (v)) EE L (MiREwV) S - N % N
Ms. Xiao Yiming (note (vi)) B — 8 2z (B E (vi) - - - = =
2,489 23 - 13 2,525
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes:

(i)

()

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

Mr. Ng Kay Kwok was appointed as executive director of the Company on
29 May 2012 and retired as executive director of the Company with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM held on 24 May 2013.

Mr. Xue Qiushi was appointed as executive director of the Company on 5
July 2013.

Mr. Lam Kit Sun was appointed as independent non-executive director of
the Company on 2 October 2013.

Mr. Billy B Ray Tam resigned as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 29 November 2013.

Mr. Yip Chi Fai, Stevens was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 2 January 2014.

Ms. Xiao Yiming was appointed as independent non-executive director of
the Company on 17 January 2014.

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter resigned as independent non-executive director of
the Company on 29 January 2014.

Ms. Chan Hoi Ling resigned as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 10 February 2014.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth retired as executive director of the Company
on 4 June 2014.

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 9 June 2014,

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

No director waived any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

14. ESHM (&)

By aE

(i)

(i)

)

(vii)

(viil

(ix)

BE

REBRER-T——FAA-TNEEZERER
AMTESR YN -_FT—=FRA-+HBAHRTHRK
RBFASHEREREARARNTES -

BERNEAER _Z-—=F Lt ARBEZERARRH
TEE-

MWEMEER T —=F+A-AEZEAALEE
SEHITES ©

BUMNEER-_F—=F+—A-ThARELRR
BIIFRITES -

RERAEER - —NF-A-AEZERARAE
SFHITES

H—BZtR_F-OF A+ tAEZEREARR
BIIFRITES -

RECARER-Z—NF—A TN HBREARAB
SFHITES

MANEL TN T —NFEZ A+ HEEARABEILIE
HITEE -

FEMAER T —NFNANBRERDBNTE
=

BEELEN-_T-—NFXANAEZEAAITHR
TEE-

TE-NER_TE-=ZF+_A=+—HLEF

B AREYESNEANE TERNESEAREE
== DN BR AN 62 B X AE pN 8RR S A Bk A B 1B R R R B T
SAHIFRIA ©

HE_ZT-HNFER-_ZT—=F+ZA=+—HLF
B EEERECAME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2013: one) is a
director whose emolument is disclosed in note 14. The aggregate of the

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

15. &EFMAL

RAZRSFMALH  HP—R(ZT—=F: —
FIRESR HEBEOMSERME 1485 - TR

emoluments in respect of the other four (2013: four) individuals were as BRTEE(ZE—=F:NEZ)ESFHATHME
follows: 4aFE -
2014 2013
—E-MmEFE —F=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FiT
Salaries and other emoluments FeREMMS 2,980 2,349
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B 53 40
3,033 2,389
The emoluments of the four (2013: four) individuals with the highest NE(ZE—=F: OB)BEaFMATHHEN T
emoluments are within the following bands: RT3 EE :
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 T 7L 2 1,000,000 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T £ 1,500,000 7 7T - 1
4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

HE-_Z-—NER-_T—ZF+-_A=+—AL1tF
B AEEVESNEAME T EAEEHMALTE
AREFSNBRNEERENBEI - KIEAEHR
e -

16. DIVIDENDS 16. KA
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in EETEERBE_T—NF+_A=+—HLFE
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). A ERARE (ZE—=F : &) -

17. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 17. ZXATEAEABGREERRN (FHE)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company includes KRR AEEER A & F B 1 5 49 15,496,000
a profit of approximately HK$15,496,000 (2013: loss of BT (ZZT—=4 : 518198,483,000%7T) * AR
HK$198,483,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements NAFHHRERALR ©
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the

profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

18. ERERN (F#E)
(@ B‘BREXERN(FEE)
FREREF, (FB) DREAEE AR DE

BT (51R) RE BT Bk i
FHRBEH -

year.
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Earnings/(loss) BR(&8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the RAEHE ARG RF(EE)
Company and profit/(loss) for the purpose RA{EsTEGRERET(F1E)
of calculating basic earnings/(loss) REF(E518)
per share 52,737 (207,410)
’000 ’000
TR F &
(Restated)
Number of shares BRpEE (€ =—p71))
Weighted average number of ordinary FREStE BREARRT]/(EE)
shares for the purpose of calculating basic #7338 % Nt F 5 i &
earnings/(loss) per share 148,799 54,479
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents)  GRREARZF]/(F1E) GEl) 35.44 (380.72)

(o) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
presented for the year ended 31 December 2013 and in respect
of a dilution as the impact of the convertible notes and share
options outstanding had anti-dilutive effect.

(b) EBREERA(BRE)

B ARTTE AR R R R A A a2
2 s E—_T-=F+t-_A=+—H
LFFEMESSRERNERFEERE -

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (continued)

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b)

18. HRERN (&EE) (&)

SRBEER(BHR) (&)

SRBEEFYREAEEAR TG AR
RFIRE BT BB IE TR B -

2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7822 B A A a5 FI &
and profit for the purpose of RERTE SRR EARZBFIH 5 T N/A
calculating basic earnings per share 52,737 TiEA
Finance cost saving on conversion of AR M ARITE AR R ER N/A
convertible loans outstanding i & B & B AR 823 TEA
Profit attributable to owners of the RATHEE AT &
Company and profit for the purpose FAYERT & GRS B R K R N/A
of calculating diluted earnings per share 53,560 T iEA
’000 000
TR F &
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary BEtESRELRFIE
shares for the purpose of calculating T IBAL NHE IR 2K N/A
basic earmings per share 148,799 NERA
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares B ST BN E N/A
Convertible notes AR R IR 2,935 iE A
N/A
Performance shares e eh) 15,371 TEA
Weighted average number of ordinary REstE g E RN
shares for the purpose of calculating T3 S HNHE S 1 A B N/A
diluted earnings per share 167,105 TEA
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) TRESERT GEL) N/A
32.05 NEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
19. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 19. Hfh 2wk
Tax effects relating to each item of other comprehensive income for the HBAFEEMEERFSEBEABNRIBTE
year:
2014 2013
—E-NEF —T-=F
Before tax Tax Netoftax Before tax Tax  Net of tax
amount expenses  amount amount  expenses amount
BB AT BB BRI AT Briifa
28 BEEX 28 € TIEAX Gk

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TER TET TAT TAT TAET

Exchange differences on translation — #1 Z;8 5Nt & A 7]

of financial statements of MBHREE

overseas subsidiaries HIFE 3 =58 (31) - (31) (78) S (78)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ~ AJftHE & FIERE

financial assets NEBENKE 5,511 - 5,511 - - -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale  AJfEHE S FIARE

financial assets NEEEEE (20,732) - (20,732) (26,253) = (26,253)
Reclassification adjustment to profit &t 7 it HH & & g & &=

or loss on impairment loss on BEBEREREN

available-for-sale financial assets DA 20,732 - 20,732 26,253 = 26,253

5,480 = 5,480 (78) = (78)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(AETTIIR)

20. Y% - - WEKRZRE

The Group AEE
Computer
Land Furniture hardware
and Leasehold Office and and
buildings improvements  equipment fixtures software Total
HE WAE HRR EEH
T REF MELE B £E T @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FTET FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2013 R-_Z—=F—F—H 6,753 717 161 8 881 8,520
Exchange adjustments B 3 B - - - = 2 2
Additions NE S 92 = 146 548 786
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR
(notes 39(d)(i) and (i) (PR & 39(cl)i) . ii)) (6,753 (628) (161) (154) (139) (7,835)
Disposals HE - (181) = = = (181)
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—=F
1 January 2014 +ZA=+-8k
—E-mE—A—Q _ - = - 1,292 1,292
Additions NE - 1,022 249 17 316 1,604
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) WEE N B 2 R (3£ 39(a)) - 401 98 397 328 1,224
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—MF
+=-RB=+—H = 1,423 347 414 1,936 4,120
Accumulated depreciation and B ERREE
impairment
At 1 January 2013 R-_Z—=F—F—H 168 279 112 8 52 619
Charge for the year AEEYH 112 70 14 16 262 474
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR
(notes 39(d)(i) and (i) (B 5 39(cl(i) K (i) (280) (168) (126) (24) (39) (637)
Write back on disposals HE R = (181) = = = (181)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=F
1 January 2014 +-A=+-8k
—Z-pmF-HA-H - - - - 275 275
Charge for the year AEEXH = 240 49 31 341 661
Impairment loss REEE 5 = = = 176 176
At 31 December 2014 AZE—MFE
+=H=+—AH = 240 49 31 792 1,112
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—MF
+=B=+-H = 1,183 298 383 1,144 3,008
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%
+=A=+—H = = = - 1,017 1,017
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—HE+-A=+—HILLFE
(AETTIIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 20. "% - BERRE (&)

The Company NN
Computer
Office hardware and
equipment software Total
WAERE B R B st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2013 R_Z—=%—A—H - 758 758
Additions NE = 4 4
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2014 EZT—MNF—HA—H - 762 762
Additions NE 41 99 140
At 31 December 2014 A—FE—MF+=-_A=+—H 41 861 902
Accumulated depreciation ESgid
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=%—A—H - 35 35
Charge for the year RKEEXH - 152 152
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—=F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2014 rZZT—NF—A—H - 187 187
Charge for the year REETH 2 158 160
Impairment loss HIEEE = 7 7
At 31 December 2014 RZF—mNF+=A=+—H 2 352 354
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2014 N-Z—WE+=-A=+—8 39 509 548
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H - o5, 575
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTY REWZE
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-—MmE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
At 1 January n—A—AH 42,000 -
Addition on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39(c)) Uk BE—FEFTEB A R E (F:E39(c) = 41,968
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(d)(i)) & — R B 2 &) (B 5 39(d)()) (43,300) =
Fair value gains NEEEKE 1,300 32
At 31 December ®R+-—A=+—H - 42,000

Investment property was revalued at 30 September 2014 (date of
disposal of the subsidiary) and 31 December 2013 on the direct
comparison method by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by an independent professional
valuer.

The Group’s investment property at its carrying amount is analysed as

BRENENR—_T-HFNA=+TH(LEMNBRRH
AR —=F+-A=+T—HABIEXMKE
A2 Z UMK AR Z N TIHBERAEEZLR
EEf o

AEBEREMENRREINAOT -

follows:
2014 2013
—E—MF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
In Hong Kong — Medium-term lease REE — REHED - 42,000

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

RBETAHAHEEEE  REENATFEIHNE
WRKRREESEENT

2014 2013
—2-mEF —=—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Within one year —FR - 900

At 31 December 2013, operating lease receivables represented rental
receivable by the Group for letting its property. The lease was
negotiated for an average term of 2 years and rentals were fixed over
the lease terms and did not include contingent rentals.

RIE-—=F+"A=+—H BEELHEEFHREE
AEERHEEMENEEEE - KEFHERTES
ME - HPENESEE - BTeRRREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

AN
N

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE=

B SRR BT o

Z-MEF_A=+T—HIFE

(AETTIIR)

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22, BILEE
The Group AEE
Development
costs on Development
computer and costs on
mobile phone e-learning Customer Computer
software products relationship software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) (note (c)) Total
EMRRE EFEE
EFERMH Emi
k928 k92 EFHERF EREM
(Mt=E (a) (Mf%E (b)) (M= (c)) (Bt=E () st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHET THET TET
Cost: B
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F
—A—H S 3,637 - - 3,637
Additions through internal FERABHERE
development 17,113 960 - - 18,073
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE P B A 7]
(note 39(b)) (P 39(b)) 49,045 - - - 49,045
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT
(note 39(d)(iii) (Pf &% 39(d)ii)) - (4,597) - - (4,597)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 (55) = - _ (55)
At 31 December 2013 and N-ZT—=%
1 January 2014 +=-A=t—B8k
—ZT-mFE-HA—-H 66,103 = = = 66,103
Additions through internal FERABHAEARE
development 22,063 - - - 22,063
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR
(note 39(a) (B13E39()) - - 11,066 2,826 13,892
Exchange adjustments fEH AR 18 - - - 18
At 31 December 2014 N-T—mEF
+=-A=+—H 88,184 - 11,066 2,826 102,076
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 22, BMEEE(H&)

The Group (continued) AEE ()

Development
costs on Development

computer and costs on
mobile phone e-learning Customer Computer
software products relationship software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) (note (c)) Total
BRRE BETEE
BERSMN Emi
k928 BBMA BFB#% EREMG
(K3t (a) (KI5E (b)) (Hi=E () (Bi=E () st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT FAT FTHAT TAT
Accumulated amortisation ~ Rit##RFESE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—HA—H = = = - -
Amortisation B 8,294 489 - - 8,783
Impairment loss DEREL ] 831 - - _ 831
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT
(note 39(d)iii)) (PiE 39(d)ii)) - (489) - - (489)
Exchange adjustments [EH AR ) - - - @)
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—=%F
1 January 2014 +ZA=t—H8K
—Z2-MF—-HA—H 9,123 = - - 9,123
Amortisation B 12,564 - 461 196 13,221
Impairment loss AEEE 4,875 - - - 4,875
Exchange adjustments [ 5 4 - - _ 4
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—NFE
+-FE=H 26,566 - 461 196 27,223
Carrying amount BRTEE
At 31 December 2014 R-B-mF
+=ZA=+-H 61,618 - 10,605 2,630 74,853
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=ZA=+—H 56,980 - - - 56,980
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

The capitalised development costs for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 represented the expenditure incurred
for developing computer and mobile phone software.

The average remaining amortisation period of the computer and
mobile phone software is four years (2013: four years).

The capitalised development costs for the year ended 31
December 2013 represented the expenditure incurred for
developing e-learning products. It was disposed during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Computer software (the “Software”) and the customer relationship
(the “Customer Relationship”) were acquired through business
combination (note 39(a)). The Software are used for the
development of tailor-made programs to the Group’s customers
and the Customer Relationship represents certain contractual
relationship with its existing customers at the date of acquisition.
These assets are used in the Group’s Corporate Management
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business segment. The fair
values of the Software and the Customer Relationship have been
assessed by an independent professional valuer, at date of
acquisition.

The Software and the Customer Relationship are allocated to
cash generated unit (“CGU”) of Corporate Management Solutions
and |.T. Contract Services Business-e-Perfect Group (note 23).

22,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(ABTTHIR)
BREE (&)
rEE (&)
@ HBE-F MFR-F-=F+t-A=F+—A
L E - EEMMERBERAEREBH IR
BRI ATELNRX -

B R BT EE A TR R E
(ZB—Z=F TmF) -

HE_Z—=F1+-A=1+—HLEE K&
MMEFABEK A IEREE 2B ERAESH
X WEREBEEZT—=F+=A=+—H1t
FEEH -

EREHBH D REFARTEPRAR]
TyiE TS A G 4B (P 39()) - B
ERAEEREFPHEEFFTENER - MEF
BEEENKBANCRRAERPEYNET
BRHE ZEFEAEMNAKRENDREER
RTRBENRRA DRI EB DL - MR
EPBANLTEEEHBLEXGEMRK
f& B EARTAS -

BHREPAGREIEEEERELXEER
RTREEAMBRAHNRBEBORSERE
T(REEHET ] (MEE23) -
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4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

23. GOODWILL 23. BHE
The Group
TEE
HK$'000
FHTT
Cost Jo%:N
At 1 January 2013 R=ZE—=F—H—H 23,239
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) W B T BB J R 2 A (B3 39(b)) 757,662
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(d)(iii)) HE S BB 2 B IR 4% L BRER (PR R 39(d) i) (23,239)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZE—=F+ZA=+—AHK
—ZFT—-mFE—HF—H 757,662
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) U BE B8 A B)BS EE AE (FIE 39(a)) 33,923
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=-A=+—H 791,585
Accumulated impairment losses Rt REEE
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—HR 20,831
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(d)(iii) o &S BT BB A B (P RE 39(d) i) (20,831)
Impairment loss recognised (#) BRI EEE (#) 257,496
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZB—=F+-A=+—HK
Impairment loss recognised (*) BB EERE () 8,211
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H 265,707
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-mNFE+=-A=+—H 525,878
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=A=+—H 500,166
(#) Impairment loss recognised on goodwill arising on acquisition of #) i B 42 1% Apperience Corporation K Fif /B 22 =] 5 2
Apperience Corporation and its subsidiaries. EEERRERSA -
* Impairment loss recognised on goodwill arising on acquisition of Lujolujo () RUREELujolujo Asia Limited 2 4 B 2 ) RUE KA °
Asia Limited.
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HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. GOODWILL (continued) 23. BE (&)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing BEHENRESELETHRERR
goodwill

FREBATRBNRER KBRS EEAKEEH
ARBERZEBAHNRSEDL BT - BWRBEEE
Al BEREED ARHT

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

2014 2013
—Z—NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHT
Software Business B
Apperience Corporation and its subsidiaries Apperience Corporation
(collectively referred to as “Apperience Group”) H BB R A) (4 FE[ Apperience (2 & |) 757,662 757,662

Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business {RE [ 5&iE & 51868840 275
GET Mdream Wealth Management Limited MEE FMEERERATF
(Formerly known as Anvick Investment (AL EERARRAR)
Advisory Limited) (“GET Mdream”) (H2E5)) 865 -
Corporate Management Solutions and CEEEFRAHREEMRT
|.T. Contract Services Business ARRIGED
e-Perfect IT Limited (“e-Perfect IT”) and TERBAR AR ([LHE]) &
its subsidiary (collectively referred to HEftB AR (B[ EEEE])

as “e-Perfect Group”) 3,934 -
Wafer Systems (Hong Kong) Limited (“Wafer HK?)  giZs 245 (F%) AR A A
%50 20,913 =
Online Shopping Business El B
Lujolujo Asia Limited (“Lujolujo”) Lujolujo Asia Limited ([ Lujolujo ) 8,211 -

791,585 757,662

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined on the
basis of their VIU using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and
turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and expectations on
market development.

ReERETMAINESERABBERRSREERE
EREEETE - BRBRSREENETERRDERA
MR E ERXRBHEMNKREEBER - AR
ERARBATL R A REIRE - ZBRHAT R R
SENETTNEEEERSER BB ISE
BEXDNREREENETEBLLMELENRD
FHEBERREGE - BEENTREXBDERNB
HEPIRTISERERHE -

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014

139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23.

GOODWILL (continued)

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
the residual period using the growth rates as stated below. These rates
do not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the relevant
markets.

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations for each CGU are
as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

23. BWE(E)

AEERRNRERETR IR M EEIENR
RAEFHBAE ARG T HEEAN TR G KRG
B ZENLERYRBREEAT SN THRBERE -

ARAESREEHELEREENIEZRROT -

BE-F-MF+-A=+-HLFE

Apperience GET e-Perfect
Group Mdream Group Wafer HK Lujolujo
Apperience
&8 BEES ZEEE REEE Lujolujo
Business segment EBHE Software Insurance and Corporate Corporate Online
Business MPF Schemes Management Management Shopping
BT Brokerage Solutions and  Solutions and Business
Business  I.T. Contract  I.T. Contract BLEED
R RRES Services Services ES
FTEISLETS Business Business
TEEERR CEBTERR
FERREM AREREAH
BHEE QRS BE RS
%% %
Gross margin EF = 79% 28% 45% 18% 59%
Growth rate R =R 1.92% 3.48% 3.48% 2.97% 3.21%
Discount rate BEIR R 16.59% 13.85% 17.18% 14.34% 17.59%

The recoverable amount of Apperience Group as at 31 December 2013
was determined based on a value in use calculation which using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets with gross margin of 81%
covering a five-year period approved by management with the residual
period using the growth rate of 2.46% and the rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows was 19.25%.

As at 31 December 2014, the goodwill arising from the acquisition of
Lujolujo of approximately HK$8,211,000 was determined by
management to be fully impaired.

RZT—=F+=A=+—8 ' Apperience £E &) 7]
WElG B ETEEFEREERR  BETREMIE
HFEHEMNERBI1%H U BERERIERE2.46% 1
Fsp MR RERAET - MEARS RN
£ 1319.25% °

RZT—mF+—A=+—8  WELuoluoFTE%
EIE 48,211,000 8 THEREE T A2 EURE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

24. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 24. REBRARMNBREREWR (EM)HWEA
SUBSIDIARIES AIRIE
The Company
KAT
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETAR®G - KK = =
Less: Impairment loss R EEE = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHI B AT IE 673,183 640,120
Amount due to a subsidiary R —REWB R RRE (2,428) =

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

FEYL (FERT) M BB 2 R E AR - 2R AW EE
FEERH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

24. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 24, RHBLATRINIREREW (B KHEBL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) BRIE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: RIZZE—WFF+ZA=+—8  ~XEENRBREIN
= .
ST -
Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power/profit share
FiskiEs RRE/ HERNEI
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
registration paid up share capital/ Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital Direct Indirect  activities
AMAL BRR BRARAERE/
HEARAR BEHE HEMEAFHE B g EEEK
Lucky Famous Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI") 1 ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERRAHE([EBRLEHE]) 1REBRET REER
Jade Fore Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERRUEE 1REBRET REER
Citi Profit Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary US$1 100% = \n\(estment holding
ERRUEE 1REBRET REER
Citi Profit Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary HK$1 = 100%  Money lending
BEMBERAR B 1REBRA BT fa&
Perfect Growth Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary HK$1 S 100%  Securities investment
ERERAR 7 1IRE BRI BT EHRE
Supreme Right Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary HK$1 = 100%  Provision of e-learning
EREREBRAR B 1IRE BRI BT products
RUEEFEEEM
Apperience Corporation Cayman Islands 20,666,667 ordinary - 50.5%  Investment holding and
HeHs US$20,667 research and development
20,666,667 fx and distribution of software
L% 20,667 F T products
BREBERRHER
AHEEHER
Imidea Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary HK$10 - 50.5%  Development and sales of
Bk 10 EBRI0BT software and provision of
toolbar advertisement
P R E B A R bRt
TARES
|Obit Limited BVI 1 ordinary US$1 - 50.5%  Inactive
HERUES 1REERAET TEex
Bluesprig, Inc. Delaware, United States of 1,000 ordinary US$0.1 - 505%  Inactive
America 1,000 R E A% 0.1 T EmE%
EREH M
Both Talent International Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary HK$10 S 50.5%  Development and sales of
ZRBEBRAERAR 7 10M @R 10%T software and provision of
toolbar advertisement
F% REE A RER MG
TARES:
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BE-_T-—MF+-_A=+—ALLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTIIR)

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 24. RMIBLARINBRERER (ER)KED
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) RRIE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: RIZZE—WFF+ZA=+—8  ~XEENRBREIN
(continued) BT : ()
Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power/profit share
FERER RAE/ HERNEDL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
registration paid up share capital/ Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital Direct Indirect  activities
E‘:ﬂﬂﬁiﬁ/ﬁ%ﬁ& BRIRBERE .
WEAREH gy EMEAHTE Lt M EEEE
Mission Win International Limited BVI 1 ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
RBELHE 1RERRET REER
e-Perfect IT Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary - 100%  Provision of corporate
LE B HK$10,000 management solutions
10,000 A% & 3% 10,0007 7T and |.T. contract services
ﬁ&%mfﬁﬁ#&ﬁ*&
BB A O RTG
e-Perfect Information Technology People’s Republic of China Registered capital - 100%  Provision of corporate
(Shenzhen) Company L\mned* (‘PRC") of RMB500,000 management solutions
EEESREORINER REARLMNE ([HE]) & A AR 500,000 7T and L.T. contract services
RECEEERRTRL
BARRA ORG
Wafer HK Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary S 100%  Provision of corporate
BEEE Bt HK$10,000 management solutions
10,000 % & ##A% 10,0005 7T and |.T. contract services
?Ef#ﬁ%%iﬁ??&ﬁ%&
BARRRAORE
Lujolujo Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary - 77%  Provision of online shopping
&% HK$19,127,260 business under the name
10,000 R & 3@k of “Funshare.com”
19,127,260/ 7T JA [Funshare.com ] %%
8 T RNER
Fast Yield Ho\dmgs Limited BVI 1 ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
RRERERR EBRUES 1REBRIET REER
GET Mdream Hong Kong 882,352 ordinary - 51%  Provision of insurance and
BERS 7 HK$2,451,790 MPF schemes brokerage
882,352 [ & il ik services
2,451,790 57T RERBRBESHE
SRR
GET Development Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary HK$100 = 100%  Inactive
BHERBRRA EE 100 3@k 100 T TEER
Boom Max International Limited BVI 10,000 ordinary US$10,000 - 50.5%  Inactive
REEAER 10,000 f% &3 10,000 € 7T EEE%
Regent Art International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary HK$1 - 50.5% Inactive
7 1REBRA BT BmE¥
y This subsidiary is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the ZHB AR ARRBKIIHEEIINGDE

PRC
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

24. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)  24.
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RKBARNRERER (M) KHER
AR ()

TRETHEREASENEBE RN IFZRER([3F
ZictEs DB AREN - MEERSERARM

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised

financial information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.
Apperience Group GET Mdream
Apperience £8 BEES
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-|E —E-=F —E-MmEF —E-=F
Principal place of business/ TELENE /AR ER Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/
country of incorporation Cayman Islands Cayman Islands Hong Kong Hong Kong
EH/HEHE Er/HEHE BE/BE B/ B
% of ownership interests/voting rights FEREREREREER/ N/A
held by NCI RRERDN 49.5% 49.5% 49% TER
Financial information is dlisclosed as follows: BBEMBENT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TiEn T TR ThEL
Non-current assets ErREEE 61,619 56,980 775 N/A
TiEf
Current assets nHEE 75,991 64,033 39,069 N/A
TEm
Current liabilties k=t (53,069) (45,078) (38,150) N/A
TEA
Non-current liabilities L (4,408) (4.222) - N/A
TiEh
Net assets BERE 80,133 7,713 1,694 N/A
TEm
Accumulated NCI ESEE v 39,665 35,498 830 N/A
TEA
From From
Year ended 31.32013 to 2.4.2014 to
31.12.2014 31.12.2018 31.12.2014 2013
= S —Z2-mF
ZA=t-HZ A-HE
BE-g-mE “FCF —E-mE B
TZAZ+-HLEE +-A=1+-H +ZA=t+-H —E-=F
HK'000 HK000 HK'000 HK'000
Ti#n Tir TR THEx
Revenue WA 144,191 89,809 76,507 N/A
@A
Profit bl 65,053 48,959 9,495 N/A
Taf
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE 65,037 48,931 9,495 N/A
TEm
Profit allocated to NCI BB T EREENER 32,194 24,201 4,740 N/A
@A
Dividends paid to NCI BIRATHEREZNRS (28,027) (15,163) (4,886) N/A
Taf
Net cash generated from BREBMEHLFR 98,592 44,082 32,365 N/A
operating activities FaR
Net cash generated used in REEDMASSFE (23,063) (17,111) (9,461) N/A
investing activities TER
Net cash generated from/(used in) BBEBHE/ (R B RE (64,445) (22,801) 2,002 N/A
financing activities Taf
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRAEESEMENFE 11,084 4170 24,906 N/A
TEA
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BE-_T-—MF+-_A=+—ALLFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25, A—REBEQATNKRE

(AETTIIR)

The Group
AEH

2014
—E-NF
HK$’000
FBT

2013
—F—=

HK$'000
THET

Unlisted investment in Hong Kong:

Share of net assets

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

MNEBHIELHRE -

DMEEEFE

21,196

AEER-_ZT-—MFE+-A=+—BHBEQRFE

wmr
Percentage of
ownership
Place of interest/voting
incorporation/ Issued and power/profit  Principal
Name registration paid up capital sharing activities
FrE kR
RRIE DAEEF
=t SR AR SL AT i B ERITREZRE Botkk TEEHR
Dragon Oriental Investment Limited BVI 100 ordinary 49%  Property investment
RERLHS US$100 MERE
100 A% & m AR
1003 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

25. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 25. R—REBEARNRE (&)
The following table shows information on the associate which is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is based on
the HKFRS financial statements of the associate.

TRETZBERRNER - EURRENGA IS
BRAR - BBERBRRBERRNEEMBRE
QBB MR ES -

Dragon Oriental
Investment Limited
2014 2013
—ZT-—NF —T—=F

Principal place of business/country of incorporation I Z4& 24 B8 /3K 7 BI% Hong Kong/BVI

B UBRELES
Principal activities FEXB Property investment
MERE
% of ownership interests/voting rights held NEBFEFHEEERRAEFH
by the Group 49%/49% N/A
i@ A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 31 December: R+=-—A=+—-8:
Non-current assets ERENEE 43,300 N/A
TiE A
Current assets REEE 427 N/A
i A
Non-current liabilities FEnBAE - N/A
TiE A
Current liabilities TEN A& (470) N/A
i A
Net assets BEZE 43,257 N/A
TiEA
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests AEEShEREEE 21,196 N/A
TiE A
2014 2013
—2-mE —E=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Year ended 31 December: BE+-HA=+—-HLEE:
Revenue WA 900 N/A
i A
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 784 & 5% F & & T W &5 40 58 1,550 N/A
TiE A
Group’s share of profit A& @D 5T 33 N/A
i A
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS aHEESHEE
The Group
AEHE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FiT

Listed investments, at fair value and market value AT EERHEEH FHRE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LT EES 62,144 53,778
Unlisted investment fund FLrmEERES 11,006 -
73,150 53,778

Analysed as: AALTIER :

Non-current assets EmEEE 73,150 53,778

The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices in the
Stock Exchange. The fair value of the unlisted investment fund has
been determined by reference to the quotation provided by the
administrator of the investment fund at the reporting date. The directors
believe that the estimated fair value provided by the administrator of the
investment fund is reasonable, and that is the most appropriate value at
the end of the report period. The gain on the fair value change in the
investments of approximately HK$5,511,000 (2013: HK$Nil) which were
recognized in other comprehensive income and reflected in the
investment revaluation reserve. The fair value loss on available-for-sale
financial assets comprised fair value loss arisen from investments in
shares of DX.com Holdings Limited (“DX.com”) of approximately
HK$20,490,000 (2013: HK$26,253,000) and another listed company of
approximately HK$242,000 (2013: HK$Nil) which were determined to
be impaired and the cumulative loss totalling approximately
HK$20,732,000 (2013: HK$26,253,000) accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

At 31 December 2014, the available-for-sale investments with carrying
amount of approximately HK$42,929,000 (2013: HK$53,778,000) has
been charged in favour of a brokerage firm as collateral for the Group’s
liabilities in respect of its margin trading account.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

EEHFNRTEEDBIBEIMETEABERE
FELETREESHATEECL2EREESERAR
HEARRENBEMNETE - EFEE - REESE
BAFMRENHSATEEBEE  RIREHRASR
BEMERE REMEZEREPRREEQATEES
B 25495,511,0008 T (ZTE—=%F : L) I
REEEHFEBHEARMR - AMEHEEREEQTEE
E718 B #E R DX.comiF ik B BR A & ([DX.com]) & 5
—BEWRRNROTEMEE QT EEEEBD BN
20,490,000 7t (= Z — = £ : 26,253,000/8 7T) &
#9242,0008 (=T —=F : T L) BETAB
FrRE - MR E BMFEET RN RFTEBE XD
20,732,000 70 (= Z — = £ : 26,253,000/8 7T ) &

EFOBRERER -

R-ZE-—ME+-_A=+—8B KHEELHLAE
42,929,000 7L (= Z — =4 : 53,778,000/ 7T ) K
AHEEREBIKFF —MELEITEAREBHBER
BeESRFPMLRABHERR -

AHHESREENETIIE -
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

27. INVENTORIES 27. FE&
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—Z2-—MmF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Finished goods IR @ 14,772 -
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. ES5KkHMEWIE
The Group The Company
AEME PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-lmF —E—=F —E—-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FTHERT FHET
Trade receivables (notes 28(e) and (f) & 5 EULEE X 66,306 19,424 - S
(ME28(e) ()
Prepayments and deposits FENRBEREZS 8,468 2,547 331 208
Amounts due from brokers TEUR A 40 TIE 3,101 3,778 - -
Other receivables Hth fE Y kI8 320 34 - -
78,195 25,783 331 208
All of the trade and other receivables, apart from rental deposits of B B E491,233,0008 T (—E—=4 : )M

approximately HK$1,233,000 (2013: HK$NIl), are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

The directors considered that the fair value of trade and other
receivables are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these amounts have short maturity periods on their inception.

EREHN AR S REMEBYRFABERHR —FA
YRR B

E=RR B REMBKFENAFEERERE
BEZRATEEAZRE  REAZEFIRAEMKEE

SEEIER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. ESZRHMEWFIE(E)
(@) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDMT
According to the credit rating of different customers and service RETEEF KRG HERNEETR A%
providers, the Group allows credit periods ranged from 0 to 182 EETHESEPOHEEBNFOE182H(Z=
days (2013: 30 to 179 days) to its trade customers. Further T—=F:30E179H) - EEAEEEERK
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 5(c). RHE— SRHEERMIFES(C) ©
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment loss) B SRR (FBRRERR) RIEI BB 6
based on due date, is as follows: BRECHITIAT :
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—EZ—QmEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current BIHA 55,632 18,571
Less than 1 month past due wER A 1@ B 2,770 853
1 to 3 months past due w1 =318 A 665 -
More than 3 months but less than amEARA3E A BN 12(EA
12 months past due 7,199 -
Over 12 months BB 128 A 40 -
Amounts past due BHESE 10,674 853
66,306 19,424

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014

149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. B REMEWRIE(E)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EZEVERRNRE

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly (see note
3(m)).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of impairment on both individual and
collective basis.

BB ZRUSRAREEIR TS B BEIE
ARACER - BRIEA B SRR RIER AT REME T
R EZBERT  BEBERSEENEHEK
BRI SE (RLPRE3(M)) ©

RERERR  AEERTEIRUESES
185 R A R ERE

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired () REEMNESEWRRK
As of 31 December 2014, the ageing analysis of the Group’s RZZE—WF+ZA=+—8 ' ~EEDEH
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is as follows: BERBENE S EBRRERRSTOT -
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—Z—QmF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Less than 1 month past due BEL A1 {E A 2,770 853
1 to 3 months past due BE1 = 31E A 665 -
More than 3 months but less than BEAEB3EABE LN 12(EA
12 months past due 7,199 -
Over 12 months HBiE12MEA 40 -
10,674 853

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers and service providers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

EABERRENEURBEEASESEES
RFEENBLEP LRBHREDER - RIE
BELS  EEEREHARZSERIELR
EfE RARCERERIBEAEE Mz
SHEMBIDBR B BRWE - AEEWEHZ
SHEMFAEAERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

28. BEZREMEBYRE(E)

(d) Currency denomination of trade receivables (d) EBEZEUBRREREN
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are REBEEZRUBERNREEENL TS %5
denominated in the following currencies: B :
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAxT
HK$ BT 49,327 4,000
Us$ ETT 16,258 14,706
Japanese yen =} 659 718
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) ARE(TARE]) 62 ~
66,306 19,424
(€) Loan receivables, secured with personal guarantees () FEWER  UMEAAERERR

As of 31 December 2014, included in trade receivables were
loans to two borrowers of approximately HK$15,464,000 and
HK$6,172,000 respectively (2013: one borrower of
HK$4,000,000). The loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 10%
and 12% respectively (2013: 8.5%) per annum and will be
repayable on 30 January 2015 and 6 April 2015 respectively. The
loans were secured by unconditional and irrecoverable personal
guarantees granted by the borrowers’ directors.

R-Z-—NFE+=-A=+—0  EHEKEX
BIE MM RAE RS 5 415,464,000 7%
TER6,172,0008 T(—BE— =4 A— &
FKAEF4,000,000/7T) - BREAE RS RRE
EFMEIOERI2E(ZT—=4:85F)
e YASMR-ZE—RE—A=+ARZ=
T-RFNANBER - FHERBERAN
EFREAOEEG R HEEABRER
# o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. ESZRHMEWFIE(E)
()  Due from contract customers H EREHNEFRE
As of 31 December 2014, included in the Group’s trade R-Z—NE+-_A=+—8 A&EENEH
receivables was amounts due from contract customers of JE LT B 0 B0 45 FE LWL & 49 % 5 30 1E 1,488,000 78
HK$1,488,000. Detailed analysis of the amounts due from T o EIRAENEPRIEF AT ¢

contract customers are as follows:

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—EZ—QmEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEABLKAMESEER
profits less recognised losses to date BB ERER 7,293 -
Less: Progress bilings W HEE R (5,805) -
1,488 =
Gross amount due from customers SHTIRENE P RIELEEE
for contract work 1,488 -
No advances received in respect of service contracts at 31 RIBE—NE+-A=+—HIERREEL
December 2014 (2013: HKS$ Nil). WK (ZT—=5F : TH) °
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ME+-—A=+—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_T—
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

29. ERBEHUQXTFEEIRNEREE

The movements of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BBBmUAFTEEYENCREEZESNT -

are as follows:

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
Listed Convertible
securities bond
EiES AR ES
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Purchases of listed securities/ BB FTESARRES
convertible bond 44 3,500
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value FRERNATEABIENERMEE
through profit or loss (note) NFEE S () 9 180
Disposal during the year FALE (53) (3,680)
Note: On 27 March 2013, the Group subscribed for a 2014 due 10% coupon P RE EC T—=F=F=++tA  AEEREBIHMER
convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$3,500,000 issued by TAREHEIRBR D E (RMH KSR : 2324) FrEE

Capital VC Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2324)). The convertible bond was designated as
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as it contains embedded
derivatives. The investment was disposed to independent third parties at
the consideration of approximately HK$3,765,000 during the year ended
31 December 2013. Fair value gain on a convertible bond amounted to
HK$180,000 was directly recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during that year. The fair value of the convertible bond up to
the date of disposal was estimated by an independent professional valuer
based on Binominal Model.

On 14 January 2014, the Group subscribed for 22,000 ordinary shares of
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange at a
consideration of HK$44,000 upon initial public offer. The shares were
disposed of at a consideration of HK$53,000 during the year ended 31
December 2014.

% N 574 3,500,000F TR — S —MFFH10/E LS
AR ES - ARARREFEERARITELA -
HUEEAEBBHEUATEEIIENGREE - 58
BECRBE-Z—=—F+-A-1+—BLFEUR
{B#93,765,0008 THE FBILE=H - REZFER -
AR ES A FEEWES 180,000 8 TTHENGZE B
HRIER - HEHE BB RRES D FEEH
— B EEGHEMR-BENENGEE -

R-F-—MOFE-A+HEA  AEERERAMEER
BB TR LT AR 22,000 E @A KE
440008 T - BE-F—WF+-A=+—HI
FE - RIHEEH - KER53,000ET -
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4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ZE-ME+_A=T—HIFE

(AETTIIR)

30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 30. EEARTERURRERREEEY
EQUIVALENTS
The Group The Company
AEH KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T-=% ZE—@mF —ET—=%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FHET TFET FHET
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHES 148,906 70,409 19,026 24,389
Pledged bank deposits BIIRRI TR 2,431 621 - -
151,337 71,030 19,026 24,389
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank FRIRITHHR SRR ARITE A FRF K AEMNT
deposit rates. B FI R BRELH B o
At the date of financial reporting, the Group’s pledged bank deposits REBRE B AEENSEPRITERE () EA
represented (i) deposits of approximately US$80,000 and F iR 1T K913 5% #980,000 3= 7T K& 1,004,000 7% 7T (&
HK$1,004,000 (in aggregate HK$1,626,000 (2013: HK$621,000)) 1,626,000/ L (=T — =4 : 621,00087T)) ' fEA
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities to the extent of AN % B #E 5 1,500,000 T( ZF — = F:
HK$1,500,000 (2013: HK$500,000) granted to the Group and is 500,000 7C) SRITREE IR - WHRIAETRAT
denominated in US$ and HK$ at fixed interest rate of 0.05% per annum THE  REEFMER005ENO7ERE  K(i) K
and 0.7% per annum respectively; and (i) deposits of approximately FIRITHFERA805,0008 T(ZTE—=F: TH
HK$805,000 (2013: HK$NIl) pledged to a bank as guaranteed fund for JT) » fEAAREEE RS E805,0008 T AN E B
a VISA/Master Card merchant account of the Group’s Online Shopping BB E TS VISA/Master Card X BR P R ERTTIR 75
Business to the extent of HK$805,000 granted to the Group and is ® - WABTTIE - HEEFFER02EHE - R
denominated in HK$ at fixed interest rate of 0.2% per annum. At 31 T—NFE+-A=1+—8 AEEGAHHFRIUR
December 2014, the Group had available undrawn banking facilities of TR B #)855,000/ L( =T —=4F : 265,000/87T) °
approximately HK$855,000 (2013: HK$265,000).
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30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents of the
Group and Company are denominated in the following currencies:

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE=

Z-MEF_A=+T—HIFE

(AETTIIR)

30. EEABRTHERURRESRASEEY

(&)

AEERARRNEERRTEFIAERERRESE
EYMATIEESNE :

The Group The Company
AEH PN

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T-=% ZE—@mF —T-=f
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT FTHET FHET
Uss$ Ev 65,305 44,958 - -
RMB AR 774 - 1 -
HK$ I 85,258 26,072 19,025 24,389
151,337 71,030 19,026 24,389

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AR LR SN B AR B rh B S EE & 72 A6 B e A
[E - BERMEEIRREREST

31. ESRHEHMENSRE

The Group The Company
AEH AT

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E—-NF —T—=F CZZE—NOF —E—=f

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET FAT THET FHET

Trade payables Z 5 RN 37,502 370 - =

Deferred income EEWA 2,049 - - -

Deposits received Blkize 38,121 150 - -
Accrued expenses and FEETE R R E M RN FKIE

other payables (note 31(c)) (FFEE31(c)) 21,393 4,412 1,802 2,294

99,065 4,932 1,802 2,294
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ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 31. ESRHEAMEMSRE(E)
(@ Ageing analysis (@) BRERDMT
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of B 5 A BRFIR RS & AR5 B Hi e AR e
receipt of goods/services, is as follows: AT
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
=2 —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Less than 3 months D3 1E A 32,685 370
More than 3 months but less than 12 months #8238 31E AE 47 1218 A 4,817 -
37,502 370
(b) Currency denomination of trade payables (b) EBEZEMNERNEWEN
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEBEEZEMNERNETDERNTERS
denominated in the following currencies: B :
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFE T FHET
us$ ETT 8,721 370
RMB AR 402 -
HK$ BT 28,379 -
37,502 370
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
(c) Commission clawback provision

As of 31 December 2014, included in accrued expenses and
other payables of the Group was commission clawback provision
on the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business of
approximately HK$4,500,000 (2013: HK$Nil). The commission
clawback provision represents expected cash outflows which are
estimated with reference to the sales volume, past experience of
the levels of clawback, and the directors’ best estimates of the
expenditure required to settle the obligations. The estimation
basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised by the
directors where appropriate.

The movement in commission clawback provision is as follows:

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

31. BEZRHEMmENSREE)

()

RECHEEe

RZZ-—NF+-A=+—8 AEEEFE
FA R E At JE AT SR IB B IR IR R IR R oa TE @ 5t &
M40 SE TSR & [l f 4B 40 4,500,000 8 7T (=
T—=F:THx) AeOMBEREHRR
SRE - MERRSTREHNISEHE - BHK
BEKTFUREEHEERETERINRE
HEHRMAEEE - EE R BEEMRNEER
RIS EBRAEETEE -

ReRmBHBEEsmT :

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-lmEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

At 1 January »n—RA—A
Provision for the year REF R

At 31 December w+—-—A=+—~”

4,500 =

4,500 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 32, ABRREE

(@) On 14 November 2012, the Company issued convertible notes in (@ RZZT—=—F+—ATHER KAFRBETEE

a principal amount of HK$20 million. The notes bear interest at
2% per annum, were unsecured and had a maturity date on 13
November 2013. The noteholder had the right to convert the
notes into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.1 per ordinary share up to 9 November 2013.

The convertible notes contained two components, liability and
equity components. The fair value of the liability component at
issue date was valued by an independent professional valuer
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
note. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
conversion option, was included in convertible note equity

%8 /20,000,000 8 T AT AR BRI - ZEE
BRENE2EAH S BAEKE  MYBEA
—T—=F+—A+=H - ZEEFHEABRER
BREBKROIBTHHAERRELIRAR
AEILEER BEE-Z-—=F+—AhA8A
U: °

N

THREEEEaERERMERD - BE
DREITASNAFEBELS BB IEEGE
AR ST R EENTISFIRGE - 8
BIEER L IMERNEE AR TR
EREREE RV HERRABELS KR
FHEH56E -

reserve within equity. The effective interest rate of the liability
component on initial recognition is 56% per annum.

The Group and the Company

AEERADT

Liability Equity
component component Total
aE&8s RIS Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHET
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H 14,044 6,605 20,649
Effective interest expenses BEMEMAY 1,664 = 1,664
Interest paid BERFE (143) = (143)
Conversion during the year FRHIR (15,565) (6,605) (22,170)

At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 R-ZE—=F+-—A=+—8 -
and 31 December 2014 —E=-—mE—A—AK

—E-FE+-A=+—8 = - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(b)

On 31 March 2013, upon completion of the acquisition of 50.5%
of the issued share capital of Apperience Corporation, the
Company issued zero coupon convertible notes in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$392,132,500 to vendors as partial
consideration for the acquisition at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.108 per conversion share. The maturity date of the
convertible notes is the date falling four years after the issue date.
Noteholders shall have the right to convert the notes into ordinary
shares at any time during the conversion period. If any amount
due under the convertible notes is not paid when due, at the
Company’s sole discretion, such amount shall be redeemed by
the Company by issue and delivery by the Company of a
promissory note in favour of the noteholder(s) in the principal
amount equal to 100% of such amount together with interest
accrued on the overdue sum at the rate which is the lower of (j)
HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum and (i) 4% per annum, and will be
due to mature on the first anniversary date of the issue of the
promissory note. The terms and conditions of the convertible
notes are summarised in the Company’s circular dated 23
February 2013. The convertible notes contain two components,
liability and equity components. The fair value of the liability
component at issue date was valued by an independent
professional valuer.

The liability component of convertible notes was initially stated at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method until distinguished on conversion.
The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 8% per annum.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

32. WREE (R

(b)

RZE—=F=ZA=+—8" =R KE
Apperience Corporation 50.5% & 21 TR% A& 1% -
RNATRME TS M5 R392,132,500 %
THZTETRRERIERKESERHRE -
MFHIBREREREIRRD 01088 T © Al
REE G EITH BRI RINBSE BEIE -
EBRFAABRRLIBLBAEREEREIRA
LBAR o MW ATHRAR AR TE T 1A & < FRIE R AE
RE|ERRF AT - RIBBF AR B AR TR
BED - FRARRFREEREABTRR
MNARSEERESREASE100% HELZE -
R HA R R () B A RITR ZE /B NE R &
15E R (i) FFEAEME P NBIEE R5TF
B WHRBETEALERR—REE BT -
AR EEOERRIEGHERR AL T HE
ABZE—=FAZ+=AMNEE - TERE
BEEABERERMELSD - AEBHNEIT
HEHN AT EEL—ZB I EEAEMEE -

AHMERENBERD SR FEER -
HENERFSEIZBHERATE BRI
B TR - AEMINYTHERRHERSE
MEDBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(b)

HE-T—/Y
(A TTER)

FH-A=t+—HILFE

32. WREE (R

(continued) b)y (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2014, taking into effect the HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE 7tk
adjustment upon the completion of share reorganisation on 18 R *@Etﬂ TNABRG EHETHEEL
July 2014 (note 35(b)), the Company issued a total of 38,532,464 AN E(MFE350) % ARRAIRERR
(2013: 3,476,726,611 before share reorganisation) conversion BAITEATE B0 8 AR TE AR R IR ATHT 5
shares pursuant to the exercise of the conversion right attached BIEMEITA 38,532,464 R (ZF— =4 :
to all the then outstanding convertible notes in the aggregate A% 5 B4R A 4 3,476,726,611 B%) Xk » &
principal amount of approximately HK$16,646,000 (2013: S BEEX H16,646,0008 T(Z T — =4 :
HK$375,486,000) by noteholders. 375,486,000 7T) ©
The Group and the Company
AEERAKAT
Liability Equity
component component Total
aE&H RIS #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHTT FHT
Issue of convertible notes BITAIRRER 282,160 325,290 607,450
Effective interest expenses BEERANEMAX 12,880 - 12,880
Conversion during the year FRH; (282,296) (311,481) (593,777)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-Z—=%#+_-F=+—H
;kZF—mMFE—A—AH 12,744 13,809 26,553
Effective interest expenses BEMEMAX 823 - 823
Conversion during the year FRHM (18,567) (13,809) (27,376)
At 31 December 2014 RZF—HmF+=RA=+—H = - =
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PERFORMANCE SHARES

Upon completion of the acquisition of 50.5% of the issued share capital
of Apperience Corporation on 31 March 2013 (“Completion Date”), the
Company agreed to issue additional ordinary shares of the Company
(“Performance Shares”) based on target profit of Apperience
Corporation as partial consideration for the acquisition at a issue price
of HK$0.108 per performance share, the maximum number of which
shall be 1,452,342,588 subject to adjustments. Performance Shares
shall be allotted and issued as fully paid, within one month after audited
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014 are available (“Tranche |
Performance Shares”). Performance Shares shall be allotted and issued
as fully paid, within one month after audited accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2015 are available (“Tranche Il Performance Shares”).

As at 31 December 2013, Tranche | Performance Shares approximate
to HK$52,037,000 were classified as current liabilities while Tranche |I
Performance Shares approximate to HK$52,531,000 were classified as
non-current liabilities. The liability of Performance Shares represent the
fair value of Tranche | Performance Shares and Tranche Il Performance
Shares to be issued to the vendors under the contingent consideration
arrangement in the acquisition of subsidiaries described in note 39(b).

On 6 June 2014, the Company issued a total of 715,522,718 Tranche |
Performance Shares (note 35(e)). The fair value of Performance Shares
of approximately HK$32,914,000 was credited to share capital and
share premium at the date of issuance of Shares. The maximum
outstanding number of the Tranche Il Performance Shares and the
unissued Tranche | Performance Shares (the “Outstanding Performance
Shares”) is 736,819,870. With the immediate effect of the share
reorganisation took place on 18 July 2014 (note 35(b)) and at 31
December 2014, the maximum number of Outstanding Performance
Shares which may be allotted and issued by the Company is adjusted
to 184,204,967 new shares (subject to further adjustment), and the
issue price at which the Outstanding Performance Shares shall be
allotted and issued is adjusted to HK$0.432 per new share (subject to
further adjustment).

33.

WRE IS ER R MR
HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE
(AP TTEIR)

RERH

RZZ—=F=A=+—8B(=KBEH]) TR UKE
Apperience Corporation 50.5% B 3 1T AN 1% - AR
7] [8 & 1R #& Apperience Corporation 8 B 124 F1| 2 17
BINKARIEBR((RRRG]) - (ERKESEERS
RE BITELSFRRBEKMN0.108B T - 818 IR
#31,452,342,588 % (A] T35 &) « RPWH R =
ZENF=ZA=+—HALFENCERRBERET
KE—EARARBREFREERET(TE SRR
B - REABRMDEREBEE_T—AF=A=1+—8H
IFFENREZRR RETHRE—MEARNAFHETR
fogs kBT ([E P RBRMD D) -

RZE—=F+-A=+—8 F—HREBMHAEE
#152,037,0008 TH AR EE  ME_HRE
B B8 #952,531,0008 T Al DB A ERBAE
KERMOEESEEERNBIBRSIARE R HE A
3 it M B AR E H BITE B RBR
MREZBPRBBRD A FEE -

R-ZE—MNENANHE ARQARIBEITAHR
715,622,718 R E— AL X IB M) (I 5E35(¢)) « REMR
P RAFBELNS2,914,0008 TE RN ETE B
BEARLAS R BB » B R R ARBITE—
BERBBROTERITERBERD D &S M RTES
B 7%736,819,870/Kk - RN EAER_ZT—HNFELH
T NABEIEF AR (HES50) MR T —NHF+=
=+—08  AAFA TRERETHRITERRR
PRIRSE B AR5 184,204,967 R FT A% 10 (A F i
—SRE) M TERERBETHHKRITERRERD
HEITERARAERIRG0.4328 T (7] Tift—
W) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. PERFORMANCE SHARES (continued)

The fair values of the Performance Shares at the Completion Date and
at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were valued by an independent

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

33. ®RERG (&)

REBMHREXAHFUAR-T-—NER_T—=F
T A=+ —BNATEEHR BB EEMGEMMG

professional valuer. EEY o
The Group and the Company
AEBMREAT
2014 2013
=2 —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
Fair value: NEEE :
Balance at 1 January R—A—BN&EH 104,568 -
Performance shares estimated at PTERK B Bl R KRB R D
the Completion Date - 177,186
Issued of shares during the year ERNBITRG (32,914) -
Less: fair value gains W AP BEKES (57,323) (72,618)
Balance at 31 December R+ -A=+—B84%&H 14,331 104,568
Analysed as: aRiv=%
Current liabilities ERE 14,331 52,037
Non-current liabilities ERBAR - 52,531
14,331 104,568

The details of the calculation of the Performance shares are summarised
in the Company’s circular dated 23 February 2013.

REBRMOFATETDERARRARR T —=F
ZAZ+=BrmEARit -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34. DEFERRED TAX

(@) Deferred tax liabilities

AR B R M R
BE-F-MET-A=+—BILEE

(AETTIIR)

34. EERE

(a) EEHBEE

The Group

AEE

Intangible

assets

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—HA—H -

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) U B B 8 A Al B 2= A (BT 2E 39(b)) 7,511

Credit to profit and loss (note 13) HAEZ(EE13) (3,289)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-B—=%F+—-A=+—A0EF

—ZF-mE—f—8 4,222

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) W B M B A BB A (P 3% 39(a)) 2,293

Charge to profit and loss (note 13) HAJE2E (HEE13) 77

At 31 December 2014 R-ZTE—mE+—-—/F=+—H 6,592

(b) Deferred tax assets

The Group has not recognised any deferred tax assets in respect
of tax losses carried forward of approximately HK$50,489,000
(2013: HK$18,436,000) due to the unpredictability of the future
profit streams.

The unused tax losses will be expired in the following years

(b) EEFREEE
MR AEERAETR B & A0SR - B E

A HIEE184950,489,000 8 L (—F—=
% : 18,436,000/8 7T ) R EEIERIAEE -

APAREBEEENATEEZET —A=1T—8H

ending 31 December: IEFERER
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-—MmEFE —F=

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
2018 —E-N\F 19 -
2019 —E-NF 2 -
No expiry date & fEm B 50,468 18,436
50,489 18,436
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-MF+-_A=+—RLFE
(LA TTER)

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B
Nominal
value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREE BRGOEE kX
Note HK$ ’000 HK$'000
sk BIT T FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares L
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—A—H 0.10 4,000,000 400,000
Increase in authorised capital ANEE AR 35(a) 0.10 4,000,000 400,000
At 31 December 2013 and RN-ZT—=F+=-A=+—8
1 January 2014 EZZT—MNF—A—H 0.10 8,000,000 800,000
Share consolidation 1 & Bf 35(b)(i) 0.40 (6,000,000) -
Capital reduction and share subdivision &7 Bil 5 &2 %15 4+ 4 35(b)(ii) 0.01 78,000,000 -
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NF+=-A=+—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITREE:
Ordinary shares Tima
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 0.10 1,248,893 124,889
Shares issued on conversion of AR R IR BT S
convertible notes 35(c) 0.10 200,000 20,000
Shares issued on conversion of AR R IR TR
convertible notes 35(d) 0.10 3,476,727 347,673
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+=A=+—H
1 January 2014 ;r—ZT-—MNF—-—HA—H 0.10 4,925,620 492,562
Performance shares issued BBEITRRRG 35(e) 0.10 715,523 71,552
Share consolidation &t & pf 35(b)(i) 0.40 (4,230,857) -
Capital reduction and share subdivision B& 7 &1 5 J% 15 75 48 35(b)(ii) 0.01 (550,011)
New issue of consideration shares METRERD 35(f) 0.01 186,047 1,860
Shares issued on conversion of AR AR IR A BT TR
convertible notes 35(d) 0.01 38,532 385
Placing of shares fid E /x5 35(g) 0.01 319,260 3,193
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H 0.01 1,954,125 19,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 12 March 2013, the authorised ordinary share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$400,000,000 divided into
4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$800,000,000 divided into
8,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each by the creation of an additional
4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, such new shares ranking pari
passu with the existing shares of the Company.

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 24 June 2014 in
respect of the capital reorganisation. Unless otherwise specified herein,
capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the circular.

The capital reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on 17 July
2014 and became effective on 18 July 2014. The capital reorganisation
involved the followings:

(i) Share consolidation

Pursuant to the share consolidation, every four issued and
unissued then existing shares of the Company of HK$0.10 each
have been consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.40
each (“2014 Consolidated Shares”) and the total number of
consolidated shares has been rounded down to a whole number
by cancelling any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the share consolidation.

(ii) Capital reduction and share subdivision

— the issued share capital of the Company has been reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.39 on each of the issued
2014 Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of
each issued 2014 Consolidated Share has been reduced
from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01;

— immediately following the capital reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued 2014 Consolidated Share of
HK$0.40 each was sub-divided into 40 new shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company; and

— the credits arising in the books of the Company from (i) the
cancellation of any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the share consolidation; and (i) the
reduction of the paid-up capital of the Company of
approximately HK$550,011,000 has been credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company within the
meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

35. MRA(#)
M
@ BER-T-=4=A+-AEALARREIAE

WBM YL BRESR - BB SMERR4,000,000,000 8%
FREEAOETHRN  BARBNETE T BARA
£ 400,000,000% 7T (4 A& 4,000,000,000 A% & B &
0.107 7T 9 % 19 ) #% %£800,000,0005% T( 5 &
8,000,000,000 I F R EE0.108 TR ) » Mz
FRMERATIRGRMNZE B SE -

ZIREARREPR T NFEAATERBEHER
REEIEK © BRXES B - ABRARRR
ZBHFREERBAREE

BABHERARRNE-_T—NFLA+LRETH
BRI G EARBBRILE - YR —F—M0F+
ATNBER - RAEESRATEEA

AARSRAHBECIOETERITRAREITE
RIBERNDSERE G A REE040ET
Aol n((—F—mFEAHFRN]) - ME6
BHEBHEEBEHERND A HIEEAR
BB BITRAT ER RN MES REH -

(i) AR AR BIR B B 1 AR

= HHEAAREREET T —NES
BEARD B B U A AR 0.39 78 7T + 5 LAKI
RARRMBEBEITRA - SBREHE
T —NFEEHRMHMEERO0.40
ABITRZE0.0177T

= ZRERAHEIRE - SEEA0.4078 T
HPEEERBIT S —NFEA KRN
BRIFMAIOREREECOTAET
IR A RFRND &

— E () AR A B BT AP E RS
& BHm E £ MR TR ¢ K (i)
RARBBERERNTMEARRRE +
o 35 B9 3 BR 49550,011,000 % 7T B #
ARXRRAMERBHRE(ERE R
—AN—FERERATE) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
IZ\‘/\IZ|/

SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(©

On 14 November 2012, the Company issued convertible notes in a
principal amount of HK$20,000,000. The noteholder has a right to convert
the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion shares (note 32(a)). On 25
March 2013, the Company issued a total of 200,000,000 conversion
shares to the noteholder at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per
conversion share pursuant to the exercise of the conversion right attached
to the convertible notes by the noteholder. The details of the convertible
notes and the conversion are contained in the Company’s announcements
dated 28 September 2012, 14 November 2012 and 19 March 2013.

On 31 March 2013, upon completion of the acquisition of 50.5% of the
issued share capital of Apperience Corporation, the Company issued
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$392,132,500.
The noteholders have right to convert the convertible notes into ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.108 per
conversion share, subject to the conditions as mentioned in note 32(b).
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company issued a total of
3,476,726,611 conversion shares to the converting noteholders pursuant
to the exercise of conversion right attaching to the convertible notes in the
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$375,486,000 at the
conversion price of HK$0.108 per conversion share. The details of the
convertible notes and the conversion are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 23 February 2013 and the Company’s announcements dated 5
December 2012, 12 March 2013, 1 April 2013, 2 April 2013, 26 August
2013, 2 September 2013, 25 November 2013, 10 December 2013 and
23 December 2013.

With the immediate effect of share reorganisation took place on 18 July
2014 (note 35(b)), pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible
notes, the conversion price of the convertible notes was adjusted to
HK$0.432 per conversion share (subject to further adjustment) and the
number of shares of the Company which to be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights was adjusted to 38,532,464 new shares
(subject to further adjustment). On 6 October 2014, the Company issued a
total of 38,632,464 conversion shares to the remaining noteholder at the
conversion price of HK$0.432 per conversion share. The details of the
conversion is set out in the Company’s announcement dated 30
September 2014.

Reference is made to the circulars of the Company dated 23 February
2013 and the Company’s announcements dated 19 May 2014, 20 May
2014 and 21 May 2014 in relation to the acquisition of Apperience Group
and the issue of Tranche | Performance Shares. Capitalised terms used in
this paragraph shall have the same meaning as defined in the circulars. In
accordance with the Acquisition Agreement, an aggregate of 715,522,718
Tranche | Performance Shares (note 33) have been allotted and issued,
credited as fully paid, by the Company to the Vendors on 6 June 2014.

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

35. A (&)

FaE : ()

©

R-ZZE——F+—A+MAB NARBIREEA
20,000,000 B T H AT ARSI - RIRFFE A B HERY)
B EER RN 0.1078 7T (F7E32(9)) i A &
BEBABAARALER - R_T—=F=A
Z+EREA - ARARERFE ATTE AR IRATHT
HREM IR E RSB 0108 T AR ERZ K
A AE1TA $£200,000,000 % 5 AR D o A B AT AR
ERRAEBNFEIRNARABRA-T——FNA
Zt+N\B ZE—ZF+—RA1TmBERZZT—=F=
B+hBHAE -

RZT—=F=A=+—8 - %W Apperience
Corporation 50.5% B B 1TIR A% « KARIEITAESHE
% 5392,132,500 8 TTH AT AR 2K - WIS HIRER
BFIRA AR 0108 TT + M2 M 5 32(0) BTt 6 14 F7
R BHEISAEABRBITARERARARARLR
B-BEZFT—=F+-A=+—HLFE ' AQ7
AN 4858 49 5 375,486,000 7 7T K 7] $2 A% 22 4% A B
HIRER S IRESREARRM 0108 B T ETEMm R
HITHBNRBIFEAEITE£3,476,726611 K K
B - BT RRERRAROFBEHRALAA
AT =F_A-+=HNBRUARANRR B
AZFT——F+=-AAB - ZT—=F=A+=8-
—E-=NmNA—H —T—=FmMA-H - -F
—=®#NA=Zt+A~A - ZT—=%NAA=H - =%
—=#+—fA-+A8 —EB-=F+-A+BE=
T—=F+-A-F+ZBHRE

PEERMDEAR —F—MF-L A+ /\ B B8 A2 (K
FE35() * MBI RBRER 2GR EMEME - TRER
B RBEERERSREIMAN 04328 (AT
E—FRE) MABRBEETERETRERETL
AR 8B R 7 38,632,464 T LD (AT F
HE—FHE)  c RZF-—MEFTARB  ARAIRE
BESRERARN 04328 TAH T RIEIFEART
£ k38,532,464 LR (D - HIRHBEHRARER
HR-ZE-—NFAA=ZTHNRE -

HRMANRIBHA-T—=F-_A=-+=BHEHX
AEAARIBRBA-—S—NFAA+NAH  —F—N0
FRAZ+TAR=-T-—MERA-+—ANRE "
A% Uk EE Apperience 55 B R BT —HERIBRRD ©
ANERFT AR B KT E & A A AEREE o RIBUK
Bipg ARFER-ZT—NEXANBAES RS
RETARIEZEZHE -—HRBERGHE &
715,522,718 % (H#£33) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

) On 10 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with EPRO Systems Limited for the acquisition of e-Perfect Group at a
consideration of HK$48,000,000. On 31 July 2014, completion of the
acquisition of e-Perfect Group took place, and pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement, the Company issued 186,046,500 consideration
shares of HK$0.01 each to the ultimate holding company of e-Perfect,
DX.com Holdings Limited, as a settlement of the consideration for the
acquisition of e-Perfect IT. The fair value of 186,046,500 new shares was
approximately HK$29,395,000, based on the bid price (HK$0.158 per
consideration share) at 31 July 2014.

(9) On 6 October 2014, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement with a placing agent in respect of the placement of
319,260,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each of the Company to not less
than six placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be
independent third parties independent of the Company and its subsidiaries
and not connected nor acting in concert with any of the connected
persons of the Company and its subsidiaries or any of their respective
associates, on a best effort basis, at a placing price of HK$0.121 per
share. The placing of the shares was completed on 17 October 2014. The
net proceeds from the placing (after deduction of commission of the
placing) were approximately HK$37,469,000 and approximately
HK$34,276,000 was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for the shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements as to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group and the Company monitor its capital structure on the basis
of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debts is defined
as total debts (which includes trade and other payables, amount due to
a subsidiary, convertible notes and performance shares, which is
applicable). Equity comprises share capital and reserves.

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

35. A (&)

FaE : ()

4} R-ZT—MEAATA  AEERASEZRFARAT
AVEEHE RAEHAKBLESE  RER
48,000,000 7T - WHE EEEEMKN T —NF+ A
=+—HTEX REEEHRZE  AAREREENHR
#&P2 BR X 7] DX.com 2 R B R A 7 8 17 186,046,500
BREREE0.01 BITHRERD - EMKELEN
RE-ZR-_F—NFLA=1+—BNERE(SR
KB 01584 7C) 5T E + 186,046,500 B ¥TA% 15 #)
A FEEH 529,395,000 7T °

(©) RZZ—MFE+ARA  ARREREEREITIHK
HELE R - WA A BEBERMERTORANEBEEA
(EEREZHMEANBABINARAR REWEAR
B E =7 - BIWmEARD A RENE QR ER
BEALTRHESENTABHEALTAEMERE - 7
FEERAE E —FITEN M) A ) Bl & 319,260,000 AR & A%
EEO.OTETHALNREER  ILEEBER0121E
e BERMER=ZT—NF+A+LBEREK - %
FEMBREFE(CNMRESSEZAL)OA
37,469,000 7T + 434,276,000/ L E AR AT
AR A7 4 (BB o

N

A A S BRRTE SRS, - LERRA
ARAE HRER—BERERR L BREAR
F

I EETEHF A RSER

AEEEREATEEERBASENKEL LS
N ERERBKTFHENERMRBEBARRE
BRAEGRLE - (i ae B BAUR IR o

AEEEGRE SRR MEREEARERE - UEFR
BEFUKF AR R B RN R MR ARG TN A
EARIATE RIS 1 SRR 2 R4 - AR
BB A RE R HIET

AEBERARRIZE A R AR EERAEAR
Bttt KREBAEFRACHAEBRE(BE
BoNEMENTIR BN —HEREARREA - 7k
BEERRRE (WNER)) - SRR R -

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014

167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35.

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 35. WA (#E)
During 2014, the Group’s strategy was to maintain a debt-to-equity RIZE—NF FEERDNRKAEFEEHER
ratio at not more than 45% (2013: 45%). In order to maintain or adjust LEERAR R 45% (2T — =4F : 456%) H)KF o AR
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to LABZLE  AEFETARRARIELTHORES
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise B BITHRG ARRBEER  ERMETRE
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts. L E B EURLE ©
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T-=% ZE-—@mF —ET—=%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FHET FE T FET
Debts &% 167,921 157,278 18,561 119,606
Equity S 726,352 553,756 674,527 545,686
Debt-to-equity ratio BESERLE 23% 28% 3% 22%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report
from the share registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing
the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the
25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2014, approximately
96.46% (2013: 72.6%) of the shares were in public hands.

AR B R E M A B SN N E AR E PR
MR o

B—IINBESRTERAEEBEABE V25N AR
&8 LA MR HR B X P A ZE IR ) E T - AEEE
EHRERGOBPEREREEROERMEDER
FARFREORSE  RENFAN—EETHR25%
BRERT R_ZT—NWOFE+=_A=+—8" 4
96.46% (=T —=F : 72.6% )N HEARALIFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
36. RESERVES 36. f#fE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) AR ES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of AEBIRE M S EARRK S0 2 A EAR B R
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in B HNEERERNGERRZEE - NAF
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the BRI AR I D R EF BT R 2 MO T

changes in the Company’s individual components of equity BT

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company AAT

Share  Convertible

Share Share  Contributed option  note equity Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TRREE
B BREEE RAESR BRERE EERE ZitER @t

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T TR TR TAT TR AT TR

At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%-A-H 124,889 206,661 2,985 310 6,605 (220,432 121,018
Issue of convertible notes BIRRE

(notes 32(b) and 39(0)) (H7E32(b) 2 39(0) - - - - 325,290 - 325,290
Shares issued on conversion of convertible notes 3 A R Z EE %17k )

(notes 32(a) and 35(c)) (Mi3E32(a) B 35(c) 20,000 2,170 = = (6,605) = 15,565
Transfer to contributable surplus BRZESRS

(note 38(0)i) (R 3610)00) - (408259) 408,053 = = = =
Shares issued on conversion of convertiole notes 3 4 Al i Z B 247117

(notes (32(5) and 35(c) (MzE32(b) 2 35(0) 347,673 246,104 - - (311,481) - 282,296
Loss and total comprehensive income AEEEFRREANGRE

for the year - - - - - (198,483 (198,483

At31December 2013 and at 1 January 2014 ~ R-Z-=H+-A=+-8

k=Z-mE-A-A 492,562 46,682 411,238 310 13,809 (418,915) 545,686

Performance shares issued BETRBRA

(note 35(g) (HizE35(e) 71,552 (38,638) - - - - 32,914
Share option lapsed (note 37) SRR (MEET) - - - (310) - 310 =
Share consolication and capital reduction i3 A B R EE

(note 35(0)il) (P 35(0)(i) (550,011) - 550,011 - - - -
Shares issued for acquisition of subsidlaries Y BARREIRG

(notes 35(f) and 39(a)i) (P31 350 B2 39(ali) 1,860 27,53 - - - = 29,395
Share issued on conversion of convertiole HATRREERETRN

notes (notes 32(p) and 35(d) (P332(0) & 35(d) 3% 26991 = = (13,809) - 13567
Placing of shares (note 35(g) BERR (M 35) 3,193 34,276 = = = S 37,469
Profit and total comprehensive income FEERTRE NG EE

for the year 7 - - 1 - 15,49 15,496
At 31 December 2014 R-E-MmE+=A=1+-8 19,541 96,846 961,249 - - (403,109) 674,527

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2014 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AE-F-ME+-A=+—BILFE
(LAETTHIR)

36. RESERVES (continued) 36. fEfE (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) REENHEEREN

(i) Share premium () K178
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman BIEFEFSAREUSEIAR) - RAF
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the BRADEEBERANE S A 9K T AR BE
Company are distributable to the equity shareholders of HRE EREEERS KRS B
the Company provided that immediately following the date % AARKERNERBBERKEE
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the PSR EAEIE -
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 19 December BERZTE—=F+=-A+ 1L BRAN
2013, the change of the domicile of the Company from the HRIAZR ARapAERSEMRE
Cayman lIslands to Bermuda was approved by the BREDEREIE - AARIEBMER
shareholders. The change of domicile of the Company RZZE—MFE—ANAZK - IREER
was subsequently completed on 9 January 2014. Under E—NN—FRRE  ARBIRDEE
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds in the BRATLABUR AT 5 DK o
share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

(i) Contributed surplus (i)  EHEER

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 18 December 2001,
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange thereof.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation over the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
thereof.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 19 December
2013, the amount of approximately HK$408,253,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Group was cancelled and transferred to an account
designated as contributed surplus account.

AEENEHBREREARTAHA
—ETF4 - A+T\BNBRERRMR
#H - REBARRRMD B LT
BEAEERBENEANE((KEE
#81) PRIk BRI A B e A E AL AR
RABRBLMBEITORMDEEREHE

ARBNEHERIERIEEEEHMK
BHEARNAFEEBALAARAR
BMBETHRNEENERE -

BERZE—=F+=-A+ 1 BRAN
FFRRESR - ANEERD R EROER
£ 58 47408,253,0008 7L E FrEsH » I
BREETABBRBENERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

v)

Contributed surplus (continued)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the contributed surplus account of the Company
is distributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the distribution or
payment of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

After the change of domicile, under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus account is available
for distribution to shareholders. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if:

= the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

— the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options granted
to a consultant of the Group that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share
options granted to consultants in note 3(r).

Convertible note equity reserve

The convertible note equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of the notes issued (note
32).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the end of the reporting period and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in
note 3(l) to the financial statements.

36. fw#fE (&)

e BRI

HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

(AETTIIR)

(b) EENEERENE)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

v)

Bz (F)

BRERSEBRERREUERIA)  KAAH
MEBARBEA 2K AR R ERR
R HERBBEERDIKSORM SR -
RAREBRNERE A BEBEEPI
TEHEER -

BME REARE-NAN—F2F
e BRBBEARIIKRTRE R
il - WEEATER - AARRABTEE
IRSRARE - B EHBBPERS
K

— ARRARBRERMNEGEEE
BEEMAME K

- ARRAENTEREBEETRNY
BEEIREABEREDEITR
AN PA R B f ik (B BR 9 4B ©

BRI

BRERERERNAEEZABRRRH

MARTTEBEENREABAFEES
Fh AR A% BT 5 3(n) P 88 31 ) 7% 5 5 A B

15 1 R B4 ) B BUR B R B
e

A R R i i 1

R EEERRER DR ITRIENE
% 2 (i) (HE32) -

RE B #AE

&ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ@%“%iﬂﬁﬁﬁTﬁ
HESREENRFANTEES
%vﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁw%ﬁaﬁ
BURERTE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

36. RESERVES (continued) 36. fEfE (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (b) RBEHEERBENE)
(v Exchange reserve (i) [EZEE
The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign AEBRELFBRIENERIMNEEE
exchange differences arising from the translation of the S RRE LN EINEZERE  Zf#
financial statements of foreign operations, The reserve is ERIBEMES) TS E T BRI E -
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 3(d).
37. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 37. UERGZEURGAERNRS
Share Option Scheme BT &
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) is to enable BRRETE([518)) B EEARRMAEEEEK
the Company to grant options to either directors or employees of the EEREBEE URBERSBESHAEEIELT
Group in order to recognise and motivate their contribution, to provide B ANEB BB AEBERERE GRS MEBFBEN
incentives and to help the Group in retaining its existing employees and BFEREE BEEFEESZLANEBERBAELER
recruiting additional employees by providing them with a direct RIS BERR -
economic interest in attaining the long term business objectives of the
Group.
The Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting may at any time RRARARRERAE AT BRERBERFLZIERITE
terminate the operation of the Scheme and in such event no further g MRZERATBTEREERE - TSN
options will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of the HER—YEM S EEEEAN  BERKIERTET
Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to R BRI S AT T o
the exercise of any options granted prior to such termination.
(@ The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: @ R EARAEFLT
Contractual
Number of Vesting life of
instruments conditions options
IEKE BEGG BRESOH
000
T
Options granted to a consultant I — % 56 SRR RS % D B AR A 0 year 3 years
— 19 May 2011 - —F——FHA+AhH 12,400% 04 3F
# After share consolidation became effective on 18 July 2011, the # BHEHR=_ZT——FEA+ N \BERE -
number of share options was reduced to 6,200,000. Each option BRI EL B R E 6,200,00017 © 517 B A e A
entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in the FHA AENRE-RAAR LB -
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

Re MR R

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

37. LESAFEUROH/ERNIS (F)

B8 (&)

(b)  BERIEHE RINEFEITEELLT -

2014 2013
—2-mE TE-=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
IniEFE5 B RE ¥ fE R
TEE A TEE B
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T4
Outstanding at the beginning of EY RIS
the year 0.116* 6,200 0.116* 6,200
Lapsed during the year FRRK 0.116* (6,200) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year K % K771E N/ATEHR = 0.116* 6,200
Exercisable at the end of the year & a] F17/F N/A FiE A - 0.116* 6,200
* Adjusted for share consolidation became effective on 18 July J BR—ZE——FE+ A+ N \BERNRDE G
2011. TEHFEE -

All share options granted under the Scheme were lapsed on 20
May 2014. No share option was granted during the year ended
31 December 2014.

At 31 December 2013, the share options outstanding had an
exercise price of HK$0.116 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.6 years.

SHEIE TR 0T SRR = F — 4 1
—tA%%-BE-E-MET=A=+—A
L4 FE PO it (TR

MR-E—=F+-"A=+—8  HKRTEEK
ERNTFEEA0I16EIT - MEFHHT AL
A6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

VSRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(continued)

(©

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

37. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 37. URREEURGAERNS (E&)
Share Option Scheme (continued) BRI (&)
Fair value of share options and assumptions ©  FBREXFEERESR
The fair value of services received in return for share options HHRER T ——FAA TN BELERER
granted on 19 May 2011 was measured by reference to the fair EREHATEBENISBAREERENTE
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of B2 - IR HERIEN R T EEFEARD
the share options granted was measured based on the Black REFRATRAG E - WRA B A BB BIERE
Scholes model. The contractual life of the share option is used as RIES L - BET ATBHIREITHE -
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise were
incorporated into the Black Scholes model.
Fair value of share options and assumptions for the year ended BHEZT—=F+-A=+—RHLFEERE
31 December 2013 N EBERRE
Date of grant on 19 May 2011
BREAH-—ZTZ—FRATAIE
Before share After share
consolidation consolidation
became became
effective on effective on
18 July 2011 18 July 2011
f&17 & HHR 17 & BF
—ZT—F RZZE——%F
+ATN\BEME AT N\BERE
Fair value at measurement date FrERBMNATER HK$0.025 HK$0.05
0.025% 7T 0.0587T
Share price A% (5 HK$0.057 HK$0.114
0.057 7T 0.1147%7T
Exercise price 1T1E(8 HK$0.058 HK$0.116
0.058& 7T 0.116/87T
Expected volatility (expressed as TEERR IR (IR N = ST R TR =
weighted average volatility used in Ffr A i3 g 251)
the modelling under Black Scholes model) 94.62% 94.62%
Option life (expressed as weighted PR B (IR W R ST R TR = 1.5 years 1.5 years
average life used in the modelling FrA T FEEZ25) 1.5 1.5
under Black Scholes model)
Expected dividends TEEARR B Nil £ Nil £
Risk-free interest rate A2 2 B ) 2 0.37% 0.37%

The expected volatility was based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends were based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

TR IR AR SRR R - IREE IR P8R T F
HEtE - UARMASER B ERTRE R R IR IR
EHRE - RERSNELRERE - TEEHARUR
RBREEATH RN FEEGBTERERTE
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Share options were granted under a service condition. This condition
had not been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

The eligible participants of the Scheme include any employee of the
Group including any executive and any non-executive directors of the
Group.

The grant of share options should be accepted within a period of 7
days from the date upon which an offer of the grant of an option is
made to a participant, at a consideration of HK$1, being payable by the
grantee upon the acceptance of grant.

The options may be exercised in whole or in part at any time during the
period to be determined and identified by the Board, but in any event
such exercise period shall not exceed a period of ten years
commencing on the date of grant of the relevant option, subject to the
early termination of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options was determinable by the Board
at its absolute discretion, but was not able to be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the ten business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iv) the nominal value of the Share on the date of grant.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the maximum number of shares in the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options may be
granted under the Scheme when aggregated with any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of adoption of the Scheme or the date on which
such limit is refreshed by the shareholders of the Company (“Refreshed
10% Limit”). Subsequent to the capital reorganisation of the Company
having become effective on 24 March 2015, the Refreshed 10% Limit
was 12,314,052 new shares of the Company, which represented
approximately 6.30% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this Report.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

37.

e BRI

HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

(AETTIIR)

DRSEEURNBERNR S (F)

BB T IRIE RIS IR IHIR - ST EPTERIRTE IR
B R FEBER LA KU RGN - WEERERE
R TS T -

AEMAER2EEREAREEFES -
B E [T RAEMIERITES -

BREARE

RERBRERRM2EBA TR EBRES B R7
AR RERTEL  BABRXBEAREARLR
XA e

BRETTNESSET EIRER 2RI 1T
8 B AN A BRI TR NS B IR KRR AE
HEEET 8 - MERT IR IRATAR AL -

BRENTEETHEFSB/EWBEE - NEE
%Tﬂ%%%’“%@ﬂ&ﬁE%CmﬁL%E)E

R ARERMAFILTE (i) ROV BEER L A
AT L{EE % B EM RS R MERMIFHRTE
(i) A0 HO BB AR H B AT HE 2 X B ER R ATE A
WERAIIFHETE - R B ORE LA SNE
B~

RIEETE] - B BITE T a8 AT B AR T T
MA] FEITHARRRNDESEE « ERANA TR
HiERET SR OBREREFE - TEHABK
METEI A I BRI EA R RIRRE I E A B BT
B&1n 10% ([ E#H10% LR ]) - R=ZZT—HF=A
“HMBARRBRAZHEERE  EEH10% LR
712,314,062 RA R BHR D - (ERR TR AR E
AEIRE 81T 416.30% °

BEALAER - RITRRE & RAABEFAEA
FERCRERT BIPT X KB MORTT R AVAT A W R TT BB AR
HE T AL T EATHI R PMEEI S RIS TSR B TR E
BATRAD #9 30% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37.

38.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

No option may be granted to any person if the total number of shares
of the Company already issued and issuable to him under all the
options granted to him in any 12 month period up to and including the
date of grant exceeding 1% of total number of shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting. Any grant of option to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates which would result in the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital and having an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on its adoption date.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 before 1 June 2013 and HK$30,000
commencing from 1 June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic
salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and have no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its employees
in respect of its subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the PRC. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014 in respect of
the retirement of its employees.

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

37.

38.

DRSEEURNBERNR S (F)

HWRBERE B (2EZA) LT 1218 A 56 -
RER TR ALK BIRED & KA F#ITHA
REIRMBEBBINZ L B HE BTRDEE1% -
AFREREEALTREBERE - E—PREBBZ
1% PR BE ) B AR ZB 1 AR A | 1) 38 38 ok % IR SRR IR BR
REHE o WERE T EZRREBIIERITES S
BESENBEATHERE  BEBRREM12
8 A BRI B B RGO IR R TR B BT R
HEBITHRRG BEBBAA R B BITRA0A% A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries

During the year, the Group obtained control of GET Mdream,
Lujolujo, e-Perfect Group and Wafer HK. Details of the
acquisitions are as follows:

(i) Acquisition of GET Mdream

On 28 March 2014, Fast Yield Holdings Limited (“Fast
Yield”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party, the vendor, entered into a
memorandum of understanding in relation to the
acquisition by Fast Yield of the entire equity interest in GET
Mdream. The acquisition took place on 2 April 2014 at a
consideration of approximately HK$1,033,000.

GET Mdream is principally engaged in Insurance and MPF
Schemes Brokerage Business in Hong Kong and is a
member of the Professional Insurance Brokers
Association.

(ii) Acquisition of Lujolujo

On 8 April 2014, Lucky Famous Limited (“Lucky Famous”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
subscription agreement with Mr. Mok Kwan Yat and
Mr. Cheng Wai Cheung, Herman, the vendors of Lujolujo,
and Lujolujo, pursuant to which Lucky Famous has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and Lujolujo has
conditionally agreed to issue new shares (“Subscription
Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$14,000,000. The
Subscription Shares represent 77% of the issued share
capital of Lujolujo (as enlarged by the issue of the
Subscription Shares) upon completion which took place
on 23 April 2014.

Lujolujo is principally engaged in Online Shopping
Business under the name of “Funshare.com”.

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

39. GERERBRMEE

@

W BB B Bt B

FRAKERFHSE S - Luolujo « EE
SENEEEBNIEGRE o WIBFBOT

(i) WiEHEE

RZZE—MFE=A=F+NA ' ARa%2
WD R R B R A E (TR ])
BB E=7 (BRI LR ER
8 - NAE AR EE 52 R
o WERN T —MEMA AKX -
KB4 51,033,000 T °

BEEHTENEELERBEABES
AR ECESES O IF&%&%?}%%E‘\W

weEes -

(i) He5E Lujolujo

—HFEMANR » ARBEZEW
B A &Lucky Famous Limited ([ Lucky
Famous]) H Lujolujo B H B E &t £
Ko BB 4 2 5T A LA R Lujolujo 5] 32 R 173
# Bt Lucky Famous & & 4H R &
FREE M Lujolujo A 1§ 1 R BB AT H AR 1
(R ) - RHEE A 14,000,000 7%
TeRZTE—NFNAZ+=HZEMK
& - REBIRH 58 E P Lujolujo & 317
REBRM BRI EITRATT% °

Lujolujo = Z LA [Funshare.com] % # £&
EH YRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)
(i) Acquisition of e-Perfect Group

On 10 June 2014, Mission Win International Limited
(“Mission Win”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with EPRO Systems Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
DX.com (stock code: 8086) for the acquisition by Mission
Win of 100% equity interest in e-Perfect IT at a
consideration of HK$48,000,000 which was settled by
186,046,500 of the Company’s ordinary shares
(“Consideration Shares”).

On 31 July 2014, the date of completion of the acquisition,
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the
Company issued 186,046,500 consideration shares of
HK$0.01 each to DX.com. The fair value of the
Consideration Shares was approximately HK$29,395,000,
based on the bid price (HK$0.158 per consideration share)
at 31 July 2014.

e-Perfect Group is principally engaged in Corporate
Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services
Business.

(iv)  Acquisition of Wafer HK

On 31 October 2014, e-Perfect IT, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Wafer Systems Limited for the
acquisition by e-Perfect IT of 100% equity interest in Wafer
HK at a consideration of HK$18,000,000. Together with
the capitalisation of the related stamp duty of HK$18,000,
total consideration for acquisition of Wafer HK is
HK$18,018,000. Completion of acquisition of Wafer HK
took place on 31 December 2014.

Wafer HK is principally engaged in Corporate Management
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business.

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

39. RERERERME ()

(@) WEKBAR &)

(ii)

(iv)

Yo i ErhE R E

R-ZZE—MEFEXA+AH  AARZEM
&~ &) Mission Win International Limited
(TMission WinJ) £2 DX.com (B 55
8086) 2 BB AR ZBRR AR AT
FIMBE W - WA A B Mission Win
W EE 2 EBAR # - X {8 %4 48,000,000
7T 0 1554 186,046,500 B AR A 7 E i
R (TRBRRM ) Z AT -

RUEER A - —NE+A=+—
H - RIBEEEWZ - A2 FRDX.com
#%17186,046,500 % & A E 1 0.01 B 7T
HRERD - RERNHATEENR
29,395,000/ 7T * ST IREBERZ
T—NELA=+—HANBEAEB(ER
REMRD0.158BTL) 5T HE -

EEEEHIZRFCEERRRTER
AR A BRI TS o

Wi B 2 EE

RZZ—mE+A=+—R - LEEE
BEGBERRABVEEHE  NBA
BLENEREES2IRE  REAR
18,000,000 7T © E R A ENIER T
B 7R18,0008 T - WHEEEAESNE
K 1B%18,018,000 7 7T » W iE B BE
RZF-—WF+=—A=+—AB%K -

BEEEIBUELEEERRIRR
AARHRA HRRTE TS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

39. RERERERME ()

(@) WEKBAR &)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GET RS B BT 2 S 5 - Luolujo ~ L iE
Mdream, Lujolujo, e-Perfect Group and Wafer HK acquired as at B R ED BRI A RS &E%E’U/Aﬂ?%‘i
the dates of acquisitions are as follows: (ERUNNE
GET e-Perfect
Mdream Lujolujo Group  Wafer HK Total
BEES Lujolujo EEEH HEEE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHAT FHAT FAT FAT FAT
Net assets/(liabilities) acquired: FrEEE/(AE)FE -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KA
(note 20) (Kt7E20) - 222 709 293 1,224
Intangible assets (note 22) ERAE (M:22) - - 13,892 - 13,892
Inventories & - 51 39 14,667 14,757
Trade and other receivables Z 5 N EthfEYFRIA 10 13,545 3,203 15,319 32,077
Pledged bank deposits BIRERITER - 804 - - 804
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 8 165 2,172 12,517 19,867 34,721
Trade and other payables E 5 REMENFIE ) (9,276) (2,835) (53,041) (65,159)
Current tax assets EHHBEEE - - 229 - 229
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIEEE
(note 34(a)) (B3 34(a)) - - (2,293) - (2,293)
168 7,518 25,461 (2,895) 30,252
Non-controlling interests FEER S = (1,729) - - (1,729)
Goodwill (note 23) 2 (KsE23) 865 8,211 3,934 20,913 33,923
1,033 14,000 29,395 18,018 62,446
Satisfied by: IV EN N
Cash Be 1,033 14,000 - 18,018 33,051
Consideration Shares (note 35(f) R ER (FiH5E 35(1) - - 29,395 - 29,395
1,033 14,000 29,395 18,018 62,446
Net cash (outflow)/inflow WHEELMES GRE),/RA
arising on acquisitions: FE
Cash consideration paid EREEKE (1,033 (14,000) - (18,018) (33,051)
Cash and cash equivalents B € RIREEEY
acquired 165 2,172 12,517 19,867 34,721
(868) (11,828) 12,517 1,849 1,670
BB AR AR/ E3R 2014 179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

Intangible assets of e-Perfect Group represented customer
relationship and computer software identified in the business
combination. The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to perform fair value assessments on these intangible
assets at the date of acquisition in accordance with HKFRS 3
“Business Combination”.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired is
approximately HK$32,077,000. The gross amount of these
receivables is approximately HK$32,077,000. None of these
receivables have been impaired and expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill arising on the acquisitions of GET Mdream, Lujolujo,
e-Perfect Group and Wafer HK are attributable to the anticipated
profitability of the distribution of the Group’s products in the new
markets and the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combinations.

Revenue and profit between the dates of acquisitions and the
end of the reporting period contributed by new subsidiaries
acquired during the year to the Group are summarised as
follows:

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

39.

@

FEREREBRME (H)

WM B~ E (&)

TEEENBTEEREBAIPMENE
FRAREKEMN - AEECRE-—2BULE
EHEMBREEEVBEREEREIN [ X5
Bt FHEZERVEAERKBERAHNA
FEE-

T E 5 R EMERRIBENAFEENA
32,077,000 L ZEREBHKIBLEO A
32,077,000 7 © 7% %5 FE W IE I SR (B ) 58
Hi SRR m) o

W28 5 - Lujolujo ~ HIESE KA #EE
BRELABEREENTS D HAEEERDN
Rt BFIEN RR A A HERARRELEHR

WS BB E REEIRICEIRE - FARMEEEN
BB A B A2 5 E B B0 e Ko Rt an
T

Revenue Profit/(loss)

Wz B (E8E)

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET FHET

GET Mdream EER 5 76,507 9,501
Lujolujo Lujolujo 3,568 (3,043)
e-Perfect Group TrEEE 8,422 1,487
Wafer HK BB - -
88,497 7,945
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

If the acquisitions had been completed on 1 January 2014, the
new subsidiaries acquired during the year would have contributed
to the Group revenue for the year and profit for the year as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

(AETTIIR)

39. RERERERME ()

@

WM B~ E (&)

HEBER =T —mE—A—BRR - BIFR
FUCB 37 P 2 A B SR B R R M 47 P o
BRI

Revenue Profit/(loss)

Wz B (E8E)

HK$’'000 HK$000

FHET FHET

GET Mdream B2E5 76,533 9,514
Lujolujo Lujolujo 8,336 (4,947)
e-Perfect Group TrEEE 21,167 5,760
Wafer HK BB RS 68,067 5,136
174,103 15,463

The proforma information mentioned above are for illustrative
purposes only and are not necessarily indications of the turnover
and results of operations of the Group that would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of Apperience Group

On 31 March 2013, the Group acquired 50.5% of the issued
share capital of Apperience Corporation at the maximum
consideration payable by the Company to the vendors of the
acquisition of HK$548,985,500 (subject to adjustment). The
Consideration had been satisfied partly by the creation and issue
of convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$392,132,500
and contingent consideration. Contingent consideration
represents the allotment and issuance of Performance Shares at
the issue price of HK$0.108 per Performance Share to the
vendors of the Acquisition, the maximum number of which shall
be 1,452,342,588 (subject to adjustment). Apperience Group
was principally engaged in research, development and
distribution of software products.

(b)

Lt Z EREHFHBAE - RBBMEER
—MFE-A-BERARESERNER
BEBREEER - TTBHEEARRESR -

U5 8% Apperience £ &

R-ZZT—=F=ZA=+—H ' A£EKBE
Apperience Corporation 50.5% & % 77 J& 7 -
AARENBKEBEEEINEaRER
548,985,500/& 7T (A T ##) - (L{EFR D IALE
R R BT © RE 5 392,132,500 7% ST A A A%
EBRRIARREEN - KARBIEZERER
7 0.108 B T B TEBRNIEEIRE 7 i &
RETRERD - 8H LR B1,452,342,588
f% (AT F 3% ) - Apperience EE F B F#i 4t
ERFERDH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. RERERERMT ()

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of Apperience Group (continued) (b) UxiE Apperience £[ (/&)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Apperience
Group acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows:

R Uk EE B HAFTULEE Apperience 2 B ] Y1 R B B
RBENAFEERT

HK$'000
FiT

Net assets acquired: Fri g & $1E -
Intangible assets (note 22) mREE (Mik22) 49,045
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH M EUWGRIA 12,893
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSEEY 42,124
Trade and other payables B 5 MEAMENKIEA (18,143)
Current tax liabilities EHTEAE (24,994)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34(a)) RIEF A A& (B s 34(a) (7,511)
Net assets BESE 53,414
Non-controlling interest Bl ey (26,440)
Goodwill (note 23) P2 (f3E23) 757,662
Total consideration ERE 784,636

Satisfied by:
Convertible notes (note 32(b))

— Liability component
— Equity component

Contingent consideration
— Performance shares (note 33)

Total consideration

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

ATHN T HER

AR E IR (M3 32(b))
— BEDBY
— EEI

pa

ok Dk

o)
P2

HARNRE
— RERM (FTzE33)

BB

W FTEAER G RMAFER

FriER € KRS EHEY

282,160
325,290

607,450

177,186

784,636

42,124
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Apperience Group (continued)

Intangible assets represent development costs on computer and
mobile phone software. The Group engaged an independent
professional valuer to perform fair value assessments on these
intangible assets at the date of acquisition in accordance with
HKFRS 3 “Business Combination”.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired is
approximately HK$12,893,000. The gross amount of these
receivables is approximately HK$12,893,000. None of these
receivables have been impaired and expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Apperience Group is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution of the
Group’s products in the new markets and the anticipated future
operating synergies from the combination.

Apperience Group contributed turnover of approximately
HK$89,809,000 and profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
of approximately HK$48,959,000 to the Group for the period
between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2013.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2013, total
Group turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
have been approximately HK$121,641,000, and loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would have been approximately
HK$182,047,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the turnover
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2013, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

(AETTIIR)

39. RERERERME ()

(b)

8% Apperience £E (&)

BAEEEKRRDEFERMNMAERAL -
AEEERE - RINEB Y FEMHEMREE
B BHmEEREIR [ XK 0] TEZRE
BYAENKEEEASMNATER-

T E 5 R EMERRIBENAFEENA
12,893,000 T > X EEWRIBHAEN A
12,893,000 7T © 5% % fENGR BB SR E R 1
Hi SRR m) o

g & Apperience S EFTE £ ER A EH S
DA EEERNIET AN RREE M
T8 HA AR TRAS W R RUE

R BESRE—T—=F+_-A=+—HIH
fEl - Apperience R B RN EE S RIERNE X5
#4789,809,000 B T RHE-_T—=F+=A
=+ —HIEFERTI4 48,959,000 7T °

WMKEEER -_Z—=F—F—B%K  &~&E
EHE—_T—=F+-_A=t—HLFELZ
¥ A121,641,00087C MEBEE-_T—=
F+-_ A=+ BLEFEEBEBAUNLNA
182,047,000 7T - #Z A RHEMHF AR S -
ANAREEER -_T—=F—A—AxkE
AEEERAMEEEBRCEEENEZE
THHERREENTEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. mEBRESRERMTEE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of a (c) BBWE—RHNEBARKEBEE
subsidiary
On 15 May 2013, Lucky Famous acquired 100% equity interest RZZTE—=%FA+FHH - Lucky Famous [
in Dragon Oriental Investment Limited (“Dragon Oriental”) from an — % % X % = 75 U B Dragon Oriental
independent third party for a cash consideration of Investment Limited ([ Dragon Oriental J) 2 &%
HK$42,000,000. Dragon Oriental is engaged in property holding # - 3B & K & A42,000,0007% JT ° Dragon
in Hong Kong and its principal asset is an investment property. Orenta EEBRHREWE  HIZEERRE
The consideration was determined based on the fair value of the % o R{BTIARHE Dragon Oriental IER =T
property of Dragon Oriental as of 15 May 2013. The acquisition —=FRAATHEEONAFEEEE  WE
of Dragon Oriental was completed on 15 May 2013. Dragon Oriental ERM ZZE—=FA A+ H BT
B o
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Dragon R Uk B HA B Uk B Dragon Oriental 7] #4524 B
Oriental acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows: RBENATEENT :
HK$'000
FiET
Net assets acquired: B EEFE .
Investment property (note 21) wEWE (MiE21) 41,968
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 252
Trade and other payables B 5 & EH A EN R (154)
Current tax liabilities EHRIEEE (66)
Net assets acquired R B EFE 42,000
Satisfied by: LATE) 5 R ER
Cash B 42,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEMEERSREFE
Cash consideration paid BERReRE 42,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrERE RIS EE/Y (252)

41,748
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. mEBRESRERMTEE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(d) Disposals of subsidiaries (d) HEHBAE
0] Disposal of 51% equity interest in Dragon Oriental () \H € Dragon Oriental #9 51% & 12
On 30 September 2014, the Group disposed of 51% of its RZZE—MFNLA=1TH  AEELE
equity interest in Dragon Oriental, a wholly owned H 7 Dragon Oriental (A H & Al & A &
subsidiary of the Group before the disposal, for a cash E2EAHBAR)MS1%KE  Ba
consideration of HK$21,700,000. After the completion of & /21,700,000 7T - & T IE -
the disposal, Dragon Oriental became an associate of the Dragon Oriental 5 £ 7 5= B Bk & 2 7] (Ff
Group (note 25). 05) o
Details of assets and liabilities of Dragon Oriental at date of Dragon Oriental R EBHIEE KA E
disposal were as follows: HFHBET
2014
—E-mEF
HK$'000
FiET
Investment property (note 21) LEWZE (ME21) 43,300
Cash and cash equivalent ReERREEEY 153
Accrued expenses and other payables FET B A N EoAth FE S R IB (188)
Current tax liabilities EHHEEE (76)
43,189
% of interest disposed FHEEREDL 51%
Net assets disposed of bl EEEFE 22,026
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-—BHBRATRANEE
Consideration RE 21,700
Fair value of retained non-controlling interests EREBIEERIESEN AT ER 21,163
42,863
Less: Carrying value of net assets B BEFENKEE (43,189)
Loss on disposal* HEEE (326)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEERSRAFE:
Cash consideration received BEWESRE 21,700
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FHERERESEED (153)

21,5647
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. RERERERMT ()

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(d) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) Disposal of entire interest in Five Stars Development

Limited (“Five Stars”)

d HE

(i)

On 8 August 2013, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Five Stars and its subsidiary for a cash

consideration of HK$13,000,000.

Details of assets and liabilities of Five Stars at the date of

disposal were as follows:

B =] ()

1 E&Five Stars Development Limited([ Five
Stars)) 2 &1 m

RZE—=FN\ANR AEEHEH
A Five Stars K E KB A RIM 2 5% -
I8 &R (B4 13,000,0008 7T °

Five Stars AR HE B HIBAE X B EMF
BT -

2013
2=
HK$'000
FiT
Property, plant and equipment (note 20) M - BB Kk (MiEE20) 6,966
Trade and other receivables Z 5 RHMEYRIE 37
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZEY 37
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A E A (2,850)
Net assets disposed of FHEEEFE 4,190
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE KB A R Mk
Consideration RIE 13,000
Net assets disposed of it EBESRE (4,190)
Deed of assignment EIY (2,850)
Professional fees incurred FESXE£EM (105)
Gain on disposal* s 5,855
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEFMELERESRATEE
Cash consideration received BEREBEERE 13,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EERSRESEEY 37)
Payment for professional fees incurred on disposal X HEMELAZEEH (105)
12,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. ZREHERERMET(E)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(d) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued) (d) HEMBLT (&)
(i) Disposal of entire interest in Refine Skill Limited (“Refine (i) i & Refine Skill Limited ([ Refine Skill /)
Skill”) PE

On 17 October 2013, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Refine Skill and its subsidiaries for a cash
consideration of HK$8,000,000.

Details of assets and liabilities of Refine Skill at the date of

RZZE—Z=F+ATtH FTEEHE
H A Refine Skill & H It BB 2 7169 2 2%
# + IR&MR(E 58,000,000 ©

Refine Skill /A & A BEE R B ERF

disposal were as follows: BT :
2013
2=
HK$'000
FiT
Property, plant and equipment (note 20) M - BB Kk (MiEE20) 232
Goodwill (note 23) SECIERL) 2,408
Intangible assets (note 22) mEEE (KtiE22) 4,108
Trade and other receivables S REMEKRIE 16,672
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 459
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A E A (2,475)
Net assets disposed of FHEEEFE 21,404
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE KB A R Mk
Consideration RIE 8,000
Net assets disposed of b EEESRE (21,404)
Deed of novation ETEE R 15,972
Professional fees incurred FESXS£EM (1,528)
Gain on disposal* s 1,040
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEFMELERESRATEE
Cash consideration received BWEERE 8,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FHEEEERBELEEY (459)
Payment for professional fees incurred on disposal ST HEMESEZEEMR (1,528)
6,013

*

and losses”.

The (loss)/gain on disposals are included in “other gains

HE (B18),Masat A T E M Kk
BB e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= IAN
NN

SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(e)

BE-T-ME+-AS+—HILER

(AETTIIR)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. mEBRESRERMTEE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

Deemed disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary () WRALE—RBHBARN I ER (AE
without loss of control KA HIRE)
On 7 July 2014, Fast Yield entered into a subscription agreement R-Z—NE+LA+LH  RBREEITNER
with Prosperous Glory Asia Limited (“Prosperous Glory”) (note RIS ] (KaE420)v) 5T RE W -
42(b)(iv)) in relation to the subscription by Prosperous Glory of NA AR S REE 28 5 ATl 8 432,352 1R
432,352 new shares allotted by GET Mdream at an aggregate FR D - AR E AB2,002,008 T RZF
consideration of HK$2,002,000. After the completion of the —HFEEAEHERERRREE  AEER
allotment and subscription on 7 July 2014, the Group’s 2R SRRED R 100% #EE51% -
shareholding in GET Mdream was diluted from 100% to 51%.

HK$'000

FiET

Carrying amount of net assets disposed of & & E FENKREE (976)
Consideration received from non-controlling interests [ FEFE i 1 a ER (B 2,002
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity HEREEEIANE SRS 1,026

40. COMMITMENTS

@)

40. &
Capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are as (@ AREBARNERNFAENT
follows:
The Group
AEME
2014 2013
—2-mE —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: BT EREE -
— development costs for intangible assets — B EEMMEKA 21,715 28,223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

RZE-FE+ZA=+—8 ' RIETAHEH
BERE - RATFEEEMENRRZER

SR RBEIT
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
=2 —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
Within one year —FR 3,835 186
After one year but within five years —FHRERFA 4,277 -
8,112 186

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group
for its office premises and office equipment. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of 2 years (2013: 1 year) and
rental is fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent
rentals.

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company did not have
any significant contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

BREHENREARERERAENERBER
EREERNNES HERRTFHAHRE
(ZZ2—=%F: —F)HE HeNEEHRNE
EATREXAES -

41. RAREE

RZZE—MOF+-A=+—0  AEERAQFLE
EMEARARBE(ZT—=F  8) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Group entered into the following material

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

2. EXEBLIRS

(@ WNEAFER AEBITEATEREBTR

related party transactions: 5 :
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Income from provision of business centre A ORBABRA
services (note 42(a)(i)) (KtEE42(a)() - 160

Software development fee paid to
KEBREZ BHIM AR AT (note 42(a)(i)
Management fee paid to Verde Apparel

Limited (note 42(a)(iii))

Rental expenses paid to Verde Garment
Manufacturing Limited (note 42(a)(iii))
Issue and allot the subscription shares of

a subsidiary to Prosperous Glory

(note 42(a)(iv))

(i) The transactions were entered into with KanHan Technologies
Limited (“KanHan Technologies”), a Hong Kong company which
was previously the shareholder of the entire equity interest of
KanHan Education Services Limited (“‘KanHan EDU”). Mr. Mo Wai
Ming, Lawrence. is a common director of KanHan Technologies

and KanHan EDU.

The Group’s disposed wholly owned subsidiary, KanHan EDU,
entered into a business centre service agreement with KanHan
Technologies on 19 November 2010 to provide business centre
services for a term of 3 years. The annual service charge during
the term of the business centre service agreement shall not exceed
HK$300,000. The transaction constituted continuing connected
transaction of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Details
of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements

dated 19 November 2010.

MR AR 2 (5 B M AR A R
BB B2 B A (B R 42(a)(i) - 6,724
ERNEEREERARNERE

(B 5E 42(a)ii))

ENEEHXERARNESFAX

(B 5E 42(a)ii))

96 S

MEFEITREE BB AR
VR I (T 42(a)(v))

2,002 S

0 BHRR5 HYREEREARAR ([BER D)
I BEMBRARBTAERNR  UWERKEE
EHERBERARN(FERE ) 25BE
BRIR - MEBAEERBENKRBERE
MAREE -

AEBEEH2EMBRARBEREN T
—EE+ AT NAEEERBATLEET
D IRF Wk - ARME B ORE - BES
F o BAHPLRBHBERANFERBKEDS
37838 300,000/8 7T ° RIFAIZER ETHRA
ERZSBRADRNHFERERS - BH
RHHABENARBDBRR-T—TF+—
AtThABEMRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(@) (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

REBRE(ESRIMBRAT (“AEERE") is owned as to 70% by
Mr. Dong Yuguo (“Mr. Dong”) and Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”) in
equal shares. As Mr Dong and Mr. Xue are the directors of
Apperience Corporation and members of Apperience Group, and
Mr. Xue is the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 5 July 2013, upon the completion of
acquisition of Apperience Corporation on 31 March 2013, the I.T.
consultancy service agreements entered into between Apperience
Corporation and X #E £ have constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. During
the year 2013, the Group paid software development fees
amounted to approximately US$867,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,724,000) to Ak #5 2 £ . The I.T. consultancy
services agreements were early terminated on 10 August 2013.
Details of the agreements are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 5 December 2012 and the Company’s
circular dated 23 February 2013.

Lujolujo entered into a sub-tenancy agreement with Verde Garment
Manufacturing Limited on 8 April 2014 and entered into a
management services agreement with Verde Apparel Limited on 1
January 2014 respectively. Upon completion of the subscription of
77% of the enlarged issued share capital of Lujolujo on 23 April
2014, Lujolujo has become a subsidiary of the Company. After
completion of the Subscription, Mr. Mok Kwan Yat owned 11.5%
equity interest of Lujolujo and was a director of Lujolujo until his
resignation from the position on 8 August 2014. As Verde Apparel
Limited and Verde Garment Manufacturing Limited are subsidiaries
of Verde Holdings Limited which is held as to 33% by Mr. Mok
Kwan Yat, the above transactions had constituted related party
transactions until his resignation as director of Lujolujo on 8 August
2014.

On 7 July 2014, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with Prosperous Glory in relation to Prosperous Glory’s
subscription of 49% of the enlarged share capital of GET Mdream
after the completion of the subscription at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$2,002,000. The completion of
the subscription took place immediately after the signing of the
subscription agreement. As Mr. Poon Chun Yin, a common
director of GET Mdream and Prosperous Glory, has beneficial
interest in Prosperous Glory, the above transaction had constituted
related party transaction.

e BRI

HE_Z—NF+_A=+T—HIFE
(AETTIIR)

42. EXBEHERZ (&)

(@ (&)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(@

A copyright licence agreement (“Copyright Licence Agreement”)
was entered into between Apperience Corporation (“Apperience”)
as licensee and X #F B £, as licensor on 18 February 2013
pursuant to which Ak #BE £ granted to Apperience an exclusive
licence to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare”
registered in the name of X #B B £ at nil consideration for a
period from the date of the Copyright Licence Agreement to (i)
the date on which the relevant copyright is transferred from i f
B and registered in the name of Apperience in the PRC; and (i)
the date on which the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” has
been registered in the name of Apperience in the United States
(whichever is the earlier). On 1 July 2014, the Copyright Licence
Agreement was terminated.

A new copyright licence agreement (“New Copyright Licence
Agreement”) was entered into among Both Talent International
Limited (“Both Talent”), a subsidiary of Apperience, as
licensee, Ak #B B £, as licensor, and Apperience as of 1 July
2014 pursuant to which X %8 2 £ granted to Both Talent an
exclusive licence to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare”
registered in the name of FX &P £ in the PRC for a period from
the date of the New Copyright Licence Agreement to the later of
(i) the completion of registration of the assignment of the
copyright to Both Talent in China; and (ii) the completion of
registration of the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” in the
name of Both Talent in the United States as part of the Group’s
internal reorganisation. The above transaction had constituted
related party transaction.

Transactions with key management personnel

All key management personnel are directors of the Company and
their remuneration is disclosed in note 14.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position, statement of financial position and
in note 24.

BE-ZT-—MFE+-A=+—RILFE
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43.

44.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s presentation. Segment revenue, segment results,
segment assets and segment liabilities disclosed in the Segment
Reporting have been restated which are disclosed in note 10 to the
financial statements. The directors consider the reclassification would
result in more appropriate manner to reflect the core business of the
Group. These reclassifications have no impact on the Group’s total
equity as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, or on the Group’s profit or
loss for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following significant events took place subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

(@) Proposed acquisition of subsidiaries

(i) On 2 February 2015, a subsidiary of the Company and a
vendor entered into a memorandum of understanding
(“MOU”) in relation to a proposed acquisition by the Group
of entire issued share capital of a private company which
was incorporated in the BVI (“Target”) (“Proposed
Acquisition”). The Target has two subsidiaries which were
incorporated in Hong Kong. One of which is a member of
The Hong Kong Confederation of Insurance Brokers and
is permitted to carry on businesses in general insurance
and long term (including linked long term) insurance. It is
also registered as an MPF Corporate Intermediary with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The other
subsidiary is principally engaged in the provision of
consulting services (including business referral services) in
Hong Kong. The maximum amount of consideration for
the Proposed Acquisition is HK$70 million. The Group has
paid HK$10 million as refundable deposit to the vendor
immediately after the signing of the MOU.

At the date of these financial statements, the Proposed
Acquisition has not yet completed. Details are set out in to
the Company’s announcement of 2 February 2015.

(ii) On 12 March 2015, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with a vendor to
purchase 51% of the issued share capital of a private
company, which is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is engaged in money lending
business, at a cash consideration of HK$255,000. The
completion of the acquisition took place immediate after
signing of the sale and purchase agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Issue of 6% per annum notes

On 5 February 2015, the Company and GEO Securities Limited
as placing agent, entered into a placing agreement (“Placing
Agreement”), pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to
procure the placee(s) who and whose respective ultimate
beneficial owner(s) shall be third parties independent of, and not
connected with the Company, its connected persons and their
respective associates (each within the meaning of the GEM
Listing Rules), on a best endeavour basis, to subscribe for the 6%
per annum notes (“Notes”) to be issued by the Company in an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$50,000,000 maturing on
the second anniversary of the issue date of the Notes at the
placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes
(“Placing”).

The placing period (“Placing Period”) for the Placing shall last for
a period commencing on the day immediately following the date
of the Placing Agreement and up to (and including) the date
falling on the 15th day of the sixth month after the date of the
Placing Agreement.

At the date of these financial statements, the Placing has not yet
completed. Details of the issue of Notes are set out in the
Company’s announcement of 5 February 2015.

Capital reorganisation and change in board lot size

On 2 February 2015, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) proposed to implement the capital reorganisation which
involves the following:

0] every ten issued and unissued existing shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (“Shares”) was consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.10 each of the Company
(“Consolidated Shares”) and where applicable, the total
number of Consolidated Shares in the issued share capital
of the Company immediately following the Share
Consolidation was rounded down to a whole number by
cancelling any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company which arisen from the Share Consolidation;

(ii) the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the issued
Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of each
issued Consolidated Share was reduced from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.01;
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(c)

(@

Capital reorganisation and change in board lot size
(continued)

(i) immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares of HK$0.10
each was sub-divided into ten new shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (“New Shares”);

(iv)  the credits arising in the books of the Company from the
cancellation of any fraction in the issued share capital of
the Company which arisen from the Share Consolidation;
and the Capital Reduction of approximately
HK$17,587,124 was credited to the contributed surplus
account of the Company within the meaning of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda; and

(V) upon the capital reorganisation becoming effective, the
board lot size for trading of the New Shares was changed
from 20,000 to 5,000.

The capital reorganisation of the Company and change in board
lot size was passed by the shareholders as a special resolution in
the special general meeting held on 23 March 2015. Details of
the capital reorganisation and change of board lot size are
disclosed in the Company’s announcements of 2 February 2015
and 23 March 2015 and the Company’s circular of 26 February
2015.

Proposed rights issue

On 24 February 2015, the Board proposed the implementation
of the rights issue on the basis of three rights shares for every
one new share held on the record date (tentatively scheduled for
8 May 2015) at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per rights
share to raise approximately HK$205.2 million, before deduction
of expenses, by issuing 586,237,461 rights shares to the
qualifying shareholders. The estimated net proceeds of the rights
issue will be approximately HK$196.7 million (assuming no
further issue or repurchase of shares or new shares on or before
the record date).

The proposed rights issue of the Company is subject to the
shareholders’ approval in the special general meeting proposed
to be held on 27 April 2015. Details of the proposed rights issue
are set out in the Company’s announcements of 24 February
2015 and 20 March 2015.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL INFORMATION

hFEHHHME

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2010, 2011,

2012, 2013 and 2014.

NTAREERE-_T—TF . —_T——F  _T——4%F .
TE-=ER-E-NE+-_A=t+—BIREBEFEHNST

BEEULEERAERE -

RESULTS £
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—BHLLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—EB-NE —T-—=F =—T-——F T——F ZT-ITF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT FAxT FAT FAxT
Turnover e 234,293 92,105 4,137 3,636 3,800
Profit/(Loss) from operations wERm(EE) 109,155 (161,776) (24,931) (4,300) (138,269)
Finance costs BhA A (1,209) (14,602) (1,048 (120) @31
Share of Profit on an associate JEAE—FRE & QR AT 33 = = - -
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BB ATRF, (E51E) 107,979 (176,378) (25,979) (4,420) (13,300)
Income tax FriSii (19,000) (6,798) (359) (217) 151
Profit/(Loss) after taxation from REFEREER
continuing operations BB BER(BE) 88,979 (183,176) (26,338) (4,637) (13,149)
Loss after taxation from RER ISR
discontinued operation BRFLEEE - - (288) (1,509) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERR,(BE) 88,979 (183,176) (26,626) (6,146) (13,149)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to T AL M
wmAL(EE)
— Owners of the Company — KXDTREEA 52,737 (207,410) (26,626) (6,146) (13,149)
— Non-controlling interests — FEERER 36,242 24,234 - - -
88,979 (183,176) (26,626) (6,146) (13,149)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-—OFE —T—= —E——F ZT——F ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHT FHTT FT
Total assets BEHBE 942,389 750,754 160,974 161,647 41,815
Total liabilities BERE (174,513) (161,500) (22,894) (3,257) (4,135)
Non-controlling interests FEPRIR R (41,524) (35,498) - = n
Total equity attributable to AT AEME
owners of the Company RS 726,352 553,756 138,080 158,390 37,680
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